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Tennessee, Alabama, Mississippi, Louisiana
1​

Saturday​
[February 27, 1943] 

Dearest [Butch] - 

​ Here I am writing to you from my third camp. This is by far the 

nicest looking of them all. We all had the premonition that we were to be 

shipped here but when the official notice came five hours out of Nashville 

we were all a bit disappointed…  

​  The trip down here was uneventful but knowing that you would 

like to hear about it I'll describe as much of it as I can remember. We 

boarded the train at 3:15 yesterday afternoon.  We felt pretty good when 

we saw the train as it was made of eight Pullman cars
2
 and two drivers. 

Thinking this meant a long trip, our hopes were renewed.  

At 5:00 o'clock we went into the diner and had a very good meal in 

which the main dish was roast beef. 9:30 came and with it came our 

Porter to make up our berths… I drew a lower berth and had to sleep 

with Mitch, the fellow from Texas. As you thought, it is very difficult for 

two to sleep in one berth. There is absolutely no room to move around… 

unless you want to disturb your bed companion. Mitch and I sat in bed 

talking and smoking until 11:00 when we hit Birmingham, Alabama. We 

watched the lights of the city as we went by, then shut off our bed lights 

and went to sleep.  

At 7:00 in the morning the Porter woke us. We got out of bed, 

washed, dressed and sat around until 8:00 when we arrived in Jackson  

Mississippi.  

Here the train stopped and we were told to get off… and eat in the 

town. We lined up on the platform in groups according to the car we were 

in and each marched to a different restaurant. The group I was in went 

to…  a real joint, but the food was really good. 

2 Pullman constructed the first troop sleeper cars in  1943  to help ease the burden on the standard Pullman fleet. 
To increase the troop movement capacity of the railroads, the U.S. Office of Defense Transportation contracted 
with Pullman-Standard Car Company to build 2,400 troop sleepers.  

1  All five sheets were written on United States Army Air Corps stationery with an illustrated letterhead and mailed 

in a plain envelope. The logo is the five-pointed star with Navigation Wings  
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We were served ham and eggs, grits (a food… [that] looks and tastes 

like Cream of Wheat) toast, coffee, and doughnuts. Everything was all 

right until we heard the price, 75 cents per cadet… This time we had to 

pay for our meals, and someday the Army will reimburse us. Jackson is 

a fairly nice city and the capital of the state…  

 We were back on the train by 9:00 and rode straight to Monroe 

through the most poverty stricken towns I've ever seen. The towns in 

Mississippi are Tobacco Road
3
 come to life in Technicolor… The homes 

look like a good wind would blow them down. They have no paint on 

them, no electricity, no plumbing and no cellars.  

3 Tobacco Road is a 1941 American comedy drama film directed by John Ford and starring Charley Grapewin, 
Marjorie Rambeau, Gene Tierney and William Tracy. 
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 Crossing the Mississippi River we were in Louisiana and there I 

saw the most level ground ever. The land just stretches out for miles 

without the slightest hill… The roads are just as straight as a dice table, 

no curves or anything. The ground… is swampy and… about 2:30 we 

caught our first look at Selman Field, our home for the next few months. 

The place was a sight for sore eyes because the barracks were painted 

white instead of the usual army olive drab, they were small and best of 

all there was no smoke, indicating that the heating system did not use 

soft coal as the majority of Army camps do.  

 

Later we found to my surprise that they use natural gas piped from 

Texas for heating and cooking purposes. The first thing we did after 

leaving the train was go to Chow. After eating my first meal here, all I can 

say is that there must be a catch somewhere. No Army chow can be this 

good. We had baked ham, four vegetables plus potatoes, real rye bread, 

butter, jam, milk, iced tea, water, and real apple pie. The only bad 

feature here is the water. It is so soft that when you shower you never 

feel that the soap is completely washed off, you can imagine how it 

tastes. 

After Chow we were taken to our barracks and it was there that I 

got my real surprise. The barracks are divided into two suites of four 

rooms, each room containing only two beds. I picked one of the boys 
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from my barracks in Nashville, Nat Lichtenholtz, as a roommate, and we 

got the best room in the barracks. Besides the usual two… cots we have 

a very modern writing table… upon which this letter is being written. 

(Just think, no more latrine or shower letters!) Each room has its own 

light and gas heater - no more freezing in the morning or tending fires. 

The barracks are fairly new, therefore they are easy to clean and keep 

clean. 

Believe it or not but we've already started our training. After getting 

situated in our room we were called out in formation and marched to a 

classroom where we met our Tactical Officer Lt
4
. Sparks who gave us six 

forms that have to be filled out tonight. He gave us some more 

information about the training here and sprung another surprise on us. 

Not only are we to be trained as Navigators, but also as Bombardiers. A 

new Army regulation just came through the other day stating that all 

Navigators are also to be Bombardiers and vice versa. Isn't that 

wonderful? 

 As new men… we have to undergo another two weeks quarantine 

before we can leave the post on an Open Post pass. There is only one a 

week but it runs from 2:00 Saturday afternoon until 2:30 Sunday 

morning and from 8:30 that morning until sometime Sunday night.  

That's all one pass. From what the older men on the Field tell us, even if 

there were Open Posts during the week, we wouldn't go, as there is so 

much studying to do. During the course of our training here we will 

acquire 48 textbooks plus numerous pamphlets. From this you can see 

that I'll have my hands and my mind full for the next nine weeks… of 

Pre-flight training. When the nine weeks are up we either remain here for 

Advanced training or go to another Field. 

The weather here is extremely mild right now. It is 9:45 and one 

can walk around in shirt sleeves without feeling cold. 

Another wonderful part of this camp is that we will never have KP. 

They have civilian help in the kitchen. We don't even have to pick up our 

used dishes from the table when we're through eating. Pinch me Butch, I 

think I'm dreaming all this - it all sounds too good to be true. 

4 Lieutenant  
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 Your last few letters were swell dear. They were so full of news and 

you seemed so happy that they really made me feel wonderful. By the 

way - just after I mailed my last letter to you I received a letter from 

Boomey
5
 containing some bad news. He washed out of pilot training due 

to the fact that his eyes started to go bad on him. He couldn't judge 

distances accurately enough and consequently couldn't land a plane 

properly. Now, to put it in his words, the tables are turned and instead of 

him being my upperclassman I will be his. The chances are very good 

that he will be at this Field in three or four weeks, as he has asked to be 

reclassified as a Navigator and this is where most of the Navigators are 

sent. From the talk I've heard, this is the best place I could have been 

sent to, as it is the oldest school of its type with the best teachers and 

equipment. All I have to do now is ‘keep on the ball’! 

 Butch dearest, tonight I'm at least 1600 miles from you and yet 

somehow I feel very very close to you. It is probably because I love you so 

very very much and also because in five months we are to be together -  

you had better start saving your pennies. I may not get a furlough and 

you'll have to come down here; that would give us an added excuse for 

having the small wedding we have talked about. 

​  Incidentally Butch, you don't ever have to think of repaying 

Mom and Pop for the little kindnesses that they show or give you; it is 

just their way of showing that they approve of [you as] my wife. You see…  

they love you as a daughter already - all your fears of them not liking you 

-  remember - were certainly [misplaced.] I assure you that they like you 

for yourself and not simply because you are my girlfriend. 

​  Goodnight my sweet 

 

I Love you​
xxxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

 

 

5  Adolf (Boomey) Siegel is a 1938 classmate of Sylvia Geetter Levy’s from Weaver High School, one of three high 
schools in Hartford, Connecticut. Lenny Levy graduated from Weaver in 1936. 
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PS Upon seeing the length of this letter, Nat warned me to be sure and 

tell you not to expect letters of this length after the first three weeks - in 

fact he said to tell you not to expect more than one or two letters a week 

after the first month as there will be absolutely no time to write and from 

what I hear he is right - however I'll do my best and please keep writing 

to me every day. 

 Love​
 Lenny 

 

 

The address
6
 stands for Air Force Preflight School 

(Bombardier-Navigator).  The 43- 12 I think stands for the fact that we 

are the 12th class of the year 1943. 

 Love, 

 Lenny 

 

 

 

 

 

6 Lenny is describing his new address at Selman Field 
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Grand Island, Nebraska
7
 

Sunday​
[November 28, 1943] 

Dearest wife - 

​ Arrived here about three hours ago and after getting a place to 

sleep, bedding to sleep in, and some food, I sent you the telegram… The 

trip here was very uneventful; we left at nine that morning and got into 

St Louis at twelve, the next day. (I was all set to give you the surprise of 

your life had we gotten there sooner.) We stayed there [for] about three 

hours and then went on our way. Outside of the food and the usual card 

games, I have nothing to say about the trip… I managed to stay away 

from the card games until this morning, then got into a poker game and 

won close to fifty dollars. Just as soon as I hear when we are to get paid, 

I'll probably send you a money order. Oh yes! - our sleeping 

accommodations were very good -  one man to a berth, with Rock
8
,  

another fellow, and myself having a private drawing room to ourselves, 

with me in the lower berth not bad, eh? 

​ Sweetheart, I miss you terribly coming down here. I lie in bed just 

thinking of you, taking time out only to look at your pictures, which I 

had put up just as soon as we boarded the train. But you left me just as 

I wanted you to -  just a little tears, but not too much. Just remember, all 

this isn't going to take long - just a few ‘minutes’ - and then I'll be back 

home with you.  

​ I can't write anything about this place because I haven't seen any of 

it. We have a Formation at seven-thirty, and after that I plan on taking a 

walk around to see what's what - providing it stops snowing. 

​ Don't send any letters here - we won't be here over a week -  

​ And so my sweet, goodnight until tomorrow -  

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

8 Raymond (Rock)  Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

7 Written on embossed stationery with Army Air Baser, Grand Island Nebraska letterhead in a plain envelope. 
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Friday - November 26 [1943]  

Darling ~ 

​ Here I am on my way home. I can't begin to tell you how happy I am that you got a 
Pullman9 ticket for me.  I guess we will be pulling into Monroe10 soon -  It's five o'clock now.   

 

Speaking of Monroe it certainly does bring to mind the happiness we had there. Despite the 
roaches, ants and the sickening heat we experienced there, it was heaven for me. I do love 
you so much my darling - everything will have something that I… associate with you, and.. it 
will only bring the pleasantest of memories. 

​  Last night, going home to Francis11’s, was about as unhappy a ride as it could be. I 
guess we were both a couple of real sisters. By the time we got to bed,  I was so exhausted 
that I was thankful to be able to fall right to sleep.  I did wake up however once during the 
night to find myself dangerously close to Francis. As mentioned to you today, it sure will be 
hard for me to get used to sleeping without you, darn it. 

11 Francis is Chris Christiani’s wife. Chris is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. She, Eleanor Ellison and Sylvia were living with 
their husbands, in separate apartments in Monroe, Louisiana. Chris Christani and Lenny were in the same crew, 
while Sam Ellison was in a different crew. 
 

10 Monroe. Louisiana has been home for Mr. and Mrs. Leonard Levy since they married here on June 12, 1943. If 
she, as she states, is pulling into Monroe, she must have started her journey at a station near her former 
apartment, where she and Lenny had their tearful parting.  
 

9 The Pullman Company constructed a total of 2400 troop sleepers for the Defense Plant Corporation between 
1943-1945. These were put into service mixed with regular passenger equipment and in solid sets on troop trains 
until the final soldiers returned.  
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​  Awoke this morning about nine o’clock, my head ached just a bit, but it wore off and 
I'm feeling fine now - thank goodness. As I thought - and I'm not being critical - (I'm smiling 
here)  Francis didn't have her things packed, so she had that to do this morning. I went over 
to Eleanor12's and I had breakfast with her and Sam.  When Sam left to go to the field13 - you 
know what he did, hon?  He kissed me - it didn't take long - honest, it didn't. 

​  We, Eleanor and I,  had plenty of time left so we went into town. I got the picture 
Hon,  You were right about my getting it - such a smatt husband. Oh yes - there was my final 
and last tear, to be made through Kress [Department store]! As usual, I couldn't go through 
it without buying something - stationery is one of my purchases. Eleanor bought a pair of 
play shoes like mine. I told Eleanor that now that I was leaving, she may be able to keep 
that… budget of hers - without my influence on her.  Eleanor came on the train with me.14  I 
hated to say goodbye to Eleanor - she has been a very good friend. She bought me a pack of 
Chesterfield's, four boxes of matches - the reason for all the matches is because she said I 
never have any on me. Francis came along at the last minute - everything was taken care of. 
So off we went and now I'm on my way back to Hartford15. 

​  I am now in bed -  The earliest I have gone to bed in a long time. I wonder whether 
you are in bed now, too - in your own Pullman. Just think we are both doing the same thing 
tonight.  Oh, how I wish we could be traveling together, not each going to separate 
destinations. Well, honey when this is over we will take a trip together and in every sense of 
the word, it will be a pleasure trip. Oh my darling I do love you so.  I miss you so much 
already. 

​ Guess what I had for supper?  Turkey and cranberry sauce - jealous? The turkey was 
good, but I don't want to talk about the cranberry sauce - it was terrible.  We are riding 
backwards and I hate that sensation. I guess I'd never be able to fly in an airplane.  

​  Sweetheart, I am very tired now.  If you were here I would get in my favorite position 
and snuggle up so very close. Well darling I can't do it now but soon we will be together 
again and I will be able to kiss you good night. However, in my heart I have my prayer and 
wherever you are… I'll say good night. If it were at all possible at this very moment - I would 

15 Hartford, Connecticut is her hometown, where she will reside with her mother, Adelle Stolper Geetter and sister 
Sadie Geetter at 148 Magnolia St. 

14 for one stop.  
 

13 Selman Field, Monroe Louisiana is where Lenny and Sam have been finishing their Flight Training. Sam is arriving 
for his morning training, while Lenny and his crew are on alert and awaiting transportation to a new base, which 
they expect will be a disembarkment point to a base in England to bomb German targets.  
 

12 Eleanor (Kohn) Ellison married Sam Ellison, a friend of Lenny’s who also trained with him at Alexandria Army 
and Air Force Base, and would soon join him at the same Air Base in England. 
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tell you how much I love you.  I do love you so very much my darling and I'll say goodnight 
just like we used to. Here's a kiss, goodnight darling. 

 

  

​ Saturday,  November 27 

​  Good morning darling ~ 

Here it is 7:50 and I am all dressed and waiting to get into St Louis. I had a big 
breakfast but somehow I'm still hungry. It is very stuffy on the train now.  Looking out of 
the window makes me wish I could have just one whiff of that air. We are in Missouri and we 
are traveling along the Mississippi. It seems strange to see all the trees barren of their leaves 
after seeing them still on the trees in Alexandria. 

​  Darling, something funny happened to me last night. Last night I awoke and heard 
someone trying to pull my curtain apart… the thoughts that ran through my mind… I didn't 
know what to do.  I put the light up and remembered I had a nice long hat pin on my hat 
and figured that it can be a good bit of protection if properly applied. So I took my trusty 
hat pin off of my new hat and pulled open the curtain. There was a soldier - rank I couldn't 
tell, so I closed the curtain and he went away. I went to Francis's berth and told her the story. 
I got up enough courage (five minutes time - I’m a brave one)  and I decided to go to the 
ladies room to see if I could see who he was in case he was still around. Sure enough along 
he comes followed by a Porter16 who had a ladder in his hand and guess what? He got on the 
upper berth over mine. Golly, you can imagine my relief. No doubt he must have been trying 
to get into his berth when I heard him. So back to sleep I went, but you can be sure I had 
the hat pin right in reach. 

​  Honey, I expect the train to pull into St. Louis Station, so I'll continue this later, 
sweet. 

Hello, here I am on the train all set for my ride straight to Springfield, 
[Massachusetts.] So far darling, everything has been working out fine and the trip has been 
very comfortable. Francis had trouble in making her connection from here on. She has to get 
off in Cleveland and the conductor says we should get there about nine tonight. 

​  Darling, I wonder how you are.  I hope your trip has been comfortable. If I know 
you -  I bet you slept in the lower berth last night. I hope you left at the time scheduled 
yesterday because waiting around certainly can get to be very annoying. 

16 One bunk in each Pullman car was dedicated to a porter who rode along with the troops and helped ensure their 
comfort. Every day, each bunk received fresh sheets and pillowcases in the grand Pullman tradition. The middle and 
lower bunks converted to daytime seating and each car included four wash basins and two restrooms. Each bunk 
set included a weapons rack and a place for foot lockers. 
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​  We arrived in Missouri and I can see the steel plants and in the distance the city is 
just covered with heavy smoke. I guess that I'll sit back a while and look at the scenery - 
whatever there is of it. Darling, I know that my thoughts will all be about you - I do love you 
so. 

​  I am now in my berth - all nice and comfortable for the night. It is now 9:30 and 
Francis just got off at our last stop, Cleveland. She changes trains there. 

​  It has been a very uneventful afternoon - I read practically all of the time. It looks 
like it is pretty cold outside - at least I hope so - it sure will feel good - that's what I get for 
being a northerner I guess. 

​  Well, tomorrow night at this time I should be home.  I will go to see your folk as 
soon as I can, I know they all are anxious to see me, and get all the latest news. 

​  Well my darling, I guess there's not much more to say now.  As soon as I finish 
writing for tonight I am going to try to get some sleep.  So my darling goodnight and 
remember let me tell you I love you so very much.  Goodnight, sweet. 

 

 

 Sunday November 28 

 Good morning darling ~ 

 I am definitely on my last lap of the trip. I had a very good night's sleep and I feel 
fine this morning.  The conductor told me that we are a half an hour late so that will get me 
into Springfield about ten o'clock. That will make it… so I leave Springfield about 10:30.  
Darling, this morning I woke up and looked out of my window and guess what I saw -  
snow!  It sure looked good to me and the hills are beautiful. I realize now how beautiful the 
north is - I really appreciate it now. 

​  I had my breakfast and I am all set. I had sunny side eggs this morning and darling 
they weren't broken. I wonder how they do that. 

​ It looks like it is mighty cold outside. I wonder how the weather is where you are. No 
doubt it is plenty cold. Well darling, I'll end this letter when I get home. So until then, I love 
you darling. 

​  I am now in Hartford. The exact place in Hartford is the railroad station. I am 
waiting for my brother Moe to pick me up. All of my luggage is here and I certainly do feel 
relieved.  

​ The trip from Springfield to Hartford was one of anxiety. I guess after making such a 
long trip, when you reach the home stretch it seems as though you'll never get there. I guess 
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for the first time in my life I had a spell of homesickness and when we did pull into 
Hartford, it did look so good. I kept looking for familiar sights on the way from Springfield 
and I did see so many. 

​  Well darling, here I am at the station. For the heck of it I looked for one familiar face 
and I know nobody here.  

​  My sweet I guess this letter is a rough idea of what has happened since I left 
Alexandria. I hope at times it doesn't get boring. In spots, truthfully if I didn't write this and 
pretend I was talking to you as though you were right along with me,  it would have been a 
dreadfully lonely and boring trip. and my darling, each time I wrote that I love you,  I wish 
you knew how many times my heart was saying it. Closing this letter once again, let me tell 
you that I love you and that no matter where you go I'll be thinking of you. 

​  Until tomorrow ~ 

 Always yours, 

Love, 

Sylvia 

XXX 

 

Page 425 



 

Grand Island, Nebraska
17

 

Monday​
[November 29, 1943] 

Dearest wife - 

​ This has been a long day, but not a busy one. I had a roll call to 

make at seven-thirty, class (that never took place) at ten, and another 

roll call at one this afternoon. In between times, I wrote a letter to Mom 

and Pop and later Rock
18

 and I went out on the line and gave the new 

planes the once over. They are of the latest style with quite a few 

important changes and all for the better. 

 

Grand Island Army Air Base 

Grand Island, Nebraska 

​ I took a look around the base today and it isn't half bad. The 

Officers Club and Mess are both really good. In fact, when they run out 

of the regular meal that is being served, they serve steak. I mean steak!  

I've had two suppers here, and they've both been steak. The combat crew 

headquarters, where we are due to be processed eventually, is really 

something to write about. The lounge is known as the Esquire Room, and 

18 Raymond (Rock)  Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

17 Written on embossed stationery with Army Air Baser, Grand Island Nebraska letterhead in a plain envelope. 
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it gets its name… from the greatly enlarged pictures of the better known 

Varga girls that are on the walls at one end of the room. There is a snack 

bar that serves almost anything. The country around here is really 

desolate looking - it is flat, sandy land with nary a tree in sight. As yet, I 

haven't seen the town but they tell me that it is about the same size as 

Alex
19

, and about the same type of town. 

​ I'm writing this in the barracks and the boys are throwing cracks at 

each other left and right, so if this is rather incoherent you'll understand 

why. 

​ One thing that I get a big kick out of here is seeing the fellows who 

have been ‘alerted’ walking around armed to the neck. Just before 

leaving here, all members of combat crews are issued guns and jungle 

knives, and they walk around with the guns on one hip and the knife on 

the other. 

​ Butch darling, I'm like a chicken without a head here. Come five 

o'clock and I get a strange feeling, sort of like the one Lassie must have 

felt. It’s unnatural to be unable to see you every day. What I'm trying to 

say, my sweet, is that I miss you very much and what's more I love you 

very, very much. And so my sweet until tomorrow I'll say 

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19 Alexandria, Louisiana 

Page 427 



 

[Monday] - November 29, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ This isn't going to be a newsy letter as I am going to write another letter to you later 
on.  I am enclosing a form which I obtained at the Mechanics Savings Bank. I went there 
today and showed them my Power Of Attorney. In order to have the Power Of Attorney of your 
bank account I have to give them my copy to keep in their files. I don't want to do that 
because if I need them elsewhere,  I'd be stuck without one.  

​  This form gives me the Power Of Attorney just in the Mechanics Bank…  Please fill in 
all the blanks, and sign it where it says LS.  When notary public is written on the bottom, 
have your Commanding Officer sign it. So darling please fill this out and return it 
immediately. 

​  I'll write a long letter to you later and until then - I hope all is well - and I love you 
darling - 

Love, 

Sylvia 
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Monday nite - November 29 [1943]  

Darling ~ 

​ What a busy girl I have been since I came home… When I came home my mother20,  
Sadie21 and Betty May22 were home. I really didn't feel as though I had left home for two 
months - it felt more like two days. My sister looks well and my mother about the same. 
Betty May gave me a real kiss and she stuck close to me the whole time. 

​  My packages came from the Railway Express23 
so I was relieved to find them there. I showed Betty 
May my doll, and she thinks it is the thing. However 
when Lorraine came over later… it caused a fight, and 
I had to take it away from them -  aren't I the mean 
aunt, darling? 

​  Later on Faye,  Lou24, Holly,  Nate25,  Ben, 
Gladys26, Allan, and Lorraine were here.  It was quite a 
roomful and of course plenty of commotion.  I decided 
not to go see Lillian then, because it being Sunday, I 
was sure she already had more company than she could 
handle, so I decided to save my visit until today. By the 
way hon, Natie gave me a cigar for you in celebration 
of your new nephew… As I thought,  Lou sure takes a 
ribbing from Nate. 

​  I called your mother as soon as I got home and told her I'd be there that evening. I 
also spoke to Margie27 and she was going to be at your house that evening. When the sisters 

27 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. 
 

26 Gladys M. Geetter married Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. Geetter and had a daughter, Lorraine and a 
son, Allan Joel, who were seven and two at the time this was written. 

25 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born two months ago, 
Philip Henry Geetter. 
 

24 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 
(Betty) May and Holly Suzanne, who were six and one at the time this was written. 
 

23 Railway Express Agency, founded as the American Railway Express Agency and later renamed the American 
Railway Express Inc., was a national package delivery service that operated in the United States from 1918 to 1975.  
 

22 Elizabeth (Betty May) Weidman is Sylvia’s seven year old niece. 
 

21 Sadie Geetter was Sylvia’s oldest sister and was unmarried at the time. 
 

20 Adelle Stolper Geetter lived at 148 Magnolia St. in the North End of Hartford, Connecticut. 
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and brothers left -  it was really good to see them - I went to your house. Mom looks well 
and that goes for Dad too, except that he is getting a real tummy, like a particular son of his. 
Mom told me that Lou’s baby is a very sweet little girl.  By the way dear, I just learned that 
Lou's wife is a year younger than I am -  she's 22 years old. Not bad having such a young 
aunt. Is it darling? 

​  Now I come to what may be a surprise and… what I think won't be a surprise.  
Nevertheless, it is to be a secret. Do you remember what I said is the reason why I think 
Margie is so upset -  as your mother put it in her last letter to me?  Well, I was right, she is 
pregnant. Margie says the doctor says it will come in July. Now, I guess you are wondering 
why it is kept a secret. It isn't a secret here at home - goodness, everybody knows about it. 
But for some reason, your mother told me not to tell you about it. Maybe she thinks it will 
worry you, but hon,  I can see no reason for keeping any secrets from you… I am telling it 
to you,  so please don't let on to Mom that you know about it.  I know how you feel about it 
because I feel the same way. It is a shame that it had to happen; perhaps if they were more 
careful, it could have been prevented. Of course, at times, no matter what protection you 
may use, it just doesn't help and I'm pretty sure from what Margie tells me they weren't very 
careful. There's no sense talking about the “could-have-beens” -  it has happened. 

​  Margie feels terrible about it and… realizing what her problems will be now, I can't 
help but feel very sorry for her. Norm doesn't have the money, and Margie hasn't a decent 
place to bring up a baby. You know how congested the apartment is at her house. She has no 
intentions of living with your mother and from what your mother said last night, she really is 
looking for a small apartment for [her] dad and herself.  Margie says that she is going to try 
to find a larger apartment for her father, so that when the baby comes there will be plenty of 
room. I can assure you darling she is not the happiest person in the world and regardless of 
the fact that it might have been prevented, it is still a shame for her and Norman. When 
you… think how people have had children and raised them to be fine people…  they will 
have to make the best of it, and believe in that old philosophy that what happens, happens 
for the best. I'm sure it will all work out all right.  It just takes a lot of will, to just make the 
best of it and from all appearances, I think Margie is doing a fine job, and I mean that, dear. 
So, my sweet, you are going to be an uncle - sooner than you expected. Perhaps you will be 
home… that would certainly be nice, hun… 

​  Mom thought I looked very well and she is just crazy about the picture. She likes the 
way you look but she doesn't think the picture is a very nice one of me. I told her you gained 
weight and it made her feel so happy. I told her that if I  look well it is only because I was so 
happy when we were in Alexandria, it just had to have some effect on me. I was so happy 
darling, and I do love you so much. 

​  I left your house about 10:00 and I had so much to do, but just didn't get to it - by 
that I mean unpack. Your mother gave me your policies, which she spoke to you about that 
have matured and you are to receive $75.  From the letter they sent her, they have sent the 
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claim papers to you, but I have no idea when and where they will catch up to you, so I 
decided to think of something I can do the next day -  which is of course today. So later on 
in my letter, I'll tell you what I have done. 

​  This morning at about 6:30, I received your night letter by phone and I was so happy 
to hear from you. Just to know you arrived and everything was fine was all I wanted to hear.  
I am looking forward to a letter from you. my darling, so very much. I do hope I get one 
soon. 

​  This morning I went to the bank in regards to making your account a joint one. I 
presented my Power Of Attorney and consequently it only meant the bank had to keep it in 
their files all the time. I don't want to give it to them, as I may need the few copies I have, 
and so they gave me these forms for a Power Of Attorney for your bank account for their 
bank, and if you will fill it out when I send it to you and return it a immediately, it will help 
straighten matters out. 

​  Then, I went to the American Red Cross, to see if they could tell me just what Power 
your Power Of Attorney gives me.  I really didn't understand all of it dear. They told me I could 
get free legal advice from Lawyer Kotchen from twelve to one at the Municipal Building, so 
I decided it wouldn't hurt. So I went and I'm glad I did. He explained it all very clearly to me 
and also advised me in regards to your policy. He's to write to them and ask if I could send 
them a certified copy of my Power Of Attorney,  which he will make out for me, so that I may 
keep my copies.. They will send me all of the necessary papers to be signed. You see dear, I 
don't want to part with my copies of the Power Of Attorney and the lawyer says it is a very 
good idea. 

​  Darling, in regards to your bonds, your will does not cover them, nor does the power 
of attorney give me any power on making me your heir… I hope I don't seem like I want 
those bonds to go to anybody but you, but being my husband I can see no reason why I 
can't talk to you about such matters sensibly. Now, if you want me to be the other name on 
your bonds and not your mother, you will have to write to her and tell her you want them 
changed. It is something I won't tell her to do, and it is your responsibility to tell her. 
However, that is only if you want them changed - that's up to you and I would appreciate 
your telling me what you intend to do, whether you want to change them or not. 

​  Well I guess that ends all the legal matters. 

​  I went to the hospital today and saw Lil.  I couldn't see the baby but the mom looked 
fine. From all reports the baby looks like Nate - I guess that's always the way - to have the 
boy look like his daddy.  

​  Tonight I went to the Bushnell with Sadie to hear a lecture by Charles Collinworth 
Junior, the war correspondent in the war in Africa, from which he has just returned. 
Admission was by tickets processed from buying war bonds and Sadie got a one thousand 
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dollar bond for her boss so that entitled her to two tickets right up in the front, too.  I was 
amazed at what a young person he is - he is only 26 years old. Although he looks young his 
intelligence is far above 26. He was very interesting and it was an evening well spent as I 
believe I learned a few things. 

​  Now I guess it is about time I went to bed. Life is so different now without you…  I 
will never get used to it but I'll make the best of it until you are home again. 

​  So, my darling, I'll say goodnight to you, with every prayer that this finds you well. 
Goodnight my darling and remember that I love you so very much. 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​  Always yours, 

Love, 

Sylvia 

XXX 
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November 30 [1943] - Tuesday night ~ 

Darling ~ 

​ At last I got around to unpacking my suitcases. It was quite a job - it took me all 
morning up until 3:30. Well, now that it is done I certainly feel much better. 

​  By the way, dear, your trunk arrived but you forgot to give me the key for it. Mom 
called me and told me it came, and asked me if I had the key. So, darling, you will have to 
send me the key as soon as possible. 

 

Strand Theatre (1476 seats) - 1017 Main St.  (1914 - 1974) 

 

​  I met Margie in town tonight at quarter to five.  We had supper in the Jade 
[Restaurant], and then we went to the Strand to see Betty Davis and Miriam Hopkins in Old 
Acquaintance.  It was very funny and different from the average run of pictures.  It felt strange 
to sit through a double feature - thank goodness the seats weren’t like the ones in the Post 
Theater -  my aching twizzy!  I never would have lasted! 
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​  After the show, we went into Leggett’s28 for a drink. Looking [around,] I… noticed 
how [different] the clientele in Hartford is today. Talking with Margie29 I can see that she and 
Norm30 have a big headache on their shoulders now that they are going to have a baby. I 
can't help but feel sorry for Margie. I honestly hope that everything turns out as it should - 
for the best. 

​  Darling, I wonder how soon it will be before I hear from you. I am so anxious to 
know how you are, and also to hear the 
latest news. I do hope all is well, and that 
I'll be hearing from you soon. 

​ Tomorrow, I intend to go to the US 
Employment Service. I am not going to look 
for any other kind of work, but office 
work. So after I go, I'll tell you what 
happened and if I am a girl with a job once 
again… I wonder how I'll feel getting up to 
go to work again. These past six months 

certainly have made a lazy thing out of me - of course it doesn't take much. Nevertheless, I'll 
be glad to get back to work. 

​  Darling, while I was straightening out my closet I came across the box of your letters 
that I saved. Of course, I picked some out and I had such a good time reading them. Some 
of those letters seem so far back - especially the ones in which you speak of trying to get into 
the Air Corps. Those letters mean so much to me, that I'll always keep them. 

​  I guess I will go to bed now. I realize that not once in this letter did I tell you I love 
you, and it's not that I wasn't saying it to myself a million times, but you know how it is once 
you get onto telling something. So, sweet, please forgive me, because I do love you so, and 
miss you every minute of the day.  Please take good care of yourself - and once again - I love 
you, darling, and wherever you are -  goodnight dear. 

Love, 

Sylvia​
XXX 

 

30 Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy had just enlisted in the Army. 

29 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. She is pregnant with twin boys 
Richard and Steven Levy.  
 

28 Leggett’s Drug Store had a soda counter. 
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Grand Island, Nebraska
31

 

Wednesday​
[December 1, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ This place is getting to be more and more like a country club every 

day. Instead of having a formation at 7:30 in the morning, they set it 

back to 8:45, so that we wouldn't have to get up so early. As this is only 

a Processing base they have no real work for us to do - a lecture now and 

then on security etc., but nothing to tax the brain.  The hardest work I've 

done all day is lose out in a strenuous game of Monopoly which, by the 

way, is the rage out here. 

​ Tonight will be our first night 

off the post, and there is quite a bit 

of red tape to go through to get a 

pass. First, we had to take a short 

arms inspections and then… we had 

to purchase and [carry] a 

prophylactic kit. It seems that one 

in every four fellows on the base 

gets… a venereal disease, and they 

are trying to stamp it out. Chris
32

 and I are getting a big kick out of it… 

as neither one of us feels the urge so badly… to go to all that trouble. 

​ Last night the entire group attended a lecture, the subject of which 

is a strict military secret. After the lecture, our crew adjourned to the 

PX
33

 where we had a miniature beer party and I stayed up until the late 

hour of 12:00. If it weren't for things like that and the Esquire Room, I 

believe I'd go nuts just hanging around. Another week of this life and I'll 

start gaining more weight. 

33 PX stands for post exchange. All Bases had their own PX. Grand Island As Lenny is in transit  
 

32 Augustus (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

31  Written on plain stationery in a plain envelope. 
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​  As to what is going to happen to us… your guess is as good as the 

next. They seem to have forgotten about the section in which our crew 

has been placed, and the rumors are running wild. The wildest of them 

all have us going on a Bond drive covering the 48 states; while still 

another has us going from here to Scott Field located in Illinois and from 

there to a POE
34

 without being processed here. 

​ There [are] a few cases of crabs (body lice) in our barracks. (Rock
35

 

being one of the victims) and the rest of us are living in constant dread of 

getting them. Outside of this, very little excitement has happened and 

not getting any mail from you, makes it very hard for me to write much of 

a letter. The chances are that I may be here for another week or so… if I 

don't get your letters here they will be forwarded to me and eventually I'll 

get them. I expect the first one to be a really long one telling me all that's 

happened since you drove away from the gate Thursday night.  

​ No matter how many letters I write I'll never be able to tell you just 

how much I love you my darling, nor how much I miss you. I know it 

isn't enough to just say that you are in my thoughts every moment of the 

day, but believe me it's the truth. I realize that if it hadn't been for you I 

wouldn't be where I am today - an officer in the Air Corps and if I haven't 

already done so I thank you, my sweetheart I love you.  

​ Although I haven't said so before I hope you found everything, and 

everybody, fine at home - what does the family think of your doll? And 

have you convinced them of your prowess as a cook? Until tomorrow - 

my darling  

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

Use the address on the envelope. 

Love 

L.  

35 Raymond (Rock)  Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

34 POE in a military context stands for "Point of Embarkation," which is the location where personnel begin their 
journey to a destination. This is what was happening: Lenny’s crew was given Knettishall, England as their 
destination Base where other B-17s were already conducting bombing raids in the European Theatre of Operation. 
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Grand Island, Nebraska
36

 

Thursday​
[December 2, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ ​ Another day and still nothing has happened, and what is 

worse nothing in sight. [Some] of the crews have been assigned ships and 

still others have been alerted but we are still the forgotten few. With the 

exception of a previously played game of monopoly this morning, I have 

done exactly nothing. To top it all off last night’s, for some unknown 

reason. Because of this, the crew took themselves to the show where we 

had a good laugh at Red Skelton
37

 and then went home to sleep. 

 

​ ​  Chris
38

 received a letter from Fran
39

 this morning so I know 

that you were all right up until the time she left you. (Why I told you not 

to write is beyond me.) 

39  Chris Christiani’s wife 

38 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

37 A movie with Red Skelton in it 
 

36  Written on plain stationery in a plain envelope. 
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​ ​  Honest sweetheart, I can't think of anything more to write 

about. Please believe me when I say I'm sorry - I feel that you'll 

understand if I cut this letter short. 

​ ​  Before I close though I want to tell you something that I've 

said before, I think - something that I'll never tire of telling you. My only 

regret is that I can't hold you in my arms and feel your lips on mine 

when I tell you over and over that I love you. Not only that my darling but 

I miss you terribly. 

​ ​  Please, please excuse the shortness, my sweet. 

​  Regards to everybody 

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

*Your husband​
Lenny 

* Something new has been added  
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December 2 [1943] - Thursday 

Darling ~ 

​ Before I get on with this letter I have an apology to make.  I asked you for the key to 
your foot locker and I found out tonight that I have it.  I should have looked through my key 
case before I asked you for it. 

​  It certainly was good to receive two letters from you today and the picture cards.  I've 
been waiting for a letter from you all week and those two letters made me very happy.  From 
the pictures on the souvenir pictures you sent me, Grand Island40 looks like a very nice town.  
Did you get into town and have a look around?  I am sorry to hear that your trip was so 
boring, didn't the poker game help?  Darling, even though you won fifty dollars, please don't 
make a habit of gambling -  it is so easy to get into it, but getting out of it is an entirely 
different story. 

​  It was too bad that we couldn't be in St Louis at the same time, Saturday. As you 
said, it would have been a surprise… a real surprise. Well, I'm glad to hear that you are well 
and so far all is going along smoothly.  I bet it is exciting… to move on to some place [and] 
you don't know… exactly where. Well, wherever it is… I hope it will be the best. 

​  Today, I went shopping for Natie41.  I brought back what they received for the baby 
that they didn't need and bought other things for him.  I also went to the ration board to get 

Philip Henry ( that's his name)  his first ration book.  By 
the way, Lil will get out of the hospital this Sunday.  It so 
happened, her nurse couldn't come until this coming 
Monday and, having room in the hospital, they let her stay 
there.  

​  This afternoon I went to Tootsies and Robbie is as cute 
as ever. He spilled some Rinso on the floor and Tootsie 
scolded him and told him to look at what he had done.  So 
he was so ashamed he closed his eyes and wouldn't open 
them to look at what he had done. It was so cute to see 
him do that, darling. I couldn't stop laughing. 

​  Went to [your] Mom's for supper. Margie was there too. 
Mom expected Norm42 to call and she wanted me there to 
say hello.  Well, he did call and the poor kid has another 

42 Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy had just enlisted in the Army. 

41 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born days ago, Philip 
Henry Geetter. 
 

40 Grand Island Army Air Base in Grand Island, Nebraska. 
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cold. It seems that he has been getting them one after the other.  Other than that, he is fine 
and he asked all about you. 

​  Darling,  guess what we had for supper?  I guess you hit it right -  fish. It was good 
and I enjoyed it. 

​  Today I went into the restaurant43 to see Dad. Bill was in the back of the store talking 
to the man, and he didn't recognize me.  He told the man that there's a good looking girl, 
and he was going to have a little fun. Was he embarrassed to find out it was his niece.  Well, I 
always did like young uncles. 

​  I tried on the pants you sent home in your foot locker.  I had a lot of trouble figuring 
out how they worked but I finally did it. They feel so soft and they sure are warm -  I don't 
know how you could feel cold in those, darling. 

​  It is so much better to see the lights on throughout the city.  Everything looks so 
much more alive.  However, it won't feel like home again until you are here with me - I do 
love you so much darling.  Well, whenever it [is] that you come home again, I know it will 
make me the happiest person in the world… As each day passes, I know it is one day closer 
to that day. So goodnight my darling and take good care of yourself. I love you. 

Love,          ​
Sylvia​

 

 

 

43 Arthur Levy operated a restaurant onTrumbull St.  in Downtown Hartford, Connecticut. 
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Grand Island, Nebraska
44

 

Friday​
[December 3, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ I've seen Grand Island, and that's about all I can say for it.  

Remember how dead Hartford was before the war?  Well this city is even 

deader.   

 

 

We got into town about eight-thirty. There wasn't a soul on the streets.  

We walked around for about an hour looking for some excitement and 

wound up where we started -  the Hotel Yancey, where Chris,
45

 Rock
46

 

and I took a room for the night.  In the lobby we met the fellows from 

crew #19, and we decided to go to the one hot spot of the town. We called 

the cab and off we went to the Log Cabin; we got there and found a 

46 Raymond (Rock)  Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

45 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

44  Written on engraved stationery with an imprint of Army Air Force Base, Grand Island, Nebraska in a plain 

envelope. 
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shack,  nothing more, so off we went back to the hotel, where we sat 

around in the room talking until twelve, when the boys went back to the 

base and we went to sleep. That was our trip to the city. 

​ Nothing new has developed here for our crew.  We are still hanging 

around waiting for something to happen. Chris, Rock and I cornered the 

Major yesterday and asked him what was in store for us.  He wouldn't 

tell us,naturally, but did say that we were getting the best deal of all.  

What he meant by that, we don't know, nor can we find out anything 

more. All we can do is sit and wait. Meanwhile,we are getting a very good 

rest, taking a nap whenever we so feel…  

​ Some of the crews are leaving tomorrow; and still others in a few 

days; that will leave us here alone. 

​ The money is for you Syl, use as much of it as you need for 

yourself. If there is any left you can put it in the bank. Next month you 

should receive the first check; if after a week or two you don't get it, let 

me know and I'll take care of it. If you… need more, let me know… and 

I'll see that you get it. 

​ I'm waiting on pins and needles for your first letter - there are so 

many things I want to know; all about your trip, how everybody is at 

home, about your prospects of a job, in fact everything. So if you've left 

any of these questions unanswered, make sure that your next letter 

takes care of it. 
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The Flying Fortress - Boeing B-17 G
47

 

 

​ ​  If you see David and Albert… tell them that the plane I'm to 

be in will be the new Fortress with the improvised chin turret. Outside of 

one other plane, the B-29, this is the most deadly bomber in the air. By 

the way, one of the rumors has us going to a B-29 field - If this comes 

true,  it will be the answer to all our dreams. It is by far the safest and 

best ship to be in. It is so big that they use the 17s for fighter escort! 

​ ​  Had I… known that I was to be here so long… I surely would 

have had you come out here. Chris and I are both kicking ourselves for 

not having any foresight. I remarked to the Major that I would like to 

wire you to come out here, but he said it would be foolish as he thinks 

we might leave here the first part of the week. 

​ ​  I'm acquiring a few souvenirs for you and also something I 

think you'll appreciate very much, a whole box of gum, and just as soon 

47 The Boeing B-17 Flying Fortress is an American four-engined heavy bomber aircraft developed in the 1930s for 
the United States Army Air Corps. A fast and high-flying bomber, the B-17 dropped more bombs than any other 
aircraft during World War II, used primarily in the European Theater of Operations. It is the third-most produced 
bomber in history, behind the American four-engined Consolidated B-24 Liberator and the German multirole, 
twin-engined Junkers  
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as I get a hold of some wrapping paper, I'll mail them to you. Our 

scrapbook must be getting pretty thick -  don't ever stop putting things 

into it sweetheart. Someday we all have a lot of fun looking through it in 

our own home.
48

 

​ ​  Like all letters, this one too must come to an end and this is 

it. Before I say goodnight though, I want to tell you again that I miss you 

and love you very, very much. ‘S funny, but I never get tired of saying or 

writing that. 

​ ​  Goodnight darling 

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

​ ​  

 

 

 

​ ​ Talking to you Saturday was like being in heaven for five  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48 This does in fact occur, but the scrapbook later is lost. 
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December 5 [1943] - Sunday 

Darling ~ 

​ After today, I realized I have missed my preferred vocation - that of being a maid. 
After cleaning the house here, Natie49 called me and asked me to please come over and help 
him clean up [his] house as Lil was coming home this afternoon, and the house was a mess. 
So, I've been there until now, and it is now a quarter to six. Lil looks fine and the baby, as 
tiny as he is, is the image of Natie. He looks so much like Natie that I was expecting him to 
say something typical of Natie's dry humor. It's amazing how a little thing less than six 
pounds can take over an entire household. It's definite that he's the king now. 

​ Darling, I can't tell you how very happy I was to talk with you. Yesterday afternoon, I 
went to the show with Margie50 and Butch and I told them I wanted to go directly home as I 
had a premonition you would call. My darling, I only wish I could have been with you - I do 
miss you so very much. I'm glad that you are well and so far, although not much seems to be 
happening, everything is going along fine. I love you very much dear, and please try to keep 
me as informed as you can. 

​ Your letters were read by me at least six times. I bet I could tell you what each letter 
says by heart. By the way hon, what does the army do to cure the boys of body lice? How is 
Rock51 - I really feel sorry for him. Give my regards to him and Chris52. Tell Rock I want him 
to start gaining weight in case he hasn't started to yet. You tell me that Monopoly is the rage 
in Nebraska. How that brings me back to the days I worked in the toy department53. Every 
time a customer asked me how it was played, I made up rules of my own. At least I know it 
is a game where you buy and sell real estate - am I right, hon? 

​ I met Margie downtown yesterday and we ran into Frances54 on our way to the show. 
She looked the same and told] me… Boomey55 is going to go for some more schooling, 
somewhere. It was all very indefinite - perhaps you know more what it is - do you? We went 

55  Adolf (Boomey) Siegel is a friend of Sylvia’s. They both graduated from Weaver High School in 1938. 
 

54 Frances is a friend of Sylvia, who is engaged to Booney Siegel. 
 

53 Sylvia worked at G. Fox & Co. the department store in Hartford, Connecticut 

52  Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

51 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

50 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. 

49 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born days ago, Philip 

Henry Geetter. 
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to the Allyn56 and saw True To Life with Dick Powell And Mary Martin. It was a comedy and I 
enjoyed it.  

 

​ In regards to my job, I called yesterday morning 
and he told me to report to work Monday 
morning. I then called the Crystal Research 
Laboratories in regard to the job I wrote to you 
about and told them I didn't think I was suited to 
the job they wanted to hire me for and I thanked 
the man for letting me think it over. He was very 
nice and thanked me for being so honest about it. 

​ Tonight [your] Mom and Dad are going to Jesse's 
house. This is the first time they have been there 
since Jesse and Buster were married. I think she is 
having most of the aunts and uncles over there 
tonight. 

​ Sweetheart I will be at your mom's house Tuesday 
night and I do hope you will be able to call. I wish 
it were possible for us to talk more than five 
minutes – five minutes is such a short time.  

Well at least we can always write, so that's something. Until tomorrow, when I will write you 
again - I love you darling and take care of yourself - 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

P.S.   That something new you added to your last letter made me laugh - it was a cute way of 
putting it - my schmotte husband. I do love you so  

 

 

 

 

56 The Allyn Theatre was a performing arts venue which showed feature films at 207 Asylum Ave. in downtown 

Hartford. 
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Grand Island, Nebraska
57

 

Monday​
[December 6, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ ​ Talking to you Saturday was like being in heaven for five 

minutes.  I had no idea that I could ever miss anybody the way I do you.  

There is just a constant growing in my heart; everything I see or do 

brings back a memory of something we did together, or something you 

said.  Without frills, my darling, I love you. 

 

​ ​  After talking to you I went out to the Log Cabin where I felt so 

good for having talked to you, I had a few drinks, a couple of dances and 

called it a night. Yesterday we hung around waiting for some news about 

what is going to happen to us, therefore no letter yesterday; at night 

Chris
58

, Rock
59

 and I went to a public dance where, because we’re officers 

59  Raymond (Rock)  Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
 

58  Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew.​
 

57  Written on  plain stationery in an envelope from Hotel Yancey. 
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and because there are so few crews here, we had a fairly good time. The 

combat crews run this town - nothing is too good for us. We stayed in 

town last night,
60

Chris and I, in one room, and Rock by himself.  

​ ​  One thing I've learned about the city of Grand Island is that 

it is a very curious town with perhaps a reason behind it all.  The place is 

that nine-tenths  German and they know more about what goes on than 

even the cadet wives did back in Monroe. Not only that, but they flaunt 

their knowledge and then try to find out more. ( I met a girl at a dance 

who claimed to be a blood relative of Rudolph Hess.)  We've naturally 

been told to keep our mouths shut, but give some fellows a few drinks 

and they have no secrets. The girl mentioned above knew my army life 

from the time I started school back in Monroe; she told me where I'd 

been and how long I'd been there. I tried to find out from her what is 

going to happen to us but she either didn't know or wouldn't talk. 

​ ​  What I'm going to write now my darling, I'd much rather tell 

you over the phone tomorrow, but I don't dare;  I'm even afraid to write 

it, but it's such good news that I'm going to have to hint at it. There is a 

very strong rumor making the rounds that we are to be stationed in this 

country for at least four months.  Do you remember a fellow from 

Hartford who used to take you out, [who] joined the Navy? We are to do 

the same type of work that he did. I'm telling you this only because it is 

such a good rumor, but as always don't put too much stock in it - you 

know army rumors by now.  

​ ​  So you landed a job on your own terms?  I'm impatiently 

awaiting your letters to find out what they were.  How does it feel to be 

working in the same place as Nate?  There are so many things I want to 

know. I hope your letters answer all my questions. 

​ ​  Life has settled down into a groove that is more like a rut.  

We've become so bored that we play Monopoly for money just to help 

time go by. Right now there is a crap game going on here, and the fellows 

are playing not for the thrill of gambling, but because they're simply 

bored. My will is still strong enough to keep away from it, but I'm slowly 

weakening. 

60  Probably at the Hotel Yancey. 
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​ ​  That, Butch, is all the news I can think of, now to go back to 

something old but always a pleasure to write about. That is the subject of 

my love for you - something that nobody has more of than me…  You 

know by now sweetheart that I cannot write fancy phrases or make 

with… flowering talk, so I am afraid that you'll have to be content with I 

love you; but with all my heart. 

 

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

 

Regards to all ​
​ L. 
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December 6 [1943] - Monday 

Darling ~ 

​ Once again I’m a working girl61.  I am ashamed to admit it but darling I am dead 
tired.  It wouldn't be fair to say whether I like my job or not because it is so new and I can't 
say.  I met Natie62  in front of his house, and we walked to work. It is a long walk63 to Capitol 
Ave, but it is better than having to stand on a crowded bus.  I got there on time - we have to 
be there at 8:15.  The man to whom I was to report is in New York, so I sat there until 
someone finally took care of me. I had forms to fill out in the employment office and I was 

told not to tell the other girls I was receiving sixty cents an 
hour…. I told him that I wouldn't work for less, so that settled 
the matter.  

         I get a $24 exemption on my salary and over that I am taxed 
for the income tax.  That $24 is allowed to married girls whose 
husbands are in the Army and his rank is not [above] a First 
Lieutenant.  So, darling, as soon as they make you a First 
Lieutenant, I get just a $12 deduction. I don't know just why they 
figure it that way - perhaps you can tell me.  

        I guess you are wondering what kind of a job I have - well I do bookkeeping. It 
is different from what I have always done, but the experience I had in the Hartford Accident 
[Insurance  Co.] figuring premiums and using the calculating machine certainly is a great help 
to me now. See now that I won't have much time to 
throw spitballs as everybody has enough to do -  
there is no fooling at all.   

I do bookkeeping on all accounts receivable.  
I have all the accounts in the Ms - that is, all names 
that start with M.  I don't work in the same building 
as Nate, but I ate lunch with him today.  I sit next to 
a window and I caught myself looking out of it and 
daydreaming.  Nice way to start isn't it, dear?  How 
short of help they are, four girls left my department 
Saturday, to get married. It's too bad I couldn't meet 
them and give them an old timer's point of view on 
marriage. When I got through talking with them, 

63 About 1.5 miles.  

62 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born days ago, Philip 
Henry Geetter. 

61 Sylvia worked at Associated Transport. 436 Capitol Ave., which was one of the largest Transportation Companies 
in the country at the time. They were in a period of growth and mergers. 
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they would be sure that being married to the right person [surpasses] any happiness in the 
world. 

 

 

​  A notice came around this afternoon giving the girls permission to smoke at their 
desks while working, because the company cannot afford the time wasted when the girls go 
to the ladies room to smoke. Oh yes. one more thing about my job -  I had my hours all 
mixed up.  I work from 8:15 to 5:00 o'clock and have ¾ of an hour for lunch from 11:45 to 
12:30;  and we work until 11:45 on Saturday. So far, the girls seem to be very nice but 
everybody is kept so busy, that there is no time for social visits like I was accustomed to in 
the Retail Credit Co64..  Well at least I will get my wish,  my mind will be kept busy. 

​  Honey, I received [the] money order in your letter today. There is nothing I need and, 
as I said, I'm going to put it into the bank. Now that I'm working, I'll be able to meet all of 
my expenses. Now darling don't forget -  if you have any money left when you are paid, send 
it home and let me put it away -  I'm sure we will need every cent we can save for the future, 
and I know that you want to be able to start out right, when that future becomes the present. 

​  The news of your having the new model B-17 is very good. I hope that the rumors 
of you flying the B-29 come true. At least such good news compensates, to an extent, for 
your hanging around.  I wish I could be with you to pass the time away… I am certainly 
thinking of you and praying that everything turns out for the best. 

​  You remember in one of your first letters you kidded me about not getting the urge.  I 
forgot to tell you this and it just came to mind. When I went to Lawyer Kotchen to explain 
my will,  as I wrote before,  he took me home.  Well, we got into a conversation on war 
marriages, and he asked me to forgive him if he asked a personal question. He asked me if I 
ever got the desire for relationships, since your leave. When I asked him why he asked that 

64 Sylvia also worked at the Retail Credit Company. By the 1940s, Retail Credit Co. was one of the nation's largest 
credit bureaus, holding files on millions of American citizens. It now operates as one of the “Big Three” credit 
bureau, Equifax. 
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question, he said that in his cases, he has found… that married women desire relationships…  
when their husbands leave and it consequently leads to trouble in the courts. Truthfully, his 
asking me this made me very embarrassed…  

It is improbable that I'd ever have… desire for any other man, but my husband. I'm 
sure he wanted to discuss it further, but I guess he realized he had approached the wrong 
person… The girls he had in mind were those that wanted to try some new experiments, or 
else those that were afraid of becoming old maids, if they didn't hurry up… I believe the 
majority of army wives, married for one reason, and that is purely for love. I know I did, and 
nothing or nobody will ever change my mind.  I do love you so very much, darling. 

​  In your letter, you mentioned your trip to the Log Cabin. It must be like the one past 
Meriden - although I have never been in it. 

​  Yes hon,  I am keeping up my scrapbook. I can't tell you how much pleasure I derive 
from putting things in it. Each thing is a memory, and they are memories filled with such 
happiness. If  I'm not putting something in it, I am looking through it. Hon, I'm afraid I'll 
wear it out. Please send me all the souvenirs, and any item you think will be of interest and 
you want to save. 

​  Darling as far as the chewing gum is concerned - a whole box too - I must say that it 
is something. Thank you for thinking of it and I can double assure you - I certainly 
appreciate your thoughtfulness.  Why I'm going to chew my head off -  what a swell time I'll 
have! 

​  How do you  like how my new pen writes?  No sweet; it's not as good as yours. In 
fact, it is nowhere near as nice, but it is all I need - it doesn't leak all over my hand.  I bought 
it in Gustave Fischer’s65 and it was three dollars. It writes very well and it is guaranteed - and the 
way I lose pens -  this one is good enough. Hon, how does your pen write? It looks like it 
writes very well. I hope so, because you have to use a pen [so often.] I am keeping my eyes 
open for a pencil to match it, and… as soon as I do… I'm going to get it for you. 

​  Honey,  Main Street66 is so crowded. I went to the jewelers (Mr. Kurland) tonight 
after work to have him fix my diamond.  Before I get off the subject - I was talking about the 
crowds - oh yes, it is so crowded. Why it’s just like New York - honest, hon.  I hate to do any 
shopping now - it is almost impossible. Now to get back to my ring. You remember what I 
told you the jeweler in Alexandria said about fixing the diamond on the side so that it would 
be tight -  they said I needed a new setting. Well, Mr. Kurland is going to tighten it, and he 
says the setting is perfectly all right, and it can be easily done.  So I will get it tomorrow 

66 Downtown Hartford 

65 Connecticut's oldest office supplies company — Gustave Fischer, founded in 1899 had a store in 
Downtown Hartford. 
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night. I will feel much better when I wear it now, because I was worried about losing the 
stone.  

​  Oh, my hand hurts!  I've been doing so much writing today, and working the [adding] 
machine has made my lazy hands ache at the wrists. These past six months have made me 
into a real sissy. Well, it won't take long, and I'll be able to take it again.  So, I better get to 
bed now and rest. I'm looking forward to tomorrow night.  I hope you will be able to call, 
and I'll be able to speak with you again. I hope you are well darling, and here's my kiss 
goodnight   X  and I love you sweetheart. 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

 

 

 

 

Main St. Downtown Hartford 
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Grand Island, Nebraska
67

 

Wednesday​
[December 8, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ All day long, I've been waiting for tonight, so that I could talk to you 

and then the five minutes just flew by, and half the things I wanted to 

say went unsaid. 

​ As I told you over the phone, today was a very busy day for us; we 

finally went through ‘processing.’ Now we're ready to leave here. The 

Army is making sure that we leave this country with enough equipment. 

Despite all the stuff I got at the Sub Depot in Alex
68

, I still needed more 

and they gave it to me here. Of course, they took some of my original 

issue away, so I don't have too much, but packing is still going to be a 

problem. The equipment issued to us has no clue as to where we are 

going, and we are still in the dark as to our destination. 

​ Last night after the call, Chris
69

 and Rock
70

 and I went to town - it 

turned out that our enlisted men were waiting for us with plenty of liquor 

for one last fling. I'm sorry to report that your husband came back to 

camp slightly worse for wear! (It won't happen again, but I just couldn't 

back out.) They wanted us to come out again tonight, but I turned it 

down because of a number of reasons - one of them being that I didn't 

want to get the habit. 

​ I can't quite explain what happened last night. I felt fine until I 

started to talk on the phone, and then I got extremely nervous. On top of 

that, when you told me that Dad had a bad cold and he didn't come to 

the phone, after I told mom that the call was goodbye – well, you can 

imagine how I felt. I guess the fact that I knew then, that I was to leave 

70 Raymond (Rock)  Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

69 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

68 Alexandria Army Air Base,  Alexandria, Louisiana 

67 Written on  Alexandria Army Air Base stationery. 
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very soon had a lot to do with my feelings. My darling, I'm very anxious 

to go and get it over with but I'm going to miss you terribly if what I'm 

going through now is any inkling of what is to come. 

​ ​ About the Power Of Attorney and the will, my darling, I think 

you have been misinformed. If I'm correct in thinking the way I do, this 

will supersede anything I've ever done before, in the way of naming a 

beneficiary. You had better check on it again, but that is what they told 

me when I asked about it today. The Power Of Attorney also covers 

anything that might possibly come up - I don't understand why anybody 

should tell you differently. The form that you sent me merely gives you 

control of my bank account, while the [Powers Of Attorney] you have, 

plus the five extra ones I've [sent] you, cover everything including the 

bank account…  

​ Sometime tomorrow, I'm sending out a package of clothing and 

stuff that I was told not to take along. Some of the stuff, namely the box 

of gum and the souvenirs are for you; tell Mom to put the clothing away 

as I may need it someday - the pants will come in handy when I'm 

working in our garden, and the jacket goes with the heavy pants - if it 

fits, wear it! 

​ ​ As for the situation (and it is a situation) That Norm
71

 and 

Margie
72

 got themselves into about all I can say is TS. That's a rather 

crude way of saying it, but they have nobody but themselves to blame. 

I'm sure that, had they taken the pains that we did, it could have been 

prevented. I can't understand why Mom makes no mention of it, but be 

assured that I won't let on to her that I know. It will be up to you to keep 

me informed as to developments. Only after reading your letter, did I 

realize how happy I was in not leaving you in the same way. It is only 

natural for me to want a child, and I want one very much, but I want to 

be there when it's born and I know that you feel the same way about it. 

​ ​ I am ashamed of myself for not writing Sunday and then 

going to the dance that night, but there just wasn't anything to write 

about. Until today we did absolutely nothing and I couldn't write about 

72  Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant for the first time. 

71  Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy has enlisted in the Army. 
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that. If you were here I'd hang my head until you said that you forgave 

the baby… I will wait anxiously for your letter saying you do forgive me. 

​ Sweetheart, I meant just what I said when I asked you not to worry. 

It will do neither one of us any good and besides I have a strong feeling 

that it won't be too long before I am home with you.  

​ While speaking to you tonight, I told you three times that I love you 

but I wanted to say it three hundred times, because my darling I do, 

more than life itself. Believe me when I say that there is nothing in the 

world strong enough to keep us apart. Someday my darling, I'll come 

home to you and we’ll begin to really enjoy our love for each other. 

There'll be no cloud hanging over us, and we'll bring into reality all the 

dreams we've dreamed these past six months - the happiest months that 

anyone ever spent. 

​ Before I start to cry I'd better say goodnight -  

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

Regards to all the family -​
say goodbye for me 

​ Love​
​ L. 

 

 

By the way how do you like​
the way my new pen write?​
​ ​ ​ Love​
​ ​ ​ L 

 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ I had to get it in an ​
​ ​ ​ ​ ​ extra time or two tonight  

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ L. 
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Grand Island, Nebraska 

Thursday​
[December 9, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ ​ Another day has gone by and we are still here, and if the 

snow continues we'll be here indefinitely. Today had a special meaning 

for me - it is just one year since I first left you standing on the platform 

with your eyes filled to the brim. 

​ ​ It's been a long year my sweetheart and a good one. It's seen 

a lot of things happen to you, me, and us; and we've been married three 

days less than six months. I’m an officer n the Air Corp
73

 and we've been 

together longer than I thought the Army would permit. Last year this 

time, I had no idea I'd still be in the States tonight. 

​ Today saw us back in the old routine of doing nothing and mighty 

thankful we were for it… as it was perfectly miserable outdoors… It was 

snowing when we came in for supper and for all I know, it still is. 

​ Do you remember how I used to say that the Co-pilot was weird?…  

He was at the dance with us the other night and ever since then, he has 

been talking about the wonderful girl he met… and how he would like to 

marry her. Asked how old she was, he said seventeen! For four days, 

we've heard nothing… except his girl and how he would rather stay here 

with her… than go to combat, if only her mother would give consent to 

the marriage. Well today we met her - and I had all I could do to control 

myself from laughing in his face. As Rock put it, I've seen better faces on 

clocks and better hands on a 5-cent beer. She is nothing more than a 

silly kid - 10 years younger than he - just nuts I call him. 

​  The army changed its mind again about foot-lockers. Oh, it's a 

good thing I told you not to bother sending it out to me. They did, 

however, say it was all right to pack our navigation supplies in a 

cardboard box so your Schmatt husband got one slightly smaller than a 

73 The United States Air Force became a separate military service on September 18, 1947, with the implementation 

of the National Security Act of 1947. Prior to that, military aviation was part of the Army and Navy.  
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locker, and now I have got too much room. I'm all packed, just waiting for 

the word to go. 

​ I realize it's too soon to judge your new job, but it does sound 

rather good. It is a little different from your other jobs, and] you'll gain a 

new kind of experience. I can't enlighten you on the exemption you wrote 

about, as I've never heard about it before. The only reason I can think of 

is that any rank over a first, pays enough so… the wife shouldn't have 

any hardship. 

​ Darling, if this letter is rather short tonight, it's because my cold 

has gone to my head, and my eyes are watering and my nose is running. 

Just as soon as I finish this, I'm going to have the chef fix me a hot glass 

of tea and then I'm going to bed with plenty of blankets. If only I had you 

to snuggle up too tonight - boy do I miss that! 

​ ​ Not once in almost four pages, have I told you that I love you, 

my darling, but I do, really I do. I guess the reason I feel so low these 

past few days is because I'm beginning to appreciate just how much I 

love you and how lonely I can be, in the largest crowds, when you're not 

around. Until tomorrow my darling, I love you goodnight  

 

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

 

Regards to all  

​ L. 

 

This letter is coming free because I've been told it travels faster, That way 

let me know.​
​ ​ ​ Love​
​ ​ ​ Lenny 

 

Grand Island, Nebraska 
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Friday​
[December 10, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ ​ It's beginning to look like my goodbye was a bit premature. 

True enough we went through processing but again they seem to have 

forgotten about us. As a rule, the day following processing is the time a 

crew is put on the alert but we have heard no more since. The Esquire 

Room is becoming a second home to us - in fact we are beginning to look 

like the fixtures of the place. 

​ ​ Dr Levy, that's me, cured a cold last night with a dose of 

medicine, a capsule of something or other, and plenty of heat. After 

mailing your letter I took some medicine that Lieutenant Kisk, our flight 

surgeon prescribed, fired up the stove, and got into bed. I piled plenty of 

blankets over me and before I knew it I was drenched with perspiration. 

This morning, when I got up, I felt fine - no runny nose and no sore 

throat. 

​ ​ In last night's letter, I told you about the Co-pilot
74

 and his 

latest romance. He naturally thinks her the one girl in a million, and the 

purest of pure. Well from two different services, we've heard that she is 

nothing but a tramp. None of us know… how to tell him about it, without 

causing ill feelings, but at the same time, he is the laughingstock of the 

entire post. His only salvation is that we leave here before they have time 

to get married. 

​ Rock
75

 is now the happiest man on the base; when I went through 

processing I claimed that my wristwatch was missing and after signing a 

half-dozen forms and seeing a few officers, they finally issued me another 

watch for the sum of fourteen dollars and change. Chris
76

, the Co-pilot 

and the Radio Man
77

 were also issued watches and they… spend all their 

77  William Burtle Mayne is the Radio Operator of Lenny’s crew 

76 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

75 Raymond (Rock)  Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

74 Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington is the Co-pilot of Lenny’s crew 
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time comparing the times they have. I say times because no two of them 

agree within a minute, and yelling ‘Hack’ at each other, mimicking the 

squadron Navigator when he gives us a Time Tick.  

​ Time is really beginning to hang heavy on our hands now. Even 

Monopoly holds no interest for us. If only you, my darling were here with 

me, then the days and nights would be so damn short. Why couldn't we 

have foreseen the way things were to happen? In the past two weeks we 

would have seen more of each other than we had in months. I suppose 

that's the way things were meant to be, so I guess there is no use crying 

about it - but I do miss you so much my darling.  I lie in bed nights just 

thinking of you and the times we had and then I start making plans for 

the years that are ahead of us. My darling if only half my plans come 

true, we will be the happiest couple ever. Just keep your fingers crossed, 

your hopes high, and listen to nothing but good news until the day I can 

hold you in my arms again. I love you my sweetheart - any one can have 

a wife but there are very few fellows who are as lucky as I in having a 

wife and a sweetheart all in one. 

​ ​ Up until tomorrow my darling  

 

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx​

Lenny 

 

 

Regards to all  

​ L. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 462 



 

December 11, 1943​
Saturday nite ~ 

Darling ~ 

​ As I wrote the above address, I realized that tomorrow is December 12 and it will be 
our six-month anniversary. Isn't time going by so quickly? It seems just like yesterday, we 
were married. I do hope that the time for you to be home again will pass as quickly. It was 
such heaven when we were together and I miss you so. 

​ I received your letter today - the one you wrote to me Wednesday night and I enjoyed 
it immensely. I must admit I cried when I read it. The main reason for the tears was that I 
could just hear you saying what you wrote and darling it just hit home. 

​ I'm not angry for your not writing that Sunday night. If there wasn't anything to 
write, well hun, they're just wasn't anything to write, and of course I forgive my baby. Now 

you can pick up your head.  

​ Oh, was it cold today! I awoke 
about two this morning because I 
heard the window shade blowing. I 
got up to close the window and I 
couldn't see a thing - the snow was 
blowing all over and the wind was so 
strong I thought we were having 
another hurricane. This morning 
when I got up to go to work I looked 
and expecting to see a deep snowfall, 
I was surprised to see practically no 
snow on the ground. We had just a 
little snow but the impression I had 
during the night was the wind 

blowing and the snow through the air. It just didn't fall on the ground. The wind has been 
terrific all day and there were a good many hats blown all over Main Street today. 

​ I haven't written to you since we called as I planned to write one big long letter 
tonight and give all of the latest news to date. 

​ Honey, I think of you so much, wondering how you are, where you are, and just how 
things are coming along. Golly, how I wish I were a fellow right now and I could be with 
you. Honey, I love you so much. 
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​ I received a postcard from Eleanor78 yesterday; it was from New Orleans79. She's 
there for a week, as Sam has gone somewhere for a week. She said it is something to see and 
she misses me. I know for a fact that I miss her. I guess we are two peas of the same pod. 

​ Honey, I wanted a job that would keep my mind occupied and I sure got my wish. It 
is one job where there is no time to do any fooling and by five o'clock I am tired. It's 
interesting work… I am learning bookkeeping which is good experience. We have more 
work than we have time for, and my boss asked us to work until seven on Monday and 
Tuesday nights. Most of the girls work overtime every night, but I hope I won't have to. 

​ … My ring is causing a general course of conversation in the office - everybody 
remarks on how beautiful it is and what a rock it is! … I am so proud of it darling and I 
think it is the most beautiful ring I have ever seen - it has such a beautiful luster. I like to 
imagine that the reason why it sparkles is because it is just radiating our love. One of the girls 
in my office said that her attention was called to it because it threw a ray of light in her eyes. 
I guess it picked up the sunlight - it is just like a mirror, then and it throws off all the colors 
of the rainbow. 

​ I met Jackie Siegel's girlfriend on the bus the other day and she told me that Jackie is 
coming home on furlough…  in a few weeks and if he comes home she intends to get 
married… It can't be definite, because the furlough is still an if.  I bet when Boomey80 hears 
about his kid brother beating him to the punch, he might feel jealous. When he was home on 
sick leave, it would have been an ideal time for him to get married… She told me that when 
she came back from visiting Boomey… she wasn't sure she was in love with Boomey, but he 
was about the best fellow… to be engaged to, but as far as marriage was concerned she 
wasn't sure of that.  

​ Honey, I hope you don't feel badly because Dad didn't come to the phone to say 
goodbye. He really wasn't very sick darling, he just had a cold and you know how colds affect 
him. He went to bed early and he told Mom to wake him up if he fell asleep when you 
called… When you did call, he was fast asleep. I guess Mom thought she’d rather let him 
sleep. He did want to say goodbye but Mom was worried about him and she wanted him to 
get some rest. He's fine now and his cold is all gone. 

80 Adolf (Boomey) Siegel is a friend of Sylvia’s. They both graduated from Weaver High School in 1938. 
 

79 Sam has been reassigned to another base near New Orleans. 
 

78 Eleanor (Kohn) Ellison married Sam Ellison, a friend of Lenny’s who also trained with him at Alexandria Army 
and Air Force Base, and would soon join him at the same Air Base in England. 
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Mom went to New York for the weekend and expects to be back Monday night. She 
left at nine o'clock this morning. I guess she is going to see Lou81's wife’s baby. In case you 
don't know this, Lou's wife was in and apt. in Brooklyn and he's living there now. 

​ Ruth Schachter called me last week and I wasn't home at the time so I called her 
Thursday night. Walt is in Africa. She told me the unusual way he found out that he had a 
son. He left four days before she had her baby and… she gave birth two weeks before time. 
She sent a cable through the American Red Cross and he never received it. While she was in 
the hospital, she wrote to Walt's best friend, who was in Sicily and announced her son's 
arrival. This is the coincidence - Walt was flying and he had a stop in Sicily, so he went to see 
his friend. They haven't seen each other in over a year. They were reading, when the mail 
arrived, and his friend got the letter… that Ruthie had written to him. So, by his being there 
just at that particular time he found out that his son was born. Isn't that a coincidence, hon? 

​ As far as Margie82 is concerned, she is fine. Of course she and Norm83 have a real 
problem on their hands and it is a shame they couldn't have waited. I guess the reason Mom 
didn't want to tell you, like most of the things she doesn't tell you, is because she's afraid you 
will worry. You know how Mom worries about things, and I guess she feels that you will. 
However, one good thing about it is that the government pays for all her doctor and hospital 
bills, and for a year's doctors care for the baby. This is furnished for the wives of the four 
lower brackets of the army. So hon, That is a real break because that does cost quite a good 
deal of money. 

​ Today I met Margie and Rosalyn, she's a 
girl I met at work downtown. We went to the 
Capital84 [Theatre] and saw Government Girl with 
Olivia DeHaviland and Sonny Tufts. He's the 
fellow that was Paulette Goddard's boyfriend in 
that picture So Proudly We Hail, remember? It was 
good but I expected it to be better. After we got 
out of the movies, Margie and I went shopping 
for Hanukkah gifts for the folks and, as the stores 
were open until nine tonight, we had the time. We 

84 The Poli’s Capitol Theatre was opened on August 28, 1920 with George M. Cohan heading a vaudeville bill which 
also included Eddie Foy & his family. Built on the site of the Coliseum Theatre and later 1903 built Poli Theatre, it 
was designed by Thomas W. Lamb. It was equipped with an organ. It was later known as the Fox-Poli Theatre before 
finally becoming the Loew’s Poli Theatre. Located at 591 Main Street, this was perhaps the most elegant theatre in 
Hartford. 

83 Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy is trying to enlist in the Army. 
 

82 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. 
 

81 Louis (Lou) Levy is Lenny’s uncle. 
 

Page 465 



 

got Dad a snazzy sport shirt to wear on Sunday - a gray and yellow plaid - and we got Mom 
some nice perfume and lipstick. I got my mom a telephone table - ever since I can remember 
my mom's been wishing for something to put the telephone on - Now she will have it. I 
know that is something she really wants.  

​ Darling, you ask me not to worry about you, hon; I won't worry but I want you to 
know that I'll be thinking of you constantly and I'll be praying that you are well and home 
soon. That is something I couldn't help but do and I don't think you would call that 
worrying. I'll take faith in the fact that everything that has happened to us… has been for the 
best, and whatever is to happen will [also] be for the best. As you say, let's keep feeling that it 
won't be long before you are home again and we can go on being the very happy Mr. and 
Mrs. we were when we were together. I love you darling - oh how I love you. 

​ Hon, everybody likes the brown hat that you said looks like a Pot Lid. I guess I look 
like the tomboy I am. 

​ I want to finish my rug and get something new to work on for our home. I'm forever 
looking at pictures in magazines on home furnishings. I keep imagining what our home is 
going to be like. It is so strange how a person can change. I never took any interest in such 
things but now it fascinates me. I'd like our home not to be just ordinary but very different 
and yet beautiful. 

​ Honey, I received a letter from the insurance company in regards to the policy that 
has come due and there is a $75 payment in it. They are going to send an agent here and I 
am going to show my Power Of Attorney and receive the payment. In regards to the copies of 
the Power Of Attorney you are sending me, I am glad you have taken the trouble to do that. I 
am sure it will be sufficient for all matters that might arise…  In regards to the will, I don't 
know what to say. Lawyer Kotchen told me that as far as war bonds are concerned, in order 
to change the beneficiary… a will…  does not cover it - if you want it changed, either you 
bring the bonds and have the beneficiary changed or the beneficiary can do it. If you have an 
insurance policy at home, the same applies to it… I don't know whether you do have any 
insurance at home, you never said. However, I know that Norman wrote to Mom and asked 
her to change his property to Margie. As I said before it's up to you and whatever you intend 
to do about it let me know won't you dear?... I hope I don't sound grasping darling because 
you know I feel about these things, but being your wife these things just have to be taken 
care of and I guess it is one of the responsibilities you assume when you get married - poor 
kid! 
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​ If all goes well I intend to go to New Britain tomorrow to see the family. My mom is 
sleeping at Faye85’s house tonight. She took care of Holly86 and Betty May87 so that Faye 
could go downtown for a while and do some shopping. 

​ It is so cold in the house tonight, my nose feels cold. That reminds me I miss your 
habit with noses, honey. 

​ Oh, was it mobbed downtown today. Of course, G. Foxe & Co. was the busiest and 
the front of the store was jammed with people trying to get in. I don't know how those 
inside got out. Maybe there's still in there do you think so honey? 

 

​ I am looking forward to the gum and souvenirs you sent me. You're such a good 
husband and I love you so much for it.  

​ I went into Sage’s88 today to see if they had that candy I want to send you that you 
liked so well, hon. The Candy Department is a joke now. They had peanuts and Maple Sugar 

88 Sage-Allen is a department store next to G. Fox’s on Main Street in Downtown Hartford. 

87 Elizabeth (Betty) May Weidman is seven years old 
 

86 Holly Weidman is one year old at the time 
 

85 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 
(Betty) May and Holly Suzanne 
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Candy. The selection was too varied, so I couldn't make up my mind… Consequently I 
bought nothing. 

​ I still have your ration books. As yet, I didn't find the time to return them and on 
thinking about it - I waited a long time to get them so I'll take my time in sending them back 
- I know I'm being a devil but heck I have time to be an angel when I die. Wouldn't I be 
surprised that when the time comes, I find myself with a pitchfork and a tail, instead of 
beautiful white wings and a harp! 

​ It is so quiet in the house, that the ticking of the clock sounds so loud. For a change, 
our neighbors are not arguing tonight. I think she has a sore throat and that's the reason.  

​ Oh my fingers hurt, I've been writing too long. You can see what a sissy those six 
months made out of me - well it won't be long before I'll be tough again.  

​ Your pen writes very nicely, hon. I have to brag about mine a little - mine doesn't 
leak! What a pleasure it is…  because I hated to write with a pen because, no sooner had I 
finished one sentence and my hand was covered with ink… Today my nose got so cold when 
I was downtown, I thought what a wonderful thing it would be to have nose-muffs, with 
automatic nose wipers in them so that you don't have to take your mittens off to get your 
hanky… [to] wipe your nose. Isn't that an idea, hun? I am so schmatt. I think it would be a 
good idea. 

​ Honey, wherever you are, I hope this letter finds you well and happy. I love you 
darling and please take good care of yourself. Give yourself a kiss for me. On second 
thought, just imagine it because you'd look silly kissing yourself - and you know me I'm 
never satisfied with one kiss: I'm such a she wolf! So my honey, I'll say goodnight now and, 
once more before I close this letter, I want to say I love you with all my heart - 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

And here is a great big X because it is now after 12:00 o'clock and it is our 6th month 
anniversary  

I love you          ​
Sylvia 
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Sunday  night ~ ​
[December 12, 1943] 

Darling ~ 

​ I never expected to talk to you today, but darling it was the best thing that could have 
happened. I kept thinking of you all day and the fact that it was our sixth month anniversary 
made me miss you so. It was a real honest to goodness pleasure to have longer than five 
minutes to talk. You sounded so much better in spirit, that it made me feel so much better. If 
only for that one reason - I am so thankful to be able to talk to you. I do love you so, my 
darling. 

​ You certainly expect quite a bit from your wife – twins! I'm afraid you are going to 
lose that bet, because I don't think I'll have twins. However, if it means very much to you… 
I'll see what we can do about it. 

​ So now I have a rival! Knobby! Honey, I bet he's as cute as he can be. If you ever take 
any snapshots of him please send me one. Hon, what perplexes me is how is he going to fly 
with you at 20,000 [feet]? Maybe he isn't going to fly with you, or are you having an oxygen 
mask made special for him? 

​ I'm so glad you were able to talk with Dad because I know he wanted to say goodbye 
to you. It is too bad that Mom had to be in New York - I know she would have been so 
happy to have been able to talk with you again.  

​ Yes, Issie89 is in the Navy I forgot just what his rank is but it is equivalent to a Major 
in the Army90. The reason why he wanted to go into the Navy is as I said he wanted to get 
out of the hospital91. You see, he was in line to be superintendent and [when] the 
superintendent retired… they told Issie that they were sorry, but being a Jew, he couldn't get 
it… After being there for so many years, and being in line for this [promotion] and that old 
story of being a Jew… isn't easy to take. So I guess he reasoned it all out very soundly, and 
going into the Navy must have some very definite advantages for him, or else he wouldn't do 
it. A man with a family of five children92 thinks very seriously of such a step before going on 
with it - so I guess he knows what he is doing.  

92  Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David 

Maranski, Albert Leonard, Thalia, Harold Paul and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the 

time this was written. 

91 Mt. Sinai Hospital is at 490 Blue Hills Ave. in Hartford, Conn. 

90  Issie has been offered a commission as a Commander, which is equivalent to the rank of lieutenant colonel in the 

United States Army. 

89 Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter has recently left his job at Mt. Sinai Hospital and enlisted in the 

Navy. 
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​ I was supposed to go to New Britain today, but it being so cold outside, I decided to 
stay home and take care of some things at home. Betty May93 was here all day and she kept 
me company. She is good company and I love to talk with her because she has such good 
power of reasoning for her age. You can't put anything over on her. She was in a very 
affectionate mood today and she kept telling me how much she loved me and how happy 
she is because I am home. 

​ As yet Nate94's baby hasn't been circumcised as he does not weigh enough. Well Lil 
shouldn't feel bad about the fact that he is a little baby, because they say little babies are 
healthier [than] larger children later on. Well, your cousin Newton can help prove the saying. 

​ I guess tonight's call was really goodbye. I'm so happy I was home and then of course 
that you were able to make the call. I hope that wherever you will be sent, it will be to your 
liking and goes along well. No matter where you are, I want you to know I'm always thinking 
of you, and I love you with all my heart. I'll pray constantly for you to be home soon, and 
this whole mess will be over soon. So goodnight darling I love you and, until tomorrow, 
when I'll write again ~ 

I love you​
X   XXX          ​

Sylvia​
 

Darling this great big X is for what today is our anniversary. Let's hope that when we 
celebrate our first year anniversary we will be together again - may God grant it. In the time 
you will be away, I have happiness in the thought of these past six months and it's amazing 
how pleasant memories can stay with you and help make things seem brighter. I am so 
thankful for these past six months and for what it has meant to me. It has proven to me that 
our love is a true love, and there is nothing more I could ever ask for, and I have happiness 
in knowing that I am your wife and someday we will go on where we left off ~ and our 
happiness will know no bounds. 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​

X 

 

94  Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born days ago, Philip 

Henry Geetter. 

93 Elizabeth (Betty) May Weidman was seven years old at the time. 
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Monday  night ~ ​
[December 13, 1943] 

Darling ~ 

​ Today has been a very uneventful day. I had a long day at work and there certainly 
was plenty to do. The reason why we had to work overtime was because there are so many 
letters that we have received that have to be taken care of, and answered…  It being the last 
of the year we are busy keeping our accounts in order during the day – oh, the life of the 
working girl! 

​ I received three copies of the Power Of Attorney and the letter starting your insurance 
that you have taken out. On reading over this copy of the Power Of Attorney, it is much more 
explicit than the ones you received at Alexandria. I have enough copies now and I can take 
care of things and not worry about running out of them. Thank you darling, for getting 
them. 

​ It is so cold today, I had to wait twenty minutes for the bus… and my toes got so 
cold. In fact, my feet are still cold. Now if you were here, I'd warm them on you when we 
got to bed. 

​ I wanted to call your mom tonight to find out about how the folks were in New York 
but Margie told me in our conversation tonight that Mom is at her club. I forgot this is 
Monday night.  

​ Hon, I miss you so much I'll never get used to being without you no matter how 
much I have to accept the fact. I'll be so happy when I can be with you again - I love you so 
much my darling. I'll say goodnight now hon, because there really isn't much to write except 
that I'm feeling fine and I hope your cold is definitely gone by now. Take good care of 
yourself and once again before I say goodnight ~ I love you darling ~ 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 
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Tuesday night ~ ​
December 14, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ When I came home from work tonight, I felt tired but when I saw two letters from 
you, it made me feel like an entirely different person. 

​ How well I remember that day a year ago, the ninth of December. I can remember 
going to the diner in the RR Station and tears dropping in my coffee. I thought the hot cup 
of coffee would help me feel better, but… nothing would have. Yes sweet, in one year you 
have made something of yourself, and I am so proud of you. I'm not just saying that… I 
honestly am proud of you. I know how hard you worked when you were a cadet, and how 
much you had to take to get where you are. I know that you earned your rank… when you 
work hard for something, the reward at the end is so worthwhile. I feel as you do about the 
length of time we were together. It was longer than I thought it would be, and I can't 
understand how so much happiness could have been enjoyed in those six months. In a way, 
it was a happy year. The reason why I say in a way is because it would have been better if 
there was no war - but other than that… it was as good a year as it could be - a very eventful 
[one] and of course a happy ending, six months. Your wish was granted - you are an officer 
in the Air Corp.95 You are flying…  and you were home longer than most fellows stay in the 
States…  If it helps, you have a wife that loves you more than could ever be told. 

​ As for me ,darling, my one regret…  is that 
I didn't realize a long time ago that I loved you. I 
just hope that every year to follow will have as 
much happiness as I have had these past six 
months. 

​ Darling, I giggled over your copilot's 
romance. It certainly is…  the silliest thing I ever 
heard and being 28 years old I wonder just what 
does ail him. I agree with you that he is odd.  

​ [I] work96 until seven tonight and at least I 
feel better than I did a week ago…  I feel as 
though I know what I am doing and why I do it. Nothing that bothers me more than to 
follow a procedure and not know why I am. I always want to know the why.  

96 Sylvia worked at Associated Transport. 436 Capitol Ave. in Hartford, Conn., which was one of the largest 

Transportation Companies in the country at the time. They were in a period of growth and mergers. 

95 The United States Air Force became a separate military service on September 18, 1947, with the implementation 

of the National Security Act of 1947. Prior to that, military aviation was part of the Army and Navy. Lenny was 

in the Army Air Corp. 
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​ Honey, I honestly [have] a bad cramp in my right hand. It can be understood if you 
saw me add over eight feet of figures today and pull the lever after each amount - my adding 
machine isn't an electric one - damn it! 

​ I've been very lucky about getting to work in the morning. Natie97 and I walk as far as 
Sigourney St. and Homestead Ave. and we are picked up from there by a friend of Natie’s, 
and [I arrive] just a few blocks from my office. 

​ Margie98 called me tonight and extended a New Year's party invitation to me from 
Pearl99. It will be a Hen Party… and a bunch of girls who are all in the same boat - waiting - 
are coming to the party. It ought to be quite a party – one bottle of hoarded liquor. 

​ Mom told Margie she is glad we are going to a party. Of course she has a date - well I 
guess I'm just an old maid for the duration of your absence. 

​ So honey, I'll say goodnight for today and feel that it is one day closer to the day we 
will be together. Goodnight my sweet, I love you  

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

99 Margie’s best friend. 

98 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant for the first time. 

97 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born two months ago, 

Philip Henry Geetter. 
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Thursday night ~ ​
December 15, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ You are getting to see more of our country, aren't you darling? When I get a letter 
from you I never know where it will be postmarked. I bet it is cold there because the winters 
there are supposed to be really mean. I certainly know what it is like to be cold because my 
legs get so cold on our way to work - I shiver when I think of it. You got your wish, hon. 
You wanted to be the passenger on a plane and let someone else do the worrying. It must be 
more of a pleasure trip, traveling that way. 

​ Honey, I bet there is so much excitement going on now. There is so much ahead of 
you that I bet you are impatient to get going… Oh, how I wish I could be with you – and…  
if you only knew how much I mean that. I have got that much of a Tomboy streak in me, an 
adventure seems to fascinate me so much. That's what I get for being a girl - next time I'll 
make sure I choose the opposite sex - There's not much excitement being a girl. I guess 
when you are made a girl, your object in life is to be virtuous and if you are a boy - well 
you’re just damn lucky! If I weren't married - that's if I never met you - I can assure you I 
would be in one of the Services now. 

​ In regards to your not writing Sunday night after the cold… writing was up to you 
and if you felt like forgetting things for a while and wanted to go to the show -  that's up to 
you. I heard that that picture was a terrible picture and I can imagine how you must have had 
Shpilkes100 throughout the show. 

​ The Field you are at now must be a very nice camp - your description… certainly 
gives that impression. I wonder how long you will be there. This wondering is just like a 
game - you never know what will happen next…  

​ Tomorrow night, I am going to the movies with Roz, the girl in my office. We are 
going to work until six-thirty, have dinner in town, and then the movies. 

​ Darling I won't worry if I don't hear from you in the days to follow, as I know you 
might be on the move and it will be quite impossible for you to write. I hope you are well 
and everything is going along fine.  

​ Until my next letter - I love you sweet and good night ~ 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

100​  Shpilkes is a Yiddish word that means impatience, restlessness. It's similar to "ants in your pants." (shpil-keez).  
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Friday night ~ ​
December 17, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ Being a working girl again I'm glad today is Friday, because that means that tomorrow 
is Saturday. I worked overtime three nights this week so you can 
understand why I'm glad tomorrow is Saturday - it was a long 
week. 

​ Last night Roz and I worked until seven and then we went 
to Mickey's on Market Street and had a spaghetti dinner. 

​ We had to wait for seats as they were so busy. It was 
delicious spaghetti and the meatballs were very good, too.  

After we ate all we could we went to the Strand101 and saw 
Corvette K-225. It kept us on the edge of our seats and the 
co-feature So’s Your Uncle kept us laughing. It was one of the 
funniest pictures I've seen in ages and golly how I laughed. 

​ Natie102 had me rushing tonight. I went downtown with 
him to help him select some gifts for his friend, Jim Daly's 
mother. He is overseas now and his mother has been in a hospital 
for about three months now. We rushed so that we could be there before 6:00 as the stores 
weren't open until 9:00 tonight. We got some other things but I will have to do the rest of 
the shopping tomorrow. 

​ Honey I am going to wash my hair soon and how I miss your shampoos. You spoiled 
me honey.  

​ Margie103 told me that Boomey104 was home for a few days. Margie was at Annette 
Albert's shower and she noticed that Frances105 had a very pretty wristwatch. She 
commented on how pretty it was and Frances told her that Boomey bought it for her when 
he was home last week. It is a very pretty watch from the description - it has rubies and 
diamonds on the case of the watch. 

105 Frances was a friend of Sylvia, who is engaged to Boomey Siegel. 

104 Adolf (Boomey) Siegel was a friend of Sylvia’s from Hartford, Connecticut where they were both in the Weaver 
High School class of 1938. Lenny graduated in 1936 from the same school. 
 

103 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant for the first time. 

102 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born two months ago, 

Philip Henry Geetter. 

101 The Strand was a performing arts venue in downtown Hartford, Conn that showed feature films at the time.. 
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​ I wonder how long it will be before I hear from you again. It seemed so strange to 
come home from work and not have your letter waiting. I certainly do miss not hearing from 
you. I hope all is well and everything is coming along fine. 

​ I proudly wear your wings every day - and I have good reason to wear them and be as 
proud of them as I am. I hope that the time passes quickly and we will be together again - I 
do love you so and without you I just never feel right. 

​ When you write to me sweet please tell me as much of yourself and whatever you can 
write as possible.  

​ Until tomorrow then my darling good night and I love you ever so much. 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 
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Saturday​
[December 18, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ At least I'm able to write to you, true I can't tell you half the things I 

would like to, but Army censorship prohibits me. Quite a bit has 

happened since my last letter and someday we’ll spend hours talking 

about what I've seen and done since I kissed you goodbye that night in 

Alex
106

. 

​ I am definitely on my way to the place we've talked about so often - 

one of these days I expect to meet Lou
107

 and have a nice talk with him 

and also be able to personally congratulate him on becoming a father.  

​ At my last stop, I met quite a few fellows from Hartford, One of 

them a First Lieutenant by the name of Lassoff - I can't think of his first 

name, but I think you went to school with him, at any rate he is a 

relative of Sadie
108

's boss so if you're interested you can find out from 

him. 

​ Each new base that we land at means just so much more of an 

easier life. Here there is absolutely nothing to do; it even lacks the roll 

call we had at Grand Island, And what is worse they don't have an 

Esquire Room. It is extremely cold here and other than going to eat or to 

the PX we don't venture outdoors. Our length of stay here is doubtful but 

not too long I hope. 

​ So your brother Is
109

 has finally got himself into the Navy. I don't 

quite understand the move, but as you said, he must have known what 

he was doing for after all he is no kid. Give him my best regards and tell 

him I wish him the best of luck.  

109 Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David, 

Albert, Thalia, Harold and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written. 

108  Sadie Geetter was Sylvia’s oldest sister 

107 Louis (Lou) Levy is Lenny’s uncle who recently married Renee and had a child.  

106 Alexandria, Louisiana  
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​ It's three weeks my darling since last I saw you, the longest we've 

been apart since we were married, and to say that I miss you would be 

putting it very mildly. I lie awake nights thinking of you and the many 

happy times we had together and then I start thinking of the many more 

happy times we are going to have when all this is over with and we're 

back together again and time is our own. It won't be long my darling not 

when I have you to look forward to. 

​ ​ That's about all for now my darling. If we are still here 

tomorrow, I'll write again, if not the next letter will be from my next stop. 

I love you my darling - don't ever stop believing that and I won't ever stop 

telling it to you - 

​ ​ Goodnight and  

 

I love you​
Lenny 
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Saturday nite ~ ​
December 18, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ Oh what a busy Saturday the department stores had today! The sidewalks were full of 
people doing their Christmas shopping and all of the stores were full to capacity.  

 

​ Thank God I am no longer a sales girl! I couldn't help but feel sorry for them - it is 
such a nerve racking job. 

​ I had my teeth cleaned today and I was glad to hear that I have no cavities. Now I 
don't have to worry about my teeth for another six 
months, it is such a good feeling. 

​ It was a lucky thing I went into the Bushnell110 
Card Shop today for a Christmas card because while I 
was in there I saw two baby pictures for Natie111’s son's 
room, and they were just what I was looking for…  

​ As I expected the telephone table I bought in 
Wise’s112 for my mom never came and I had to go there 
today and find out what happened to it. They checked on 
it and promised to deliver it Monday. I guess I'll have to 
wait and see if they do - nowadays you have to expect this kind of service and the Christmas 
rush doesn't help matters much.  

112  Wise, Smith & Company, was a department store in Hartford, Connecticut 

111  Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born days ago, Philip 

Henry Geetter. 

110 The Bushnell Memorial Hall is a performing arts venue in Hartford, Conn. 
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​ I met Pearl113 and Margie114 about 
three-thirty and we went to see Happy Land115 
At the Capital. Why they ever named it Happy 
Land is beyond me. Everybody cried from 
start to finish. It was so very sad. Margie said 
that if Mr. Goralnik went we would have to 
row our way out. Speaking to Mom tonight 
she said that the Goralniks went - and they 
walked out halfway through the picture. 

​ After the show we went to Johnson's for 
hot dogs. Remember the time I wanted to go 

to Johnson’s on Farmington Ave. and you mistook it for the above Johnson's, and you took 
me there instead? You felt so embarrassed, I'll never forget it - it was really funny - please 
don't think I’m,,, making fun of you - it was just cute - I guess that's the only way to put it. 
Well Margie and I each had two hot dogs each, and when we were on the bus we didn't feel 
so good. 

​ Margie came here and we didn't do much, just talked. It is a very sad fact but Margie 
is having a lot of heartache now and it is a shame her being in her condition. Her folks are 
treating her very badly and it is all because she is pregnant and they blame Norman. They 
have no use for him and as far as Margie is concerned, they tell her awful things and try to 
make her feel… she is lucky to be with them. Margie wants to get a room somewhere but in 
her condition she shouldn't be alone. Hon, I feel so sorry for her. I don't care what anyone 
says - it may be hard on Norm, but it will never compare to what Margie is having to go 
through now - I guess it is so true about that saying - it is the woman who suffers. I just 
hope everything works out. 

​ I expect to go to New Britain tomorrow if all goes well - I'm anxious to see the 
children and Babe and Issie116. 

​ It is Saturday night again and honey I'll never get used to Saturdays that just don't 
mean very much… I haven't told you about what I intend to do on New Year's Eve. Pearl is 

116Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter has recently left his job at Mt, Sinai Hospital in Hartford, and 

enlisted in the Navy. 

115Happy Land Happy Land is a 1943 film directed by Irving Pichel, featuring Don Ameche as Lew Marsh, a father 

grieving the loss of his son in World War II.  

114 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant for the first time. 

113 Pearl is Margie’s best friend. 
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having some of her friends over and she invited me to join the Hen Party. I know that there 
will be many such parties this New Years - but let's hope and pray that a year from now we'll 
find all of us celebrating the new year together, and this war will be over. 

​ Honey, before I end my letter I just wish you were here and I could kiss you again 
and again. I love you so much. oh honey I love you. take care of yourself and goodnight my 
darling. 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​

XXX 
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Sunday​
[December 19, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ Another day and we're still here in the wilderness, but our 

prospects of leaving… shortly are very good.  

​ Yesterday, after mailing your letter, I went 

over to the PX, had a can of beer and then went 

to the hospital to visit Chris
117

; yes he's there - 

he has a touch of the grippe and the flight 

surgeon thought a few days in the hospital 

would do no harm. The nurse wouldn't let me 

stay more than a couple of minutes, so I left 

and went to the theater, saw True to Life with 

Franchot Tone, and had a good laugh for 

myself. 

​ This place is actually getting on my 

nerves. I purposely slept until twelve today, so 

that I wouldn't have too much time to kill, but 

even then the day dragged by. I went to the 

show again this afternoon and spent the rest of the day in the club 

reading week old newspapers and rereading magazines that I know by 

heart. Yes my darling, life has become a pretty boring thing but it won’t 

last much longer I'm sure. 

​ About all I can say for this place is that it's cold - terribly so. I don't 

dare go out unless I'm wearing my heavy flying jacket and most of the 

time I also wear the boots that go with it. There is snow everywhere and 

packed down so hard that it appears to be for the duration. God help the 

fellows that are stationed here permanently. 

​ Having so much time to myself, I naturally get to thinking of you 

and then I get to miss you terribly and then I get lonesome. I've never felt 

this way before my darling, but I’d give anything right now to be able to 

117​  Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
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hold you in my arms, and kiss you over and over… Sitting in the club by 

myself I think of all those little things and it all mounts up to the fact 

that I miss you more and more as the days go by. I hope that your job is 

keeping you busy so that you don't have time to think too much, because 

judging from my own experiences it's hell. I miss not getting any mail 

from you - that thirty page letter must have grown by now - it sure will 

be a godsend to be able to sit down someday and read it over and over. 

Just as soon as I get to where I'm going, you'll hear from me and then 

you'll have my new address and believe me when I say I'll count the days 

until your letters start coming; just as I'm counting the days until I see 

you again. Once again it boils down to the fact that I'm not capable of 

saying what's in my heart - all I can say is I love you sweetheart more 

and more with each day - 

​ ​ I can't tell you where I'm going, where I am or what's cooking 

and I've said just about all there is to say So I guess I'll go to bed and 

think of you my darling wife - 

​ ​ Goodnight - 

 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

The X's aren't there, but if they were they would be doubled tonight. I 

love you so much. 

L. 
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Sunday night ​
December 19, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ It's happened! Margie is living with mom. Last night, when she came home… she had 
a big argument, and her father told her to get out. She called mom and asked her if she could 
eat dinner there, and after telling mom the story, mom asked her to bring her clothes and live 
with her and Dad. It is the only thing that can be done. I hope that things will go along 
smoothly - Margie has been having as much as she can take. 

​ When I came to New Britain today everybody was busy wrapping Christmas gifts. 
Being a professional wrapper, a G. Fox118 Institute graduate, they put me to work. Hon, 
Issie119 has a family to be justly proud of. Harold120, he's the youngest boy, is the best-natured 
child I have ever seen. He smiles continuously. Suzanne121 is taking after him. Albert122 and 
David123 are certainly proud of their Daddy [but] they had to know about you and what kind 
of a plane you fly, and if you are really going to fly over the Japs. I bet Issie's heart will break 
when he has to leave them, and I know that they will certainly miss him…  

​ Issie and Babe are going to be very busy this week - they are having so many parties 
made in their honor. Friday night, Babe is having an open house and I guess that's where I'll 
be. 

​ Tomorrow is Monday again, so I better get to bed. I have an alarm that wakes me in 
the morning, but it is nothing like the alarm I used to jump out of bed in Alexandria to shut. 
As cold as I felt when I used to get up those mornings, it was a real pleasure. 

​ Honey, goodnight and I love you my darling. 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

123 David Maranski Geetter is ten years old 

122 Albert Leonard Geetter is eight years old. 
 

121  Suzanne Geetter is one year old 

120 Harold Paul Geetter is three at the time of writing 

119  Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David, 

Albert, Thalia, Harold  and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written. 

118 G. Fox & Co. was a large department store in Downtown Hartford. 
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Monday​
[December 20, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ Here I am thirty miles north of Detroit writing the letter I promised 

to write last night. I have an excuse - a very feeble one - and I ask your 

forgiveness. After talking to you on the phone, Chris
124

 and Rock
125

 talked 

me into going to the show to see Mae West’s latest picture
126

, it is the 

lousiest thing I've seen in years, not forgetting that picture we saw in 

Alex
127

. 

​ Talking to you yesterday made it much easier for me to start this 

trip to - destination unknown
128

. it was, as you said, just as if we were in 

the same city talking to one another but kept apart for an unknown 

force. Darling, I miss you terribly and when I talk to you on the phone, it 

eases the pain for a while but then, when the glow of happiness dies 

down, it becomes more acute and my love for you grows a little larger. 

​ Yesterday at noon, we were alerted, which meant the beginning of 

what is going to prove a very interesting trip. At one o'clock we loaded 

our baggage onto the planes we were to use, and then went to draw our 

small arms. This consisted of a .45 automatic pistol and a hunting knife. 

Walking around like a bunch of characters from the wild and wooly West, 

we went and had our final physical exam, and then we were through for 

the day. 

​ This morning, we were awakened at seven, had breakfast and 

arrived at base operations by eight. After some last minute loading and 

making a preflight check on the plane, we took off, arriving here 

128 Lenny and Sylvia expected the new base to be England. 

127 Alexandria, Louisiana 

126 Probably The Heat's On, in which Mae played Broadway star Fay Lawrence as a temperamental diva who is 

reluctantly persuaded by a Broadway producer to star in his latest production.  

125 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

124 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
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(Selfridge
129

 Field Michigan) at two this afternoon. It is wonderful 

traveling as a passenger (we are being flown by ATC.) I sat in the radio 

room all the way, reading, smoking, eating and of course sleeping. It is 

bitter cold in this part of the country and consequently Chris and I are 

spending a quiet evening in our rooms. This air base is the last word in 

comfort. It is an old base and a permanent one; the BOQs are large two 

story brick buildings with steam heat, the beds have double mattresses 

and they even supply towels, just like a hotel. We are with the Pilot, 

Co-pilot and Navigator that are flying us across and the five of us have a 

suite of rooms. Each building has its own dining room, and the club is 

right in back of us. Our enlisted men went into Detroit for the night, so 

I'll be able to tell you about it in my next letter. 

​ As I told you over the phone, we have a date to meet another couple 

in Boston five years from now to show off our twins. One of the girls that 

worked behind the snack bar in the Esquire room is getting a ring for 

Christmas and she was talking about the lovely times she is going to 

have. To shut her up, I told her about you and the wonderful twins we 

are going to have. To settle the argument, we made the above mentioned 

date - the loser to buy dinner for the winner’s entire family. 

​ About ‘Knobby’ all I can say is he is the cutest pup you ever put 

your eyes on. He's white with a few black spots… and no more than a 

good sized handful. He is about four weeks old and not yet strong 

enough to stand on his own four legs. He does one of three things - either 

he is drinking (milk), sleeping, or doing a ‘job.’ What I can't understand is 

how such a small animal changes the color of milk - from white to Amber 

so quickly! 

​ ​ Butch darling, there is so much I would like to write to you 

but I just don't dare, you'll just have to wait until I get to where I'm going 

before you know the details of the next few days. Just don't worry my 

darling everything is going to turn out all right and, before you know it 

I'll be back home, holding you in my arms  for keeps. Just keep two 

129  Selfridge Field was also getting ready for the arrival of the 477th Bombardment Group (M) (Colored) on 15 

January 1944 to train Tuskegee Airmen with Republic P-47 Thunderbolt fighters and North American B-25 

Mitchell bombers.  
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thoughts in mind always - I love you very, very much and no matter 

where I am I'll always be thinking of you my sweetheart. 

​ ​ That's about all for today – if time permits, (Or if authorities 

permit) all right again tomorrow. once again my darling I miss you and 

love you very very much - 

 

Goodnight my darling and here is an extra one for you x
130

 

 

 

I love you​
xxxxxxxxx

131​
Lenny 

Regards to all,  

Love you​
L. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

131  Lenny was planning to self-censor his X (kisses) on his signature, because he believed they were not allowed. 

Apparently, he was using extras here. 

130  Lenny was self-censoring his X (kisses) after his signature, because he believed they were not allowed. 
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Monday night ​
December [20, 1943] 

Darling ~ 

​ Today I received a Christmas card from Frannie132. As yet, I haven't had a reply to my 
last letter to her. I guess she must be very busy getting ready for Christmas… It is less than a 
week away now. 

​ We had some excitement at work. Today, one of the cars in the parking lot next to the 
office caught on fire. It wasn't a bad fire but it was an excuse to stop working for a while. I 
guess a cigarette caused it. The man who owns the car made a mad dash for the spare tire in 
the trunk of his car. 

​ Tomorrow night I am going to the Christmas party that the office has yearly. It is 
going to be a big party because they have a personnel of about 150.  

​ Saturday, I splurged on my first $27 paycheck. I bought a new dress. It is a lemon 
color and I surprised myself when I bought it because I honestly had no intention of buying 
a dress when I went downtown. 

​ Sweetheart, [your] mom told me that your clothes came. Why did you send home 
your summer suit? I haven't been there yet, but she tells me that the gum is there - thank you 
darling. 

​ It snowed today for about ten minutes and then the sun shone in all its glory. 

​ Sweetheart, there really isn't much more to write tonight. Not knowing… where you 
are or what I'd like to know… is hard… All I can say is that wherever you are, I want you to 
know I love you so much and I'm just praying constantly for your return home soon. 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

 

 

 

 

132 Frannie is married to Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani -  the Pilot of Lenny’s crew.  
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Tuesday​
[December 21, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ No letter yesterday for the same reason that this is going to be more 

of a note than anything else - in other words, there is just nothing to 

write about. I slept until twelve noon so… I won't have as much of the 

day to kill. My entire day is spent eating, sleeping, reading, and going to 

the theater, if there is a new picture showing. (That happens every other 

day.) 

​ Today saw the coming of a cold snap; that up here means bitter 

cold with a biting wind. The wind is so strong that it blew a [censored
133

] 

completely around down on the line this afternoon.  

​ Chris
134

 is still in the hospital, It turned out that instead of the 

grippe, both his ears are infected, a recurrence of what he had back in 

Alexandria
135

. He will be there a week or so and it looks like I'll go on 

ahead with the rest of the crew and wait for him to catch up at our final 

destination. It is bad enough to be well and stationed up here and I pitied 

anyone who is sick up here - it is just miserable. 

​ The climate besides being cold is very dry - so dry that cigarettes 

just fall apart once the package is opened. Speaking of cigarettes 

reminds me to tell you that I lost the case you gave me for my birthday - 

the one you didn't think I'd use, but which I prized so much. I feel 

terrible about losing it, but have no idea where I dropped, or left, it. 

​ Sweetheart, I've written time after time telling you just how much I 

miss you and how much more I love you but as each day goes by I realize 

that what I felt before was nothing in comparison to how I feel now or 

how I'm going to feel as time goes by. In the short space of time that we 

had for each other you became a part of me - deep in my heart, where no 

135  Alexandria, Louisiana 

134 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

133 Censored: probably B-17, or other plane model was cut by hand from Lenny’s letter. 
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matter where I go, you'll always be with me. I mean that sincerely my 

darling and I always want you to remember that I love you. 

​ That's all the news for today, so until tomorrow when I'll write a few 

more lines - good night my darling - 

 

I love you​
Lenny 
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Wednesday night ​
December [22, 1943] 

Darling ~ 

​ Tonight there is cause to celebrate - I finally finished my rug. As I told you when we 
were in Alexandria… there wasn't much left to be done on it… so today I got my final spurt 
of ambition. Now it will be put away with the other things I am saving for those happy days 
when we will have our new home. 

​ I joined the hundreds of others in Hartford that are sick in bed with colds, etc. 
However, I haven't got a cold but a bad bronchial cough. It has been coming on for the past 
few days and last night I began to cough like a fog-horn. I don't feel sick at all but you know 
how annoying it is to have a tickling sensation in your throat. I've been taking cough 
medicine Issie136 gave me an aspirin. So, I ought to be better in no time – you… can't keep a 
good Levy down for long. 

​ Last night I went to the Christmas party our 
office137 made. Perhaps if I didn't go out last night I 
wouldn't have such a bad cough today, but I had a 
good time…  It was a typical office party - everybody 
was drunk and all the girls were out to get a 4F 
married 70 year old man for the evening. As far as the 
men - well you know what they were out for. 

I left at about eleven and I had so many 
laughs. The photographer for the evening was at our 
table so consequently our group became the most 
photographed… If and when they are developed, I'll 
send you a few of them - they ought to be funny.  

​ Transportation to and from the party was wonderful. Esther, a girl in my department, 
Accounts Receivable by the way, has a beautiful convertible club car, and she took Roz and 
myself there and back. She's a very nice girl and we have something in common - we are 
both married and our husbands are overseas. However, she's nine months ahead of me in 
her marriage… and her husband has been in India for nine months. Well to get back to the 
party, we all had a good time and this evening Roz called and told me half of the kids didn't 
show up today and the other half came in after nine - we are supposed to be there at 8:15. 

137  Sylvia worked at Associated Transport. 436 Capitol Ave., which was one of the largest Transportation Companies 

in the country at the time. They were in a period of growth and mergers. 

136 Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (issie) S. Geetter left his job at B Mt. Sinai Hospital in Hartford to enroll  in the 

Navy.  
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​ Mom just called to find out how I feel. I just hope I'll be able to go to work 
tomorrow - I hate lying in bed. 

​ Sadie138 went downtown tonight - the stores are open until nine - and she's going to 
get a gift from the family for Issie - he needs plenty of clothing so I guess that's what she's 
getting. They are having an open house Friday - I guess I told you that in one of my previous 
letters. 

​ How’s Knobby - the mascot?  I wish somehow I could be him for a while - at least I'd 
be with you for a while. I miss you my darling so much. I received a Christmas card yesterday 
from Mrs Rodailat. It was a coincidence as I mailed one out to her yesterday morning. 

​ I have your pictures on my dresser and right now you are looking at me and oh how I 
wish those pictures were really you - I do love you darling. 

​ Darling, as for today, there’s not much else to write. I hope you are well and I hope to 
hear from you soon. Please give my regards to Rock139 and Chris140, and of course all of my 
love to you. 

​ Yesterday I received the first letter from you since the one you wrote to me in 
Detroit. Although there wasn't very much you could say…  just hearing from you and 
knowing you are well made that letter so precious. I can well understand your anxiety to get 
going. Perhaps at this very moment that I am writing this, you are on your way. For your 
sake, I hope that you are. If, as yet, you are still not here nor there, please be patient darling. 

​ It is good to hear that you are going to congratulate Lou141 on the birth of his 
daughter. I hear she is a very cute baby and something to be congratulated on. 

​ Well your wife is still in bed. I guess I just couldn't be different from the rest so I too 
have the grippe. I don't feel very sick except for a sore nose that I've blown so darn many 
times. Mom isn't taking any chances, however, so she makes me stay in bed and tanks me 
with water and fruit juices. 

​ Goodnight, darling ~ 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

141  Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and just had their second 

daughter Holly Weidman. 

140 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

139 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

138 Sadie Geetter was Sylvia’s oldest sister. 
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Friday night ​
December [24, 1943] 

Darling ~ 

​ Yesterday I received the first letter from you since the one you wrote to me in 
Detroit. Although there wasn't very much you could say…  just hearing from you and 
knowing you are well made that letter so precious. I can well understand your anxiety to get 
going. Perhaps at this very moment that I am writing this, you are on your way. For your 
sake, I hope that you are. If, as yet, you are still not here nor there, please be patient darling. 

​ It is good to hear that you are going to congratulate Lou142 on the birth of his 
daughter. I hear she is a very cute baby and something to be congratulated on. 

​ Well your wife is still in bed. I guess I just couldn't be different from the rest so I too 
have the grippe. I don't feel very sick except for a sore nose that I've blown so darn many 
times. Mom isn't taking any chances, however, so she makes me stay in bed and tanks me 
with water and fruit juices. 

​ I'm home all by myself now as the folks are in New Britain for the party for Is143. 
Mom thought I'd be afraid to stay by myself but I convinced her that while I lived in 
Alexandria I learned how to overcome that. 

​ It was very cold here yesterday and last night. This morning when I awoke I noticed 
that my windows were covered with ice. Of course, being snug and warm in bed, it looked 
very pretty but I guess those on the outside weren't thinking the same thing. 

​ Roz called and spoke to my mom. She gave her all the latest news from the office for 
me. It seems as though the old man I danced with at the party noticed my absence, as he 
asked Roz about me.  

He reminds me of old Mr Whipple, my boss in the Retail Credit144. He danced with 
me and when I went home I told Nate145 that I thought sure I was being raped rather than 
danced with.​
 

145 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter. His first child was born two months ago, 

Philip Henry Geetter. 

144 By the 1940s, Retail Credit Company was one of the nation's largest credit bureaus, holding files on millions of 

American citizens. It now operates as one of the “Big Three” credit bureau, Equifax. 

143 Sylvia’s  oldest brother Isidore (issie) Geetter left his job at Mt. Sinai Hospital  in Hartford to enroll as a medic in 

the Navy, and  has just learned he will be commissioned.  

142 Uncle Louis (Lou) Levy and his wife Renee recently had their first child. 
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After all he's not quite seventy yet! I guess that composer who wrote They're Either Too Young 
or Too Old knew what he was talking about. 

​Darling… yesterday I received the letter you wrote to me 
Sunday, which was your second letter and today I received 
the one you wrote to me Saturday. When you mentioned 
in yesterday's letter about the letter you had written the 
night before, I thought it surely had gotten lost in the 
Christmas Mail Rush. (I didn't mean to capitalize rush; 
blame it on my temperature or better still the high alcohol 
content in my cough medicine.) I had my mom call your 
mom and she told her what… news you could tell me. 
She too was so happy to hear that everything is fine. We 
do think of you so much darling. Honey, if anything could 
make me feel happier than I was to receive your letter - it 
could only be one thing - just to be with you, in person. I 
love you darling. 

​ Seeing that kisses are censored at the end of letters…  we will just have to pretend 
they're there. Reviewing your letter, the one you wrote Sunday first, I couldn't understand 
why they were missing. Of course, today's letter explained it, but I admit I was a wee bit in 
the dark about it yesterday. 

​ I received a surprise today too. It was a letter from Eleanor146 and you will never 
guess its contents. Should I keep you in suspense for a while, and be the little brat I can be… 
or should I be a good girl and tell you right away? Let me see - I'll be good - the letter came 
from - now guess hard - Tampa, Florida. That's where she and Sam are living as he is having 
his second phase there. Isn't that a surprise? I didn't know they sent fellows from Alexandria 
to complete their training elsewhere - did you? She told me that they are sharing a five room 
apartment with another Navigator and his wife at fifty dollars a month per couple. It is a real 
modern apartment, and I can imagine how mad she gets when she thinks… she was only 
paying ten dollars in Alexandria. She told me that her landlord brought a case to court in 
Alex and he lost - so [after] another fight… he shut off their lights. Mrs Rodeilat - left word 
with neighbors one day that if Eleanor liked, she could have Helen's apt, as she has gone 
back to New York. I asked Mrs Rodeilat to keep Eleanor in mind, never realizing that all this 
would happen. 

146 Eleanor (Kohn) Ellison married Sam Ellison, a friend of Lenny’s who also trained with him at Alexandria Army 

and Air Force Base, and would soon join him at the same Air Base in England. 
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​ Margie147 called today and my mom says that she too isn't going to work as she has a 
slight case of the grippe. Mr Lassoff brought some bread here today and he was telling me 
about his son. It so happens he is home on furlough now and his dad sure is happy. 

​ Well, it's Christmas night and seeing that I haven't got a pair of nylons to hang up, 
perhaps I ought to do as Joan Davis, the comedian said she is going to do on Christmas Eve 
- hang up an empty bottle of Stocking makeup. 

​ I heard the president's speech today and I thought it was a wonderful speech. 
Although he didn't make any definite promises he was reassuring and in times like these a 
little reassurance can mean so much. I wonder if you were listening to it. Did you, darling? 

​ Hon, I hope that I will be able to mail my letters to you real soon. I admit my letters 
aren't letters that might win prizes but I hope they fulfill my one reason for writing… 
making you happier and being able to pretend you are right here with me and I am talking to 
you.  

​ I'll say goodnight for now my darling and before closing let me tell you that I'm 
always thinking of you and how very much I love you. 

​ ​ Goodnight, darling ~ 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

 

147 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant for the first time. 
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Saturday night ​
[December 25, 1943] 

Darling ~ 

​ Today has been a very quiet and rather uninteresting day, so if I make this a short 
letter it will only be, because I fear it wouldn’t be very interesting reading matter. 

​ I'm better today, but I still have to lie in 
bed as my temperature isn't normal yet! The 
radio proved good company today, because 
of the varied Christmas programs on today. I 
had Dickens’ A Christmas Carol 148dramatized 
three times, and at the present moment I feel 
as though I know it well enough to repeat 
parts of it word by word. 

​ Yesterday, I received a form from the War 
Dept. stating that I was to receive an 
allotment soon. I hope they keep their word 
and send it soon because I can use the 
money right now, and I can't get down to the 

bank. It has been a rather expensive month – gifts, telephone calls, and new doctor bills and 
medicines. And not working this week, I don't expect a large paycheck next week. I hate to 
use that money, but I guess it can't be helped so maybe I'll be able to make it up in the 
future. 

​ I believe [your] Mom and Dad went to the movies today. I hope they didn't have to 
join those where there was “Standing Room Only” - but it being Christmas Day, I was 
wondering… if they had trouble finding seats.  

​ I am keeping my word about making this a short letter, as there honestly isn't much 
more to write except that I love you and hope you are well. Best wishes to Rock and Chris - 
and once more darling - I love you. 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

148 This was probably a rebroadcast of A Christmas Carol  directed by Orson Welles in 1939. Lionel Barrymore was 

featured as Ebenezer Scrooge. 
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V-mail
149​

December 26, 1944​
Somewhere in England 

Dearest wife - 

​ Remember my saying that I’d have tea in England for Christmas - 

well that's just what I had and nothing more. The trip over wasn't bad - a 

lot better than going by boat. The base I'm at now isn't too bad, but I'm 

still not at my final destination; we finally caught up with the rest of the 

crew and now we'll have to wait for Chris. 

​ England is a beautiful place - from the air, but on the ground it is 

miserably dank and cold. The blackout here is really something to see - 

or rather not to see. So far, we have seen no indication of a war, things 

being very peaceful. 

​ Sweetheart, use the address on this sheet and eventually your mail 

will get to me. Write just as often as possible, and you can be sure that I 

will too. I miss you terribly and love you more than ever. give my regards 

to all at home.  

I love you​
Lenny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

149​  V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World 

War as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad.  
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Sunday ​
December 26 [1943] 

Darling ~ 

​ Today is one of those days when everything outdoors has a gray cast. I guess it may 
snow or perhaps rain.  

​ Everybody is at Natie150's house now as they are having the Bris151 for the baby today. 
I bet the apartment is full to capacity and then some. 

​ I called your mom today and Margie152 is in bed now. I’m home, too, with the grippe, 
but she went outdoors yesterday and I guess she wasn't well enough. Dad suggested I take a 
cab and come over for the afternoon, but the weather is changing as it is, and still having a 
slight temperature, I'll be a real good girl and stay in the house.  

​ Not having much to do and the radio programs on right now aren't very interesting, 
so I've been looking through our scrapbook and I've been reading some of your letters. I get 
such a kick out of the ones you wrote to me, while you were in pre-flight [school.] You were 
so worried, my darling. Someday, we will have fun… going over so many things, and 
although they say it isn't good to dwell too much in the past, it… is so much fun to 
reminisce, when there are so many pleasantries attached.  

​ Issie153 leaves tomorrow morning - he will be stationed in New London for a while. 
He's afraid he'll be court-martialed right off because his uniforms, he just got them from 
Fox’s154 do not have the proper insignias. He certainly had to get so many things, but he 
[also] received so many gifts from his associate doctor friends at the hospital and from his 
friends in town. I’ll bet he is all excited - he's been looking forward to this for a long time. 

​ Your mom just called. She wants to visit me, but I told her it wasn't necessary as I am 
really fine. I told her I was going to write to you and at first she didn't understand - she 
thought I had your address. She laughed when I told her I'm saving them until I can mail 
them to you. 

154  G. Fox & Co. is the largest Department Store in Downtown Hartford. 

153  Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter has recently left his job at Mt, Sinai Hospital in Hartford, and 

enlisted in the Navy. 

152  Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant for the first time. 

151  The bris ceremony, also known as brit milah, is a Jewish ritual circumcision performed on male infants when 

they are eight days old, symbolizing the covenant between God and the Jewish people. The ceremony typically 

involves a mohel, who performs the circumcision, and includes blessings and the naming of the child.  

150 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter and had the first of two children, Philip 

Henry, who was one month old at the time this was written 
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​ Last night, I heard a joke on Can 
You Top This One155 – program. In fact I 
heard two that amused me quite a bit so 
I'll try to tell them as they were worded 
and maybe you'll enjoy them too. Now let's 
see - how did they go - oh yes -  

​ One morning this particular 
married woman said to her husband, “Did 
you know you cursed me in your sleep last 
night?” And her husband replied - “Who 
said I was sleeping?” I bet you heard it - if 
it's an old one I guess that's why I heard it.  

And the other is about a little [woman] who made all her own clothes. One day, she made a 
dress out of an old curtain. Her boyfriend took her to see a play one evening and she 
decided to wear this particular dress. When the lights were dimmed and the familiar cry, 
“Curtain going up” was issued - she fainted. 

​ Now hon, do you think I should be wearing Poils156 for two such jokes? 

​ I'm hoping that this coming week will bring word from you. Until tomorrow, I'll end 
this letter with all my love and I'll keep my fingers crossed and my hopes high that I'll hear 
from you soon. 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

 

 

 

 

156 Pearls, spoken with a New York accent. 

155 Can You Top This? was a radio panel game in which comedians told jokes and tried to top one another.  
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V-mail
157​

[December 27, 1944]​
Somewhere in England 

Dearest wife - 

​ ​ I can't imagine why people say the English are cold and 

unfriendly… everyone that I've met has been extremely friendly and more 

than willing to go out of his way to help. The Yank with his chewing gum 

and candy, is king here. The kids on the street run after you asking for 

American candy or chewing gum - with the English accent it sounds 

terrific. The beer here is all that they ever said it was - it tastes unlike 

anything you ever drank before.  

​ ​ By the way darling, in your next letter to Sam and Eleanor tell 

Sam to thank God that he left his pilot when he did. I can't write details, 

but I think you know what I mean. 

​ ​ Tonight is a holiday in England, Boxing Day and I think I'll go 

to town tomorrow. I'll tell you what I saw darling. 

​ ​ Goodnight my darling. 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

157 V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad.  
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Tuesday night​
December 28, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ I am enclosing a copy of the poem 
High Flight158 that was in the Coronet159 this 
month. I think it is very beautifully written and 
I thought perhaps you might enjoy it.  

​ I went to work today160, as my cold is 
gone. My bosses were kidding me about 
getting sick the day after the party - they said I 
can't take it anymore. From all the stories I've 
heard, there were plenty of goings-on Friday - 
the day before Christmas. The office was to 
close at one o'clock but by 10:30, everybody 
was drunk and all the men were running 
around kissing the girls, and some of them 
coupled off in empty offices. The head boss 
from New York happens to come through the 
office that morning, and hearing all the noise, 
and seeing his help all over the stairways… he 
got mad and told everybody to go home - it was ten-thirty. So instead of getting out at one 
o'clock, they went home at ten-thirty. Natie can't get over it - the way everybody acts, but 
once you work in a large office, it is to be expected, when a big holiday comes along. I 
learned that in the insurance company, but it seems that in this office it is much worse 
because the heads of the departments just don't give a darn. 

​ I intended to go back to work yesterday, but it rained in the morning. By twelve, it 
cleared up, so I decided to visit [your] mom and Margie161 (She didn't go to work either 
because of a cold.) I ate dinner at three, and the way I ate, Margie thought I was the one 
pregnant. But I could prove it to her that I definitely am not. 

161 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant. 

160 Sylvia worked at Associated Transport. 436 Capitol Ave., which was one of the largest Transportation Companies 

in the country at the time. They were in a period of growth and mergers. 

159 Coronet was a general interest digest magazine published from October 23, 1936, until at least March 1971  

158 The poem was written by John Gillespie Magee, Jr., an Anglo-American aviator and poet. Magee served in the 

Royal Canadian Air Force, which he joined before the United States entered the war; he died in a mid-air 

collision over Lincolnshire in 1941.  
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​ I'm chewing some of the gum you sent me. I got it yesterday when I went to mom's. 
By the way hon, where are those souvenirs you told me you were sending to me? Mom said 
that the only thing she found in the foot locker or whatever you sent your things home in, 
was the box of chewing gum. Did you forget to send them to me? 

​ I'm very sorry to hear that Chris162 is having trouble with his ears again. I hope it isn't 
serious and he will be well soon. Give him my regards and best wishes , dear, and tell him 
he's too smaht a pilot to be getting sick.  

​ Darling, your going to the movies so often just to pass the time reminds me of how I 
did the same thing in Monroe [Louisiana] at times. I do wish I could send some of my letters 
to you now, it might help to hear from home.  

​ In case you didn't know this, Norman163 is in the hospital. Before I go any further - it 
is - honestly nothing serious - and you know I tell the truth. He has been having trouble with 
his nose, as you know, so he is under observation. As yet, they can find nothing wrong with 
him. They think it may be caused by the fact that when he was a baby he had croupe or 
bronchitis. It doesn't mean anything. It's what my nephew David164 coughs from now - that 
bad case of croup he had two years ago and Izzie165 said he thinks David will always have 
some sort of condition… Meanwhile Norm is taking it easy and gaining weight. He says that 
he expects to have a doctor stay at his bedside all night, to listen to how he breathes as he 
sleeps. It is all part of the observation. In case Mom or Norman haven’t written to you about 
it yet, don't mention it until they do. Please keep it another one of those things between the 
two of us. 

​ Hon, if in the future you feel the same way you do, about not having much to write – 
please, please don't take it in mind, not to write at all. Even if it is just an “I'm an all right” 
note - it means so much to me just to hear that. After all, letters mean as much to us at home 
and hon I look forward to them so much. 

​ Tonight I glanced over the want ad section of the Times166 and I was so surprised to 
[see] that jobs aren't to be had as they have been in the past. I don't know the exact reason 
why there aren't, but it is certainly a definite change. There are just two columns of Female 
Help Wanted. 

166 At the time, Hartford, Conn. had two daily papers. The Hartford Times was the evening paper. 

165 Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David , 

Albert, Thalia, Harold and Suzanne.. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written. 

164  David Maranski Geetter is ten years old at this time. 

163  Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy is trying to enlist in the Army. 

162  Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
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​ The insurance agent from Prudential was supposed to come here tonight so that I 
could sign the necessary papers in order that I can [pay] the seventy-five dollars that has 
come due. It is quarter to ten now, so I guess he isn't coming tonight after all. Maybe he has 
the grippe. 

​ Mom and Dad gave me a ten dollar bill for Chanukah. Not wanting anything - 
particularly right now, I decided to hold onto it until I do. 

​ Sweetheart, telling me that you miss me a little means so much - if my telling you that 
I love you helps sweet, then I ought to be very helpful because I do love you so and words 
will never express how much I miss you. Please remember my thoughts are always with you 
and there's a constant prayer that you will be home soon. so take care of yourself - be a 
‘schmaht’ Navigator and you will come home wearing “Poils167.” 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

167 Pearls, spoken with a New York accent. 
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Wednesday night​
December 29, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ I just finished addressing some New Year greeting cards. Among them, I included 
cards to Boomey, Ebner168, Norm and I signed them from the both of us. Seeing we can't 
wish them a happy New Year personally, a card might be the next best thing.  

​ I spoke to Ebner's dad tonight in order to get his new 
address. I learned that he is no longer in Louisiana; he is 
now in Ohio, and he is in the Railway Battalion, doing 
practically the same thing he did in civilian life. He had his 
folks send him his overalls as that is his uniform during the 
day. It seems as though the camp he is in now isn't very 
large, and he's not… near to a large city… In comparison 
to New Orleans, and how much he liked it there, it will 
take him some time to get used to his new surroundings. 
Darling, here's his address. .. If you can drop him a card, he 
would love to hear from you…  

PFC Ebner Glooskin 31380681​
Company A, 764th Railway Shop  Bn.​
Camp Millard​
Bucyrus, Ohio 

​ I also called Leona Alexander tonight. She told me that Boomey is now in Virginia, 
but he doesn't expect to be there much longer, before he is on his way to a staging area. Oh, 
yes, he was home again this past weekend. He came in rather unexpectedly. I don't know 
whether he will still be at this address when you get this, but if you want to write to him and 
use it, I'm sure it will get to him eventually - 

Squadron 355, 302 Bombing Gp.​
Langley Field, Virginia 

​ I was speaking to Margie169 tonight and she said she received a letter from Norman170 
today. He's having a wonderful time in the hospital, running around all day doing nothing 
and gaining weight. 

170 Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman  Levy  is trying to enlist, but has medical issues. 

169  Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman’s  Levy and is pregnant. 

168 Ebner Glooskin graduated from Weaver High School with Sylvia in 1938 and has been a friend of his since Lenny 

and Sylvia started dating. 
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​ From the news, it seems as though Germany is really taking her much deserved 
beating. All of us at home are hoping that Eisenhower was right when he stated that ‘44 
would be the doom for Germany and the European War will be over. However, I shudder to 
think what this victory will cost - I don't mean cost in regards to money. 

​ Eddie Cantor’s program is on now and, darling, the impossible is happening - it is 
worse than ever. 

 

​ Poisoned Natie171 today. I brought some coffee in a 
thermos bottle to work and he had some and it was terrible. 
I used NesCafe, but I guess I didn't measure it accurately 
and it was terrible. No wonder I have a complex, when I 
make coffee in any form... 

​ Betty May172 has been calling me recently and asking 
me to take her ice skating, when I'm not working. I have ice 
skates but I invariably end up on my end. I told her, if it 
snows, I'll go sledding with her in the park - just like a 
married woman. I honestly hope it snows so that we can go 
Saturday. 

​ Honey, I haven't much more to write today. I am 
wondering where I found so much to write tonight - when I 
started this letter I expected it to be much shorter, but I 
guess that's a woman for you - there's always something she 
can talk about. 

​ Honey, I love you and I hope that it won't be long 
until you will be able to write. Take good care of yourself 
and once more - remember - 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 

 

172  Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 

(Betty) May and Holly Suzanne, who were six and one at the time this was written. 

171  Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter and had his first of two children, Philip 

Henry, who was one month old at the time this was written 
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Thursday night​
December 30, 1943 

Darling ~ 

​ The above is a result of my doodling. I was just listening to the radio and my thoughts 
were wandering over the happenings of this year and as I thought about them I doodled…  
Right now I am thinking of the morning after we went to your graduation dance in Monroe 
[Louisiana] and I heard crickets singing in my room. Now, when I think about that incident I 
can laugh, but that morning, when I discovered my new evening gown all eaten up, I didn't 
see anything to laugh about.  

​ Sweetheart, this past year has been the most eventful and happiest year of my life. So 
much has happened in one year, that if… anybody had told me what lay ahead of me… I'd 
think they were a bit tipsy. As long as I live, 1943 will be a year I'll always think about. It is 
made up of such pleasant memories and happiness. Of course, the goodbyes we had to say 
were the hardest thing in the world to do, but now that the goodbyes are said, there's 
pleasure in the thought that our next step will be “hello again,” and let's hope that we will 
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never have to say goodbye again. As much as ‘43 means to me, I'm anxious to have ‘44 come 
along. I feel that ‘44 will be that much closer to victory and back to normal living. 

​ So, sweet, this is a very poor attempt to tell you… when the New Year rolls in, I'll be 
thinking of you, how much I love you, and everything you mean to me. Darling I want to 
thank you for all the happiness I have had this year, because of your love… I pray this will be 
the last New Year we will ever be separated.  

​ A happy New Year, darling - and I sincerely hope it will be full of happiness, and 
success, and health, and pretending we are drinking to the New Year together - Well - here's 
to us and the chance to go on where we left off. 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​
XXX 
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England
173

 

Friday, [December 31, 1943] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ Less than an hour left before this year is last year, and when it 

does leave us it will be taking the most pleasant episodes of my life with 

it, namely my marriage to you, our living together, for a short while, and 

my becoming an officer in the Air Corps. What more could a man ask for, 

than being the husband of the loveliest, grandest, sweetest person in the 

world and wearing wings? It has been a good year, despite the fact that it 

also separated us, but I assure you that there are better ones coming, my 

darling. I do love you so very much, sweetheart and each day that passes 

means just one less between us. I miss you more and more with each 

passing hour. God what I wouldn't give to be holding you in my arms 

right now. 

​ I may have spent a lousier New Year's Eve but I don't recall it. Even 

last year's, spent in Blackstone VA, was better; I at least went into town 

and had a few beers, but here I'm just stuck at camp, not even daring to 

take a beer, the taste being so awful. I played cards for a few hours, 

made myself about ten pounds (roughly forty dollars) and decided I had 

done enough celebrating! 

​ By the time this reaches you, you should have received my cable 

and at least one letter. The only reason I'm sending part of them 

V-mail
174

 and part regular [mail] is to find out if one is really faster than 

the other. There is so little that can be said in V-mail, so if there is not 

too much difference in time I'll send the mail regular. 

​ Concerning me, there is nothing that can be said that I have not 

already written. I'm still waiting around for orders, taking life easy but 

174 V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad. To reduce the cost of 

transferring an original letter through the military postal system, a V-mail letter would be censored, copied to 

film, and printed back to paper upon arrival at its destination.  

173 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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not putting on any weight because of the lack of sleep. I just can't sleep 

nights and that is probably the cause of the miserable headache I have 

right now. I took two of the Aspirins that you gave me before leaving 

Alex
175

 and they may do the trick. you will no doubt be interested to 

know that my hair has finally grown in and I actually part it, where you 

want it done too! 

​ ​ Chris
176

 hasn't arrived yet and I'm 

beginning to ‘sweat him out.
177

’ I would 

sure hate to back in with a new pilot, 

And besides he's a pretty nice fellow, 

easy to get along with etc. 

​ Happy New Year, my darling wife - it is 

just twelve. This makes the third one 

that we've known each other, and none of 

them have we spent together. Let us hope 

that this is the last one to see us apart - 

may this year see what we all want, with 

it bringing us together. 

​ ​ Sill darling I miss you more than 

I ever thought possible, and my 

sweetheart I'll be counting the days till we're together again. I do love you 

so very very much. Goodnight my darling and here is an extra one for 

you x
178

 

I love you​
Lenny 

Regards to all, Wish them all a Happy New Year for me, and tell them 

that I'll write just as soon as I get to a permanent station. 

Love you​
Lenny 

178 Lenny was self-censoring his X (kisses) after his signature, because he believed they were not allowed. 

177 Sweating Out is a military slang that means anxiously awaiting something, or someone 

176 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

175 Alexandria, Louisiana 
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V-mail
179​

[January 1, 1944] 

Dearest wife - 

​ After mailing your letter last night, I came back to my room, got 

into bed and had the first good night's sleep since arriving here - in fact I 

didn't get up until eleven-thirty, Or just in time for dinner. 

​ Nothing of importance, or excitement happened today, if it weren't 

for the Pork Chops we had for dinner, one would never know that it is a 

Holiday. This past month and a half has been a soldier's dream come 

true - eating and sleeping with very little of anything else thrown in. 

​ My darling, this is going to be a short letter because what little 

news there was I told you yesterday. Not because it's customary, but 

because I want to I'll tell you I love you and miss you very much. 

​ Goodnight my darling. 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

179 V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad.  
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Saturday night​
January 1, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ The best way to start the new year, and knowing it is the right way, I'll start right off 
by telling you ~ I love you. That's one thing I'll never have to make any resolution to do. 

​ New Year's was spent in a very quiet way. I didn't go to Pearl’s house as I told you I 
intended to do in one of my previous letters. Instead I went to your house. I went there 
directly from work and had supper there. Mr and Mrs Goralnick180 came over later on. 
Margie181 got silly and I had two drinks. We didn't stay up late, in fact we were all in bed by 
11:00. I guess I'm getting to be a real sissy because those two drinks made me very heavy 
headed and I fell asleep as soon as I got into your bed and hon, I wasn't awake when the new 
year arrived. I'm really glad I was asleep because without you with me to welcome it in - 
there was just no pleasure attached to it. I'm looking forward to the 1945 new year and we 
will be together to celebrate it. 

​ This afternoon I went to the movies with Margie 
and Adelaide - our sister-in-law Claire's sister…  We saw 
Rosalind Russell and Brian Ahern in What a Woman. It 
was very amusing and I enjoyed it very much. 

​ I looked all over the house for my fountain pen 
and I couldn't find it, that accounts for my letter being 
written in pencil tonight.  

​ Darling, the insurance agent was here the other 
day and he had me sign the necessary papers so that I 
will get that seventy dollars. 

​ Oh yes hon, your wife gave up a very desirable 
date [on] New Year's Eve. One of my bosses - fat and 
40 - pestered me all afternoon to go with him on New 
Year's Eve. 

​ In regards to New Year's resolutions, I didn't 
make any. The reason why I didn't is this: I began to 
think of things I could resolve to do and be like and hon, there were so many, I just knew I 

181 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and at the time of this letter was pregnant for 

the first time. 

180 Roslyn  (Mandell) Goralnick was married to H. Robert (Tuddy) Goralnick (also known as Bob Gorin). Tuddy’s 

parents lived next door to Lenny’s parents. 
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couldn't keep them all. The only resolution I made is to keep my chin up, and as you asked, 
not to believe any rumors - no matter what. Do you think those are good resolutions? 

​ I was paid yesterday and rather surprised too. As you know, I didn't work on two days 
last week. We get paid only for working days and that means 16 hours at $0.60 per hour – 
well, you figure it out.182 Well, I got almost $14 And hon, I made a wish that they always 
figure my paycheck like that. 

​ Sweetheart, I hope you had a pleasant New Year's Eve - no matter where you are. It 
has been our second New Year's apart, but regardless of that fact, you were on my mind all 
night. I kept wondering where you were and how you were. I hope you are well and 
everything is as good as it can possibly be. 

​ Hon, please give my regards to Rock183 and Chris184 and I know that when you get 
this it will be a little late - but nevertheless tell them I wish them a very happy New Year…  

​ Well darling it is time to say goodnight again. I hope that I'll be hearing from you 
soon. I don't mean to practice repetition but once more let me tell you - I love you with all 
my heart and miss you more than words can say. 

​ ​ Goodnight my darling - 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​

XXX​  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

184 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

183 Raymond (Rock) Bobert Newmarki is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

182 Sylvia’s net pay should have been $9.60 
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Monday night​
January 3, 1944 

Darling ~ 

When the doorbell rang yesterday morning, I had no idea that it would be a 
telegram… from you. Naturally, I was so excited I could just about get it open without it 
tearing. I have been anxiously awaiting word from you, and darling I am so happy that 
everything is fine. I called [your] mom immediately and she was so happy, too… She didn't 
get your telegram until about three-thirty in the afternoon.  

​ I mailed to you, my seventeen letters, that I have been saving. It is a shame [we] didn't 
know your address was unchanged, because you would have received some of my mail by 
now… Getting all of those letters at once will be quite a bit of reading…  I hope… you will 
get them soon, and I hope that the same applies to me in regards to your letters. 

​ I went ice skating yesterday morning with Betty May185, Beverly186, Marilyn187, 
Lorraine188, Lou189, Nate190 and Moe191. We had so much fun but today I feel sore. We played 
Switch and Betty May insisted on being on the end, and she'd have no one else but me – hon, 
it was a riot. Issie192 surprised us by coming to the pond to say hello. He came in for the day. 
He expects to be able to come home every other weekend. He looked nice in his uniform 
but hon, I'm still partial to yours. When he went to see my mom he took your address so I 
guess he intends to write to you. David and Albert were with him and they were sorry they 
didn't bring their ice skates.  

​ I went to your house yesterday afternoon with the intention of getting some of my 
things that I left there Saturday. I expected to go to the movies with a girlfriend in the 

192 Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David , 

Albert, Thalia, Harold and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written. 

191  Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice S. Geetter 

190 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan (Nate) A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter and had their first child, Philip 

Henry Geetter, who was one month old at the time this was written. 

189 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 

(BettY May and Holly Suzanne, who were six and one at the time this was written. 

188 Gladys M. Geetter married Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. Geetter and had a daughter, Lorraine 

Geetter Goldberg and a son, Allan Joel Geetter, who were seven and two at the time this was written. 

187 Marilyn Geetter was nine at the time this was written. 

186 Claire Kaplan Geetter married Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice S. Geetter and had two daughters: Beverly 

and Marilyn, who were ten and nine at the time this was written. 

185 Elizabeth (Betty) May Weidman is Sylvia’s seven year old niece 
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evening, but… we changed our minds, so I had supper at your house and slept there, as well. 
Helen came over with her soldier boyfriend and Margie and I made supper. We boiled 
potatoes! Well, we sat and talked until 11:00. Mom and Dad were at the Goralnicks playing 
cards and when they came home they were surprised to see we were still up. We didn't get to 
bed until after twelve and we finally made up our minds to go to sleep at about 3:00. Then 
the trouble began. I was overtired and so was Margie and we couldn't fall asleep. She has the 
damnedest habit of whining and groaning when she sleeps and although she claims she 
wasn't sleeping, she kept me awake by making groaning sounds. Tonight the both of us are 
dead tired. Today I had a lot of work to do and at about 3:00, I thought my eyes would never 
stay open. It was one of those days I thought would never end. Hon, as soon as I finish this 
letter I am going to bed. 

​ Hon, do you like the enclosed clipping? I read it in the Coronet magazine and thought 
you would be interested in it too. 

​ Here is some scandal for you. Mayer was fired 
from his job at Fox193's.  He was fooling around with 
some woman there. I honestly can't understand that 
man. Mom was telling me how terrible she thinks he 
is and how bad Mr and Mrs Goralnick felt. 

​ My brother Ben194 works in Veeder-Root as 
you know and so did Charlie Weiner until recently. It 
so happens that as long as Tootsie and Charles had 
been married, Charles always got upset stomachs and 
he couldn't hold anything down. A few weeks ago, he 
had pains again and my brother told him to go to the 
doctor. He finally decided he'd go, and he found out 
that he has an ulcerated stomach. So he quit his job 
and he's back with his father. Now I guess he doesn't 
have to worry about being drafted… so he doesn't 
want to work in a defense plant. Toots hasn't 
mentioned this to me as yet, my brother Ben told me about it. 

​ While I was waiting for the Blue Hills Ave. bus to take me to your house yesterday 
afternoon, I was talking to Irving Lubin… He told me that he is being inducted next week. I 
guess he is very happy now because he wanted to get into the Army. 

194 Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin (Ben) G. Geetter 

193  G.Fox & Co. is the largest department store in Downtown Hartford, Connecticut 
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​ Margie195 is definitely beginning to look like a prospective mother. She is just going 
into her fourth month. Hon, she expects her baby about the first part of July… for all you 
know your new niece or nephew will be born on your birthday. Mom and Dad keep telling 
Margie to make sure it will be a girl. I'll let Margie have the girls and I'll still have my sons. I 
gather that Margie will have to give up her job very shortly because her office doesn't know 
she is married. She applied as single and it will be a perfect… scandal if she walks around with 
a baby bump. 

 

​ Saturday night196 I had the radio on 
while Your Hit Parade197 was on, 
Frankie Sinatra was the guest singer 
for the evening and it was coming 
from Hollywood.198  

​ Hon, it was a riot to hear the girls 
in the audience, (and I think that was 
all the audience was composed of) 
scream at the end of every line he 
sang.  

​ My mom thought I was going out 
of my mind when jokingly I decided to 

scream too - only she didn't think I was funny. 

​ Boomey Siegel’s kid brother Jackie was married yesterday afternoon. Annette was so 
worried these past few weeks wondering whether he would get his furlough. 

​ Darling, there are so many questions I would like to ask in regards to what you are 
doing etc., but I know that perhaps you couldn't answer them anyway. So sweet, when you 
write I hope you will tell me as much about yourself as you can. 

​ The picture of myself isn't this year's but I just got it from Margie - she had it all this 
time.  

198 Frank Sinatra was more than a guest host, by this time; he was the regular host. Sinatra's move to Hollywood led 

to a conflict with the American Tobacco company which sponsored the show.. 

197 Your Hit Parade was an American radio program that was broadcast from 1935 to 1953 on radio. The show 

Sylvia is referring to was the New Years’ Day show on January 1, 1944.  

196 January 1, 1944 

195 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant with twins. 
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​ Oh honey I'm so tired. I ache all over - my muscles hurt so - I guess I skated too 
much for the first time. I guess I should go to bed so I'll say goodnight. I'll be dreaming of 
you, hon, hoping you are well. Take care of yourself sweetheart ‘cause I do love you with all 
my heart. 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​

XXX​  

 

Sylvia Geetter Levy outside of 148 Magnolia Ave., Hartford, Connecticut 

England
199

 

 

199 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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Tuesday​
[January 4, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ Still in the same place hanging around waiting for something to 

happen. Nothing unusual, or of interest, has occurred but nevertheless 

I'll try to make this an interesting letter. It would be a much easier job if 

only I had gotten a letter from you full of questions - as it is I don't know 

what about this place interests you. 

​ I still haven't seen much of the surrounding countryside in the 

daytime but from what I hear and read while censoring mail it is really 

nice - If one is interested in nature or old buildings. A few churches 

nearby that were built in the Twelfth century, making them just a bit 

older than some of the houses out around Windsor
200

. It is practically 

impossible to buy anything in the nearby towns because what little 

merchandise is left on the shelves is highly rationed; clothing along with 

all else, is rationed and the English never [seem] dressed up in 

comparison to… the States. The soap, along with all cosmetics, is a 

luxury available only to the wealthy and those who know a ‘Yank.’ Well, 

imagine what a majority of the people look like; but remember these 

people have been at war for five years. All women are subject to 

government draft, not to the armed services but to the factories and 

when called have the privilege of either donning a uniform or going to 

work, for twenty pounds a month in some munitions factory. 

​ But enough of this country, there are so many things about home 

that I want to hear about, if you haven't answered my questions in 

previous letters please do so in the very next one. How is Natie
201

's ‘Little 

Katchka’ (A poor name for a boy) has he the appetite and sense of humor 

201  Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter and had a son , Philip Henry Geetter, who 

was one month old at the time this was written.. 

200  Windsor, Connecticut is a town just north of Hartford with historic buildings. 
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of his father? How are Faye, Lou, Betty May, Holly
202

? Tell Betty May
203

 

that I sure would like another letter from her, and tell her father that just 

as soon as I'm stationed somewhere permanently, they'll hear from me. 

The same for Sadie
204

, Ben
205

 (How is he making out with the draft 

board), Moe
206

 and the rest of my in-laws. What about Is
207

 - has he left 

for the Navy, did he get a commission
208

 - tell me all. 

​ Butch darling by the time you receive this you should also have 

received your first allotment check from the government. Did you? If not, 

don't fail to let me know as I'll no doubt be able to straighten things out 

at this end. Once I get settled, I think I'll be able to send you some extra 

money as living conditions here are very inexpensive - days go by before I 

spend so much as a shilling. 

​ Speaking of spending money, I got my 

weekly rations today and with it a large 

bar of P&G laundry soap - one of these 

days I'm going to have to wash my 

laundry, handkerchiefs and all. In fact, 

it better be very soon as I'm down to the 

end of them. 

​ ​ Once again my darling wife I find 

that I've run out of news and also 

questions; so I'm afraid that this letter is going to come to an end. But 

not before I reaffirm my love for you and tell you that being away from 

208 Isidore left his job at Mt. Sinai Hospital in Hartford to enlist in the Navy, and has just learned he will be 

commissioned a Commander..  

207 Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David , 

Albert, Thalia, Harold and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written. 

206 Claire Kaplan Geetter married Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice S. Geetter and had two daughters: Beverly 

and Marilyn, who were ten and nine at the time this was written. 

205 Gladys M. Geetter married Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. Geetter and had a daughter, Lorraine and a 

son, Allan Joel, who were seven and two at the time this was written. 

204 Sadie Geetter was Sylvia’s oldest sister and was unmarried at the time. 

203  Elizabeth (Betty) May Weidman 

202 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 

Weidman and Holly Weidman, who were six and one at the time this was written. 
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you just can't last - I miss you terribly, my darling but knowing that you 

are waiting for me keeps my dream castles from crumbling away. Take 

care of yourself my darling wife and always remember that no man hath 

greater love than what I have for you.  

​ ​ Goodnight my Butch - 

 

I love you​
Lenny 
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Wednesday night​
January 5, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ In tonight's paper they had the enclosed article. Your name is on the list of those 
ordered to active duty. I noticed that 2nd Lt. is after your name - did you get your promotion, 
darling? 

​ We were told today that we are to work three nights a week now - Monday, Tuesday 
and Thursday nights… It will be two hours extra each night - that means I won't get out 
until seven o'clock. We have so much work to do, that it is the only way to get it done. 

​ Darling, {your] mom is going to New York over the weekend. Bertha's youngest son, 
will be Bar Mitzvahed209 this coming Saturday. I think I will sleep with Margie210 - that's if I 
don't go roller skating with some girls.  

​ Sweetheart, last night I had a wonderful dream. I dreamt that we were buying our 
own home and we were so happy… Just when I was so happy, Sadie211 poked me to get up - 
it was 6:30 and time to get up to go to work. It was certainly an awful let down. Darling, at 
least there are always hopes, and  my one hope is that it won't be long before such dreams 
will come true.  

​ I miss you so much darling. Hon, remember that I'm always thinking of you and I 
love you with all my heart. 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia​

XXX​  

 

 

 

 

211  Sylvia and her older sister Sadie Geetter share a bed in a single bedroom at 148 Magnolia Street in Hartford, 

Conn. 

210  Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant with twins. 
 

209 A bar mitzvah is a Jewish coming-of-age ceremony for boys that occurs when they turn 13, marking their 
responsibility to follow Jewish commandments. The term translates to "son of the commandment," and the 
ceremony typically includes a public reading from the Torah. 
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Thursday night​
January 6, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ What a day! It snowed and then it rained and the slush just slushed all over. It never 
fails - when I should wear my boots I don't and that goes for today. Every time a car rode by, 
my heart was in my mouth - I could just feel myself being showered.  

​ How do you like the Dagwood cartoon? It was in last night's paper and it struck me as 
being about the funniest cartoon I've seen in a long time. In fact, this afternoon when I was 
supposed to be working very hard I happened to think of it and… I just grinned away.  The 
girl who sits next to me noticed that I was smiling and she asked what I was thinking of. All I 
had to say was whether she read Blondie in last night's paper and she laughed. 

​ Tomorrow is the happy day of the week – payday. I'm certainly looking forward to it - 
I'm broke but flat. I had to borrow a quarter from Roz tonight. It has been expensive living 
these past few weeks, but it is a comfort to know that I have no bills whatsoever, and when I 
get paid tomorrow all I have to deduct is my $10 board212.  

​ Darling, one thing I am very grateful for is the fact that I have some nice girls to 
work with in my office. It means so much when all the girls get along. We have to work hard 
but I don't mind it at all. Of course sometimes I come home from work so tired but it makes 
it easier for me to fall asleep and there's no desire to do much thinking about anything. 

​ Every afternoon, four of us get together and talk during our lunchtime. The group 
consists of all married girls and we work in the same group. 
One of them is the girl I told you about in our previous letter - 
her husband is in India now and he has been overseas for over 
a year now. The other is thirty-five, has three children and is 
divorced, and the third is in her early thirties, and her husband 
is not in the army. She's been married for a few years. Today's 
conversation turned to whether married girls can trust their 
husbands while they are overseas. I'm not telling you what the 
opinions were or what was said, but I certainly can say it was 
quite a discussion.  

​ Oh yes, I have a new name – Shoo-Shoo. It all came 
about when I was telling a girl about the Frank Sinatra program 

212  Sylvia and Sadie each paid a monthly rent to their mother Adeile Geetter to live in  a single bedroom at 148 

Magnolia Street in Hartford, Conn. 
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the other night and how he sang Shoo-Shoo Baby213. Ever since then she has called me 
Shoo-Shoo and the name is getting popular with the rest of the girls - what a name! 

​ Sweetheart, I have no idea how many times I've written that I love you - it must be 
hundreds of times but hon, I'll never stop. It just isn't possible not to tell you because I love 
you so much. I think about you so much and hon, I can't begin to tell you how much I miss 
you.  

Please take good care of yourself - And let's pray there won't be long before we are together 
again. 

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​

XXX​  

 

 

 

 

213 A song made popular by The Andrews Sisters in 1943 and covered by Frank Sinatra recently. 
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Saturday night​
January 8, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ My wish came true today - I have at last heard from you. Although there wasn't much 
you could say in your V-mail214, it meant everything in the world to just hear from you and 
know you are well. I know that there is so much that you won't be able to tell me in your 
letters, but hon, when you write, tell me as much about yourself as possible. I can't tell you 
how much your letters mean and how much I look forward to them. 

​ I am wondering whether Chris215 has joined you as yet. Coincidentally, I received a 
letter from Fran216 today and she wants to know whether I've heard from you because… she 
has had no mail from Chris and she believes he is on his way. Perhaps by now, she has had 
some word from him. 

​ Seeing that you are not at your destination, I imagine anxiety is riding high. Darling, I 
hope that wherever you go... will be to your liking. That may sound foolish but I think you 
understand what I mean.  

​ Since last night, I have been to three movies… I find it is the best way to just relax 
for a while. 

​ [Your] Mom is not home this weekend, as she left for New York 
this Friday. I bet she will be so excited when she finds out we 
heard from you. 

​ This afternoon I went to Mickey's for a spaghetti dinner with 
some of the girls with whom I work. It was a good dinner and I 
took pride in the fact that I am slowly learning the art of eating 
spaghetti. It feels like a great accomplishment to me. 

​ Dad told me that in your letter to them you mentioned that you 
met quite a few friends from home and you also met Hank there. 
That's quite a coincidence, but... it really is a small world now and 
no matter where you go you will meet somebody from home. 

216 Fran is Chris Christiani’s wife 

215 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

214  V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad. To reduce the cost of 

transferring an original letter through the military postal system, a V-mail letter would be censored, copied to 

film, and printed back to paper upon arrival at its destination.  
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​ Norman217 is out of the hospital now and he will be going on maneuvers soon. He is 
still waiting for something to be done that might transfer him into a new outfit, or should I 
say branch. 

​ Ebner218 will be very surprised this week when he receives his mail. I wrote to him on 
the spur of the moment and enclosed your address. I thought he might want to write to you 
and having your address would help, wouldn't it hon.  

​ Next week will be a hard week for me, as I will work ten hours for three days of the 
week. Whenever I tell folks I'm working three nights a week... the first thing they say is that I 
should think of all the money I'll be making. I guess they don't stop to think what a lazy 
thing I am, and I'm not convinced… the extra money will ever make me rich. 

​ As yet, I haven't received any allotment219. After speaking to Margie220 I gather that 
the first allotment is generally held back and the second month two checks will be received. 
It's a good thing the folks in my neighborhood are honest because I've been reading in the 
newspaper about checks being stolen out of mailboxes. I am not worried about that at all 
and I guess that next month I will receive two checks at once. 

​ Darling, I wish this war will end soon. I don't mean to be impatient nor do I mean to 
complain, but it will be so nice to have you home again. I know that there is so much to be 
done yet and it will take time, perhaps more time than some folks expect, but nevertheless I 
won't give up… hope that you will be home soon. I miss you darling and my love for you 
grows more each day. So darling, until I'll be with you again, please always remember that I 
love you and my thoughts are always turned to a happy future.  

​ ​ Goodnight my darling, 

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia221       

 

221 Sylvia also censors her xxx kisses. 

220 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant with twins. 

219 An allotment is a designated amount of money that is automatically distributed for you, from your pay.  Lenny 

had designated $200 a month to be sent directly to Sylvia from the US Army, which is believed to be half of his 

pay. January was supposed to be the first time, and both Lenny and Sylvia were awaiting the check’s arrival in 

the mail. 

218 Ebner Glooskin graduated from Weaver High School with Sylvia in 1938 and has been a friend of his since Lenny 

and Sylvia started dating. 

217 Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy is trying to enlist, but has medical issues. 
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England
222

 

Monday​
[January 9, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ As you can probably tell by the lapse in dates, my orders finally 

came through and I'm now at another base in England. How long I'll stay 

here remains to be seen. I can't tell you much about this place, in fact 

I'm not supposed to say anything about anything, so I'll just confine 

myself to generalities.​  

​ Still no mail from you, don't really expect any for another week or 

so, and I sure do miss hearing from you, my darling. The mail system is 

slow enough as it is, but with the constant moving around one never 

knows when it will catch us. One thing though, when it does start 

coming I'll have to take off a week to read it all. Don't disappoint me, 

sweet. 

​ The post has something that is very rare in England, and with the 

extra money that I have I'm sure taking advantage of it; they have a 

complete supply of clothing and equipment for officers and already I've 

left a few pounds there. Yesterday, I bought a foot locker, six pairs of 

heavy wool socks (the English rib type that sell for $1.50 a pair in the 

States,) another dozen handkerchiefs and some more underwear. 

Tomorrow I'm planning to buy a pair of shoes and a bathrobe (it's cold 

here.) Oh yes, I got myself a pair of flannel pajamas… to keep warm in 

bed. 

​ Now that I'm in England I'd sure like to take a trip into London but 

it looks like I'll have to wait for a while, we are restricted to the base here 

- just like the days back at Monroe!  

​ Chris
223

 finally caught up with me at the last base - or according to 

what he told me, the doctor was rather surprised that he got well so 

223 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

222 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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soon, or at all. Did I tell you that he had both ears infected and for a 

while he couldn't hear? He sends his regards, as does Rock
224

 who 

constantly talks of those Latkes
225

 you made for him - He’s still the same 

Rock though, having a good time for himself without a care in the world.  

​ Butch, darling, I know that this is going to reach you too late but I 

want you to know that I haven't forgotten that this month marks our 

seventh [month] anniversary. It seems like yesterday that we were 

marching off, first the weeks of our engagement and then, through weeks 

of our wedding… My only hope, my sweet, is that someday I can tell you 

and show you again just how much I love you and how much I long for 

you these days. 

​ They've kept us pretty busy today and we are not used to it. I'm 

rather tired, so after finishing this I'm going to turn in for the night 

although it's only eight o'clock. 

​ Goodnight my darling - once again I want to say I love you very very 

much. 

 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

225 A latke is a type of potato pancake or fritter in Ashkenazi Jewish cuisine that is traditionally prepared to 

celebrate Hanukkah.  

224 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
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England
226

 

Monday​
[January 10, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ Just got through moving my bed to be nearer the fire, and before I 

lose what little ambition I have I'll write this letter. Our barracks is 

heated by just one small coal stove and inasmuch as we are severely 

rationed on the amount of coal we use, no fire at all until five in the 

evening, it really gets chilly in here. Some of the boys at the warm end 

moved out, so I got one of their beds.  

​ We were paid our per diem (the refund on the money spent for food 

and quarters en route) today and I went on another buying spree, getting 

a short coat (the type that Rock
227

 and Chris
228

 wear) a pair of shoes and 

some more underwear. It seems that every place I stop at I keep adding 

to my luggage - it won't be long before I'll need a truck all to myself when 

I move. 

​ We are not allowed to write about our activities at this base, but 

you may rest assured my darling that I'm in no danger yet. If it weren't 

for the cold this would be an all right place. The food is very good, being 

comparable to what some camps back in the States serve, the place itself 

is fairly well laid out and we even have hot and cold running water. There 

is a bar on the base, serving beer and Cokes, a library and a theatre 

showing a new picture every night. 

​ No mail yet, so I've been contenting myself by rereading the letter 

you wrote while I was at Grand Island
229

. That reminds me, how is your 

job? Are you still at the same place or have you changed since last I 

229  Lenny’s point of debarkation for England. 

228 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

227 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

226 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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heard from you? Be sure and tell me all in your letters, including the 

latest about Margie
230

 and how Mom and Pop are taking it now. 

​ Golly, Butch, I can't begin to tell you how much I miss you lately - 

every minute of the day is spent thinking of you and the times we had 

together. I do love you so very much my darling and I am taking care of 

myself for you. 

​ This is a short letter, I know, but truthfully there is nothing to write 

about, so if you'll forgive me I'll close now. 

​ ​ Goodnight my darling - 

I love you​
Lenny 

​

 

230 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and at the time of this letter was pregnant for 

the first time and living with Lenny’s parents. 
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V-mail231​
[January 10, 1944] 

Darling ~ 

​ I can see that the space provided on a V-Mail is sufficient space for all you had to say 
for the month since you wrote last. Seeing that you like it so well, I have come to the 
conclusion that you ought to enjoy receiving it. Personally, such letters have the same effect 
on me as did your first postcard. 

​ I worked until seven o'clock tonight and I am very tired. I guess I better get used to it 
because I'll have to work overtime for a long time. 

​ You will receive a package from me soon. I am sending you a new cigarette case and 
Ben has an old cigarette lighter, which I am having fixed before sending it along, too. 
Although it isn't a new lighter I hope you like it.  

​ Glad to hear you like England and so far everything is fine. take care of yourself and 
give my regards to Rock and Chris. 

 

 

I love you​
Sylvia 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

231  V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad. To reduce the cost of 

transferring an original letter through the military postal system, a V-mail letter would be censored, copied to 

film, and printed back to paper upon arrival at its destination.  
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England
232

 

Tuesday​
[January 11, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ Just a few lines to let you know that I'm feeling as well as can be 

expected in this miserable weather and also managing to keep myself 

busy. It is really getting to be a problem to write a letter as everything 

here is so damn secret. I got optimistic today and went to the post office 

to claim my mail - naturally there was none; I figure that it will be 

another week before it catches up to me. 

​ As I wrote in my first letter from here, we are restricted to the base, 

but some of the boys have managed somehow to get into the city
233

 and 

their stories make me think of New York the last time we were there. 

They say the crowds are reminiscent of Times Square and despite the 

war, London
234

 is still London
235

, but the prices are way up. Here, as well 

as in the States, liquor is hard to get and the boys moan about it day and 

night - I sometimes think they miss it more than they do their homes. 

​ The weather here the past few days has been utterly miserable - 

rainy and cold all the time; it's a wonder that all of us aren’t down with 

the flu or pneumonia. Instead of Justice having what is known here as 

The ETO cough. it is just impossible to stay warm here. 

​ One of the boys in my barracks has a dog Roger by name and he 

has us nuts. Either he is doing a job on the floor or chewing up 

somebody's socks; he has already cost his owner three or four pairs. 

Right now one of the fellows is teasing him with a glove, and in jumping 

up, he skipped and landed on his hind end; he put his tail between his 

legs and walked over into a corner. 

235 And Cut out again. 

234  Cut out of the paper. 

233  London, England is where a big mission is being planned against Berlin, Germany 

232  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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​ Instead of just rambling along, my darling, I think I'll close but not 

before I tell you again that I do love you so very much my sweetheart and 

miss you more today than ever. Not only do I love you my darling but I 

like you too. 

​ ​ Goodnight sweetheart -  

 

 

 

I love you​
Lenny 
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V-mail236​
[January 11, 1944] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Darling ~ 

​ I thought I had surprises before - but never was I more surprised than when I read 
you are sorry that you didn't get a wedding band before leaving the States. Darling if you are 
really serious about that and you would like to have one, well I'll send you one, if you tell me 
the kind you would like. Oh yes, and have your finger measured at a jewelers for your ring 
size.Hon, you told me about Boxing Day being a holiday in England, but now my curiosity is 
aroused - just what kind of holiday is it? 

​ Once more darling - if you are serious about the ring - I would like to send it to you 
and also please mention in one of your letters that you would like to receive a package, and if 
this is anything in particular that you need - please tell me and I'll be happy to send them to 
you. 

I love you​
Sylvia 

236 V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad. To reduce the cost of 

transferring an original letter through the military postal system, a V-mail letter would be censored, copied to 

film, and printed back to paper upon arrival at its destination.  
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England
237

 

Wednesday​
[January 12, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

​ Today brings back a happy memory of a day seven months ago
238

. It 

was sunny that day in Monroe and my life has been bright ever since; 

truly my darling nothing but good has happened since the day we were 

married. Of course our being so many miles apart is not good but then 

that was inevitable, we knew it would come sooner or later. I'd give most 

anything to be with you, not only tonight but every night, but inasmuch 

as that can't be, the only thing I can say is - I love you with all my heart, 

my darling wife, and I pray that it won't be too long before we are 

together again. 

​ Chris
239

 arrived here today and with him came news, via Francis
240

, 

that you are well. For some reason he is getting his mail while I'm still 

‘sweating it out.’ It shouldn't be too long now, as the mail is coming in 

and quite a few of the boys who came over with me got their first mail 

today. 

​ Still can't say what I'm doing here, but please believe me when I 

say I'm not in any danger - don't worry as I'm in a safe spot (as safe as 

any place in England can be) and feel fine. Another thing, don't pay too 

much attention to the headlines. 

​ The weather, though still very very dank, has warmed up a bit and 

it is almost possible to get up in the morning without shivering to death. 

Outside of that, this place is all right - we even had a fresh egg for 

breakfast today - I've yet to see that bugaboo of all ETO breakfasts - 

powdered eggs.  

240 Francis is Chris Cristiani’s wife, who became friends with Sylvia while they were living in Monroe. 

239  Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

238 Sylvia Geetter and Lenny Levy were married June 12, 1943 in Monroe, Louisiana while Lenny was in Flight 

Training School at Alexandria Army Air Base. 

237  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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Of course we see Spam in all forms - sometimes it is disguised so that we 

don't recognize it - but the taste gives it away every time. 

​ They've kept me busy from eight this morning until almost ten this 

evening and not being able to tell you about it leaves nothing for me to 

say in the line of news. I hope you understand, my darling, why my 

letters lately have been so short and packages uninteresting or even 

boring. 

​ I'm going to bed now - it's eleven o'clock - in preparation for 

another big day tomorrow. Sure would like to have you snuggle up close 

to me, not only to keep me warm but because I miss you so much, my 

darling, and I do love you very much, Butch. 

​ Goodnight my darling, and here is an extra one (x) for our night  

 

 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​  

​ It’s a shame, what with the scarcity of paper, to finish so high on 

the sheet, but for the life of me I can't think of another thing to write.​  

Love, 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ L. 
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Wednesday night​
January 12, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ I just can't write another V-mail letter. There is so much about them that I don't like. 
So hon, please don't send me any more of them. If it takes…  a little longer to send… 
regular mail, it will really be worth waiting for. ​  

​ Sweetheart, I hope you can get cigarette lighter fluid. I am sending out the lighter 
tomorrow and there will also be some extra flints and wicks. It is against the law to send the 
lighter fluid, as it is inflammable so… you will…  have to furnish the most important part of 
the lighter.  I do hope you will be able to get it. 

​ As soon as I get your request for a package, I'll send you some Mary Oliver 
Chocolates241…  If you haven't done so as yet - try to… as soon as possible. All you have to 
do is mention the fact that you would like some cigarettes, or something, sent out in one of 
your letters… There is always something I can send to you. Darling, do you need razor 
blades, and what kind do you use? Do you smoke Camels or Chesterfields, and hon, do you 
have enough socks, handkerchiefs and underwear? If there is anything you need please ask 
for it as I know that it is very difficult for you to get so many things.  

​ Tomorrow is Nate'242s fourth engagement anniversary. He had me go to the florist for 
him tonight and have a bouquet sent to Lillian. We Geetters are a sentimental clan, but there 
is a good reason why we are.  

​ I was trying to figure out why you are having difficulty sleeping the night through. It 
might be nervousness or excitement, darling, and it will pass off. Tomorrow night, I am 
going out to dinner and the movies with some of the girls at work. We will work until seven 
and then rush like mad in order to make the last show.  

​ When Mom and I had our daily conversation tonight, we were both wondering 
whether you had received our letters yet. Hon, every day I think of it and I'm just praying 
that you are receiving mail now.  

​ I have some of the girls in the office thinking that I am pregnant. I didn't feel very 
well the other morning - I was dizzy and had nausea - well that's the only symptoms I 
needed to give them that impression. It was really due to being tired, but I don't think I can 
make them believe it. 

242 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan (Nate) A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter and had the first of two children, 

Philip Henry Geetter, three weeks earlier than the time of the writing. 

241 A chocolate store in Downtown Hartford, Connecticut that was on Main St. next to the Strand Theatre. 
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​ Do you know what today is darling? It's our seventh month anniversary. I guess out 
of these seven months I've been with you but a short time. However, there was so much 
happiness in that brief time that I can always have pleasant thoughts. My main wish is that 
you will be home when our first year anniversary rolls around and we will be able to 
celebrate it together. Is that wishing for too much darling? 

​ Sweetheart, it's time to go to bed now so I'll have to end this letter. Goodnight 
darling I love you so very much. 

I love you          ​
Sylvia243       

 

 

Strand Theatre244 - 1466 seats  

1017 Main St., Hartford, Conn. 

 

 

244 The Strand was destroyed in 1974. 

243 Sylvia also censors her xxx kisses. 
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England
245

 

Saturday​
[January 13, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

The person who first said, ‘No news is good news’ was probably 

never two thousand miles from the person he loved with all his heart, as 

I am. Anything, even a notice of an overdue bill, would be welcome. 

Watching the other fellows collect and read their mail brings the 

homesickness and loneliness on, and I don't mean maybe. I know you 

are writing every day, my darling, it's just that I seem to be the unlucky 

one whose mail got held up en route. There was no mail at all today for 

anybody, so it wasn't too bad and I feel almost sure that tomorrow will be 

my day. 

Butch, I had to come all the way to England to hit the jackpot on a 

slot machine. This evening, just before leaving the club, I put a shilling 

in, and out came five pounds, the equivalent of twenty dollars. It more 

than made me even for the night, as I had lost two pounds in a poker 

game earlier. Chris
246 

standing near me, thought the machine fell apart 

and I just stood there with my mouth wide open. 

But for the censor, I would have lots of news to tell you, but as 

usual I'll just have to confine myself to general items. 

Right now, there is a hot argument going on here, as to whether or 

not a flying man is worth the extra money he gets for flying - and I do 

mean that. Everybody is in a happy frame of mind because we've been 

promised Turkey for dinner tomorrow, and on top of that school will be 

out at two instead of five tomorrow. The weather here has been almost 

beautiful the last two days – the sun has shown for a minimum of three 

hours which is a rare treat. (My, how I ramble on.) 

246 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

245 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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It was rather smaht of me to buy all that extra clothing when I did, I gave 

my laundry out when I came here and it was promised for today - Now 

they tell us that it won't be back until next Saturday and I am running 

low. 

… I had every good intention of writing last night, but when I got 

back to the barracks, there was no fire and it was so cold in there that it 

was just impossible. Finally at 12:00, I was sleeping by then, the orderly 

came in and made the fire but by morning it was out and just as cold as 

ever. Please forgive me, sweet? 

I've tried to make this a long and interesting letter - hope I've 

succeeded. Truthfully, outside of telling you how much I love and miss 

you there just isn't another thing for me to say. I do love you very, very 

much my darling and my longing for you grows larger with each minute. 

Won't be too long before we are together again, Butch, and then we will 

surely make up for all this lost time. Take care of yourself my darling and 

don't ever change - stay the way you've always been - the way I fell in 

love with you - the way I married you - and the way I want you! 

 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

​ ​ Regards to all - 

​ ​ Tell Sadie I'm still wearing ​
​ ​ the sweater and socks she ​
​ ​ gave me when I left. 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ Love, 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ Lenny 
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Thursday night​
[January 13, 1944] 

Darling ~ 

​ Tonight I went to the movies as I had planned. I went to the Strand247 and saw North 
Star. It was an excellent picture and although I cried more than halfway through it, I enjoyed 
it very much. We had to stand quite a long time before we got seats; there was a long waiting 
line. 

​I must be getting used to working until 7:00. I didn't mind that very 
much tonight. I guess by keeping busy all the time I don't notice the 
passing of time. Tomorrow night I am having eight girls here as sort of 
a reunion. They are the girls who once made a club, and I was a 
member too. We never see each other unless there is a gathering of 
some kind. Most of the girls are married and being mothers too - they 
find it hard getting around. 

​Darby is back in the hospital. I don't know just what it is all about as 
[your] mom hasn't said anything to me about it - I guess she doesn't 
want to talk about it. Margie248 gave me the little information she knows 

- I guess he had a relapse. Hon, don't say anything about it in your letters home to Mom 
unless she tells it to you first. 

​ Hon, I received my allotment check today - and the funny thing about it, I wrote to 
Newark and asked about it. I guess that's the way it always is - just when you try to find out 
about things like that - the check comes through.Hon, you should see me dictate a letter in 
the dictaphone at work - just like an executive. I enjoy that more than any part of my job - it 
really is loads of fun. Sweetheart, I am not the least bit tired tonight but it is after twelve and 
getting up at six-thirty won't give me enough rest - so I'd better get to bed. good night 
darling all my love to you  

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX 

     Stamped "Return to Sender" through the addressee, and two Army Directory Service 
stamps with a redirect to APO 790 NR. The first is dated 2/4/44 and the second is undated. 
On reverse dated June 12, 1944 a Postal Service, and two date stamps: May 5 1944 and May 
23 1944. 

248 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and at the time of this letter was pregnant for 

the first time.. 

247 A movie theatre in downtown Hartford, Connecticut 
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England
249

 

Sunday​
[January 16, 1944] 

Dearest wife - 

​ At last At last! Yes, my darling, today the mails came, not much to 

be sure, but enough to keep me satisfied until the deluge comes. To be 

exact, there were two: one from you dated the fifth of the month and one 

from mom mailed the second. Judging from that, I would say that airmail 

is the best way for you to send me letters… you [must] have written 

letters previous to the one I got, for you make no mention of the cable 

and various other things that would sound like a first letter. Your letter 

didn't contain much news but it was the type of letter I wanted; that 

seemed as though you were actually right here telling me about Lou
250

 

and his troubles with the hot water. It's just like you - devil - to beat him 

to the draw - each time. Has he been sick or is it his nose that is 

troubling him again? According to her letter Lou is near him and no 

doubt has been to see him - what does he write about Norm
251

? 

​ You wrote that you would like to send me a new cigarette case - I 

sure would like one of the same type as the one I lost, if you can find 

one. Talking about things to send me - I will have a definite need for 

writing paper, absolutely none can be had in England, as there is a 

definite shortage of paper here, so send me the largest box of it you can 

find. And all the chocolate bars you can buy! God knows I crave it! If you 

can't find any, tell Dad to try and get some from one of the salesmen that 

come into the store. Outside of those few things, there is nothing I can't 

buy here. Don't by any means send cigarettes as we can buy them for 

five cents a pack here and besides I have a reserve of twelve or thirteen 

cartons - We were each given ten before we left the States. Before I forget, 

when you do send me the package, write Soldiers Requests on the 

outside so that I'll get it without any trouble. 

251 N. Norman Levy is Lenny’s younger brother who is trying to enlist in the Army. 

250  Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 

Weidman and Holly Weidmans, who were six and one at the time this was written. 

249  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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​ Half-holiday proved to be a false alarm and I was kept busy until 

well after four. The Turkey dinner was forthcoming as promised, and 

lived up to expectations. Not only did we have Turkey, but two desserts. 

The War Department says that men overseas should have turkey at least 

twice a month, so we can be sure of two good meals a month. 

​ The dog I spoke so endearingly of is no more - at least not for our 

crew. Some low character dog-napped him at our last base. Rock
252

 and I 

were both a bit heartbroken as he was our special charge. We looked for 

days but couldn't find him. You mentioned working overtime; don't 

overdo it, my darling - take things easy so that you won't over-tire 

yourself. Glad to hear  that you are taking Mom to see Abbi's Irish Rose - 

hope she enjoyed it. 

​ Mom's letter contained two bits of news, one you had previously 

spilled to me and the other was rather startling. The fact that Margie
253

 is 

living with Mom and Pop was, to say the least, unexpected. Don't you 

dare forget to write me the whole story, leaving out none of the details. 

Frankly the whole thing doesn't sit right with me. I don't understand 

Mom going back on what she has previously said. She writes that Dad 

and she don't mind but I doubt that very much. Mom and you mentioned 

the fact that [Norman] expects to be transferred soon by the medical 

board. What is the story behind that move? 

​ The argument I wrote about last night continued until well after 

midnight with no final victor. Thank God it did not continue today. 

​ It's getting late, my darling, and I want to write to Mom so I'll 

close… until tomorrow - 

​ ​ Good night my sweetheart, I love you, like you and miss you. 

​ ​  

I love you​
Lenny 

 

253 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and at the time of this letter was pregnant for 

the first time. 

252 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
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Saturday night​
[January 17, 1944] 

Darling ~ 

​It is impossible for me to tell you how happy I was to receive an honest 
to goodness letter from you today. Although receiving your V-mail254 
letters mean as much to me, they leave me very melancholy. Letters are 
the only things we have to bring us together - and they mean as much 
to us at home as they do to you boys overseas.  

​I guess all of your questions had been answered in my previous letters. 
Betty May255 was here when I was reading your letter and she was 
thrilled when I read her the part where you asked to have her write to 
you. In fact, she's sitting here at the table with me now, and she wants 

me to help her write a letter to you… I had a hard time trying to convince her that there isn't 
time for one tonight - but I had to promise to help her with one very soon. 

​ I took her and Lorraine256 to the Lenox257 this afternoon to see 
Lassie Come Home. Yes, we saw it in Alexandria [Louisiana] but I 
thought they would enjoy it - so I sat through it a second time. I wish 
you could have seen the two of them crying during the picture – at 
one time I thought Betty May was going to lose it. 

​ Last night I had the girls258 here and although there were just 
eight of them besides myself - from the noise we made it sounded 
like ten times that many. I guess all the jabbering was caused by the 
fact that the girls get together very rarely and when they do - well 
there's so much to be said - they all talk at once and nobody is doing 
any of the listening. 

258 A reunion of her childhood friends 

257  A movie theatre in Hartford, Connecticut 

256 Gladys M. Geetter married Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. Geetter and had a daughter, Lorraine and a 

son, Allan, who were seven and two at the time this was written. 

255 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 

(Betty May) Weidman and Holly Weidman, who were six and one at the time this was written. 

254 V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad. To reduce the cost of 

transferring an original letter through the military postal system, a V-mail letter would be censored, copied to 

film, and printed back to paper upon arrival at its destination  
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​ Hon, today I bought a quarter of a pound of candy - it's just a few pieces - but seeing 
that I can send you a package as heavy as eight ounces without a request, I thought that 
perhaps a few pieces of candy will be better than none at all. When you see the box - don't 
think they are the Mary Oliver’s I plan to send you - they are not, darling - it's just the only 
box I have. 

​ Yesterday I received a letter from Ebner259. He is now a Corporal and expects a 
furlough in about five or six weeks. Perhaps by this time you have already heard from him, as 
he has your address. 

​ Darling, do you remember Francine Andrews - the girl I worked with me in the Two 
Hartfords260? I told you that she and Phil practice the rhythm system, in order not to have 
children. The other day I met another girl…  and she told me that Franny expects a baby this 
month. I guess that system wasn't as safe as she claimed – Thank God - we thought 
differently of that system - or I’d join Margie261 in the rush for maternity dresses. Speaking of 
Margie, she is getting there. None of her clothes fit her and she has to get those extension 
models now. 

​ I'll have to get a book that gives the American valuation of English money. Hon, if 
you have that extra money you spoke of - or when you have it - please send it home. I guess 
I'm being the thrifty wife now but today I was looking at furniture in Fox’s262, just for the fun 
of it, and everything I would like to have in our house someday is expensive. So, darling, we 
will need every cent we can save. I don't mean for you to deprive yourself of anything - but 
whatever you have that you don't need - well that will mean so much in the future.  

​ Sweetheart, I have to take Betty home now. It's getting late and furthermore she's 
getting wild now. So, darling, it's good night again until tomorrow. and hon when I go to 
sleep tonight and I think of what you wrote in your letter, believe me hon, will make me feel 
so happy. I love you so much sweetheart - if only time goes by quickly and we can be 
together again. Take good care of yourself sweetheart -and remember  

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX     

262 G. Fox & Co. was an American department store chain founded in 1847 by brothers Gerson Fox and Isaac Fox. Its 

flagship store and headquarters were located in Hartford, Connecticut, and operated throughout New England. 

It was the largest privately-held Dept. store in the United States until its acquisition by The May Co. in 1965.  

261 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. 

260  Hartford Fire and Hartford Accident & Indemnity were the Two Hartfords. The company is now The Hartford 

again. 

259 Ebner Glooskin graduated in 1938 from Weaver High School, one of Hartford’s three high schools. He became 

friends with Lenny while he was in Basic Training. 
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Tuesday night​
January 18, 1944 

Darling ~ 

I didn't work until seven tonight as my cold is still with me. I feel all right except that 
my nose is so sore. I don't think I've kept a Kleenex away from it all day. 

​ Hon, can you get stationery? If not, 
do you like the stationery I am using? Just 
say you would like a box of it and I will send 
it to you. 

​ I've been forgetting to tell you 
something. I don't smoke anymore. That's 
the truth, darling. I told you that I would 
stop smoking as soon as I had to buy my 
own.  

​ Norman263 is going to be stationed 
in Tennessee now. He told Margie264 that he is leaving this week and as for the future, he 
expects to be in the States for a long time yet. 

​ Natie265 was so excited today. His son was going to have pablum (that's a cereal) for 
the first time. Guess how much he had? It's really funny – ½ teaspoon! And next week he 
can have ½  an inch of banana for supper. What a hearty meal - Nate was telling me he feeds 
the baby at ten at night, and twice a week he feeds him at six in the morning so that Lil266 can 
sleep. I told him that I don't think you'd ever do that, and he said… you might like it when 
your time comes to be a Daddy. 

​ Hon, I received a letter yesterday which was forwarded from Alexandria [Louisiana]. 
It was from the unemployment office in regards to whether I was to receive unemployment 
benefits. I was to appear for a hearing on December 6. Well they say it's better late than 
never - in this case it just doesn't matter. 

​ Remember my telling you about the girl in my office whose husband has been 
overseas for nine months? She's been acting very down in the dumps lately. Today she told 

266 Lillian (Lil) R. Geetter  

265Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter who recently gave birth to their first child, 

Philip Henry. 

264 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman  Levy. 

263 Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy had recently enlisted in the Army. 
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me that she is sorry she got married and she wanted to know if I felt the same way. I really 
feel sorry for her, it must be terrible to feel that way. 

​ Sweetheart, Mom wants me to get to bed. I'm going to have some hot lemonade. 
Maybe if I had some of that beer you write to me about, it would either kill or cure me. Well, 
sweetheart, it's goodnight again and remember - with all my heart - 

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX 
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England
267

 

Wednesday, [January 19, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

Just a short letter today - it's getting harder and harder to write as 

the days go by - to let you know that I'm feeling fine and also to tell you 

that I love you more today than I did yesterday. 

Intended to go to town this evening, but I realized that I hadn't 

written today so postponed the trip till tomorrow; I won't miss much, and 

what I wanted to do will keep until then. Overslept breakfast again today 

and had to be content with wieners again for dinner - if after this is all 

over, I suddenly get up from the table some day when you serve Franks 

and Beans blame it on my present mess officer. Evenings I lie in bed and 

dream of those truly delicious meals you used to turn out for me back in 

Alex
268

 especially those wonderful steak dinners and… those breakfasts 

of ham or bacon and eggs. Those were the happiest days of my life, 

Butch, but I'm afraid that I never showed my true appreciation. I'll make 

it all up to you my darling, just as soon as this mess is cleared up. 

The past few days have been clear, although a trifle cold, after 

Monday's rain. Maybe winter is coming to England - will have to take a 

walk through the surrounding countryside, the fellows that have done 

so, say it is really worthwhile.Got paid today, and… your allotment was 

taken out so you should be getting it soon. 

​ No more to write about my darling, So until our date tomorrow, I'll say I 

love you very, very much and miss you terribly. Good night darling. 

I love you​
Lenny 

​ ​ Please send me Nate’s new address. 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ Love, 

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ Lenny 

268  Alexandria, Louisiana was Lenny’s last post before shipping out for England. 

267  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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Wednesday night​
January 19, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ So little has happened since yesterday that I guess this is going to be a very short 
letter. Hon, will you please write the date on the top of your letter? It will be a way of 
knowing... when you wrote the letter.  

​ Do you remember how my nails kept breaking when we were in Alexandria? Well, 
they are long again and I certainly am proud of that fact. I just wrote a letter to Franny. I 
should have answered her letter sooner, but I guess it's just one of those things you just put 
aside not meaning to…   

​ I thought it would surely snow today, but toward the latter part of the afternoon, the 
sun came out in all its glory. There has been quite a bit of ice skating and it makes me mad to 
think I've only gone ice skating once so far.  

​ Margie269 is not going to work after this Saturday. She hasn't been very well since she 
became pregnant, and furthermore she's getting bigger every day And she is known at work 
as Miss Naidorf.  

​ Ben270 is still working in Veeder-Root271. He is getting used to the work now and likes 
it pretty well. As I told you Charlie Weiner isn't working there anymore since he found out 
that he has ulcers. Adelaide's husband sent home some pictures he took in the Aleutians. 
Photography is his hobby and he takes some wonderful pictures. Cheer up hon, I know you 
want a camera - and I'll keep my eyes open until I can find one for you. 

​ Does the cigarette lighter I sent you work? I hope so. If it does not just tell me so, 
and maybe I can get another one from somebody. I've got 4 brothers and they must have 
more than one lighter hanging around the house.  

​ Sweetheart, as there is not much more to write tonight, I hope that everything is 
coming along fine. I love you so much.  

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX 

271  Veeder-Root is the largest manufacturer of precision-counting equipment. Their counters were used by Rear 

Admiral Byrd to measure the miles traveled by his dog sled on the way to the South Pole.  

270 Gladys M. Geetter married Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin (Ben) G. Geetter and had a daughter, Lorraine 

and a son, Allan Joel, who were seven and two at the time this was written. 

269 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant. 
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​
January 21, 1944 

No letter. Cartoon and one page of Local News from The Hartford Times. 
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Friday night​
January 21, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Isn't the enclosed Blondie cartoon funny? How about trying to drink your tea that way 
darling? You might start a new trend in England. 

 

​ Received the letter you wrote to me on our anniversary day. It was a very nice letter 
and I don't know why you should feel that your letters are uninteresting. I know that there is 
so much you can't write about, but what you can write and do write, means so much. 

​ I learned from your letter that Chris272 is with you now… I was anxious to hear about 
him. Give him my regards and tell him I'm glad to hear that he is well. 

​ I guess they are keeping you so busy now… Regardless of how tired you are at the 
end of the day, I bet you prefer it to just hanging around, doing nothing all day. At least time 
doesn't weigh heavily on your hands.  

​ Do you know that I thought I couldn't put the X's at the end of my letter - so I had 
to sign all of my letters without them. I found out today that it is all right and I did feel like a 
real fool. 

​ Tomorrow, my mom and I are going to the matinee performance of Abbi's Irish Rose 
at the Bushnell.273 I have good seats and I'm so happy about that because as you know Mom 
doesn't hear nor see too well. I hope it will be good because I had to do a lot of convincing 
to make Mom want to go. 

​ Darling, I am buying a $100 war bond this month and I decided that out of your 
allotment I am going to buy a $50 bond  monthly. 

273 Bushnell Memorial Hall is a music and performing arts venue in Hartford, Conn. that also shows feature films.  
 

272 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
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​ Issie274 is home tonight but he came in just for a few hours. He had a lot of trouble 
with his car on his way in and when he got home he was exhausted. He said he likes the 
Navy so far and he sends his regards to you. 

​ Tootsie called tonight and wanted to know what I heard from you and she asked me 
to send you her regards too. 

​ Did I tell you that your niece or nephew will be born in July? Tonight Margie275 was 
telling me that July will be an expensive month for me - your birthday, the baby's birthday, 
and her anniversary. Now, she can get back at me for her expensive month – October. 

​ Today we received a notice from our supervisor warning us that there has been too 
much talking during working hours and it must come to a halt or else dismissals will be 
necessary. I couldn't help but giggle as I read it and Bernie - he's my supervisor - heard me. 
It was really funny although it wasn't meant to be - it was like the notices we got in school. I 
had to ask Bernie if that means we will get report cards every month and get marked in 
deportment - Well he broke down and laughed too. 

​ My cold is all gone and it is wonderful not to have to sneeze every five seconds. 
Every time I sneeze, I lose a bobby pin and darling you know how hard bobby pins are to 
get. So, I can't afford to get anymore colds. 

​ We have a new girl working in our office and she's Jewish. I guess she's ashamed to 
say she is, so she tells one girl she's Swedish, to another she's Irish, and to another she's 
Polish. When the girls got together… it was funny to hear the nationalities she was supposed 
to be. They have nick-named her League of Nations. They want me to say something to her in 
Jewish and see if she understands. However, this is one thing I've learned it's best to just stay 
out of.  

​ Sweetheart, ohh how I hope time passes quickly until we are together again. I miss 
you so much darling. and I love you so much. Take care of yourself darling and remember 
you are always in my thoughts.  

 

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX     

 

275 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. She is pregnant with twin boys 
Richard and Steven Levy. 
 

274 Isidore left his job as a physician at Blue Hills Hospital in Hartford to enroll in the Navy. He is commuting from his 
apartment in New Britain to the Sub Base in Groton. 
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V-mail
276​

[January 22, 1944] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dearest wife - 

Once again I've changed bases, this time is final, as you can tell 

from the lapse in dates and also the change in address. This place is 

home for the duration, and from what I hear I couldn't have hit it any 

better. For a base in the ETO
277

, this place has everything - a beautiful 

club - I'm in it now - a very good mess [hall], and heated barracks. I'm 

just about ready to start in with what I've been training all this time for, 

so it can't be too long before the 25 missions are over and I'm on my way 

home. Due to the change I'll probably have to ‘sweat out’ the mail all over 

277 European theatre of operation 

276  V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad. To reduce the cost of 

transferring an original letter through the military postal system, a V-mail letter would be censored, copied to 

film, and printed back to paper upon arrival at its destination.  
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just as it was starting to come in. Now that you have my permanent 

address though, it should come regularly.  

Nothing spectacular to write about as it isn't permitted, but 

someday I'll be able to regale you and the children for hours with stories 

of my experiences. On the way down here I caught a glimpse of 

Cambridge University - a very beautiful place. Rock
278

 is sitting nearby 

and he sends his regards, also asks if you can send some latkes. My 

darling, it is becoming Hell to be away from you. I miss you so terribly 

much, love you more and like you at the same time. I have no way of 

showing it now, except by letters, but wait until I'm home. 

I do love you so very much ‘Shoo-Shoo’ take care of yourself for me 

and give me a thought once in a while. Goodnight my darling - a longer 

letter tomorrow. 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

278 Raymond (Rock) Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
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This V-mail was written by Lenny Levy on 1-22-44, posted by the US War Offices Post on the Knettishall 

AFB on 22 JAN 1944 and received by the Hartford Connecticut post office on January 31, 1944. 
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Jan 22, 1944 

Hi Lenny, 

First – you’ll forgive me for addressing you as Flight Officer as that is now incorrect. It has been 
rumored about at home that you may be a Second Lt. [Lieutenant]. I haven’t been home in 10 
days. I’m not up to the minute on any news. 

The plus for this informal note is to send my belated best wishes on your foreign mission. 
Matters of a military nature have overwhelmed me the past few weeks and I’m just about getting 
my head out of the water. On Monday next, I’ll be in my 2nd month of service. Of course, that’s 
small potatoes when matched against your... time – Yet the days are slipping by faster than I had 
expected. 

As you know, I’m stationed at the Sub Base in New London – fortunately close to home. I don’t 
know how long I’ll be here - so any day I may find myself detached – I hope not for long. I hope 
not for a few weeks. I do want to break away from the family easily and not all in one shove. The 
work I am doing is of a medical nature but is not at all in the field of anesthesia or hospital 
administration. That doesn’t disappoint me one bit. I was prepared to do something different 
once I got in, so I’m not upset. 

Have seen the family in Hartford but once this month – saw Sylvia at the time. They all looked 
well to me then. Do call up Nate and Mom when I get to New Britain or inquire of the Hartford 
gang when I call New Britain279. 

Well, I wonder what goes with you since you reached foreign shores. There is no doubt that it 
will be in for a big share of active service. In spite of everything I ought to be doing, my thoughts 
often turn to you and the important missions you and the remainder of your crew will be 
undertaking. And always, I wish to the utmost the complete success of each of your assignments.  

Yes, Lenny, this is just a note to say “Hello” - to tell you of my sincerest wishes for your safety. 

        ​
Love always​

Is             

 

Ft. Cmdr.​
I. S. Geetter U.S.N.R.       ​
Sub Base – New London Conn.​
561 Bomb Squad          ​
D. O. Q.           

279  New Britain is the relatively new home for Isidore and Rebekah (Babe) Geetter and their five children aged 1-10. 

Issie’s return address shows his commission in the US Navy, which has him posted at the Submarine Base in 

New London, Connecticut. 
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Saturday night​
January 22, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Today I received a letter from you which you wrote on New Year's Eve. It took a long 
time getting here but it was a letter worth waiting for. I don't know what caused the delay 
because your letters seem to be arriving about ten days after you write them. 

​ Darling, we are sort of perplexed about your APO numbers. [Your] Mom wanted to 
send a cable to you last night and when she called the Western Union office they told her 
there was no such APO number listed. I called the American Red Cross today and explained 
about the cable gram and they said the APO number 12662 is an embarkation point number 
and that's why we can't send the cable gram… If you have a delay in getting our mail, it's 
because it has to be rerouted from that embarkation point. Darling, haven’t you got another 
number now? In regards to why Mom wanted to send a cable - she just wanted you to know 
that we are receiving your mail and everybody is well. However, I hope that our mail is 
getting to you. It is terrible if you are not getting it - and you have been waiting such a long 
time to hear from us.  

​ I mailed a 5 pound package to you today - that's a regular overseas package. I am not 
saying how it went through but nevertheless, it's on its way. There is candy in there and 
although there's not too much you can put into that [size] box, I hope you will like it. 

​ This afternoon I went to the Bushnell 280with my mom to see Abie's Irish Rose. Very 
good seats but Mom still had difficulty hearing everything. The performance was “all right” 
but that's about all. It wasn't as good as I expected it would be and I was disappointed. 

​ This evening Roslyn281 called me and we decided to go to the movies. I was home 
later than I expected and it is now twelve o'clock. Truthfully, it is hard for me to stay up 
much later than twelve - that shows how [much] I am getting away from nightlife. 

​ There's not much else to write tonight as not much more has happened. However, if 
only I could tell you how much I miss you and how much I love you - this letter would be 
volumes. I hope that just being able to… say that I love you and miss you so much, helps 
express what I feel. Take good care of yourself darling - 

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX     

281 Roslyn  (Mandell) Goralnick was married to H. Robert (Tuddy) Goralnick (also known as Bob Gorin).  Tuddy’s 

parents lived next door to Lenny’s parents. 

280 Bushnell Memorial Hall in Hartford, Connecticut is a venue for live theatre and music that also showed movies. 
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Somewhere in England
282

, unstated 

Monday - 23​
[January 23, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

At last I have the time to sit down and write. Overnight my life has 

changed from one of leisure to that of a busy person. As you know, I'm 

now at my permanent base and my work has finally begun. Yesterday, 

just as I sat down to write to you, a captain, who sleeps in the same 

barracks as [me], asked if I wanted to go for a ride. Not having been up in 

over two months I went, partly to see England from the air and partly to 

get my flying time for the month. While at operations I met the squadron 

Navigator and he made an appointment to see me at seven last night. 

When we met he took me down to the line where we spent a pleasant two 

hours talking about the work of navigation in actual combat.  

He gave me quite a few 

helpful hints and promised 

to give me more from day to 

day. When I got back to the 

barracks I found that there 

was an alert on and the 

lights went out rather early 

because most of the fellows 

had to be up by three. All of 

the above is in explanation 

of why there was no letter 

for yesterday. Forgive me, 

my darling? 

After mailing your letter Saturday, I stepped into the bar room for a 

drink and found that there was a dance going on (later learned that it 

was a weekly affair.) While standing around listening to the music I met a 

fellow I haven't seen in over four years, We lived on the same street at 

282  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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home for a good long time, rehashing the fun we had ‘way back when.’ 

He brought me up to date on all the boys from the ‘old gang’ and then 

after a dance or two I went to sleep. 

This morning I was up by 10:00, had coffee in the snack bar, took 

care of some details and am now in the lounge writing. My ‘home’ is even 

nicer than I thought at first - the club is much better than the one we 

had at Alex
283

, the fellows are all very friendly, the meals good, the 

theater has plush seats (my aching ‘twizzzy’) but there is still school to 

go to. It seems that as long as I'm in uniform, there'll be something to 

learn. So long as it will help to bring me back to you, my darling, I'll be 

willing to go. 

Saw quite a bit of the country-side on the way down here, and as 

the sun was shining it looked quite nice. Stopped in Cambridge for a 

while and, except for the narrow streets and the wrong-side-of-the-street 

drivers, it looked like any average size city back home. Cambridge 

University looms out on the skyline and is really an impressive sight. 

 ​ With the exception of 

Chris
284

 (and we expect him along 

any day) Crew18 is intact. Rock
285

 

already has one mission to his 

credit and is still talking about it. 

He has relatives in London and on 

our first pass we are going to visit 

them and maybe get a real 

home-cooked meal – latkes
286

 and 

all! 

Speaking of passes: we get a fifty-six hour pass every three weeks 

so I guess it will be some time before I see the night life of London again. 

286  A latke is a type of potato pancake or fritter in Ashkenazi Jewish cuisine that is traditionally prepared to 

celebrate Hanukkah.  

285 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

284 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

283 Alexandria, Louisiana was the last US Base Lenny served at before shipping out to England. 
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No mail from you in almost a week, due to my change of bases, so 

once again I'm eagerly awaiting news of home and you, my sweetheart. 

It's time I took care of some important matters, so if you'll excuse 

me from rushing off, I'll go attend to them. Before I go, however, I want to 

tell you once again that I love you ever so much my darling and do miss 

you terribly - pray that it won't be long before we are together again. 

Until tomorrow - when I'll write again. 

 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

​ ​ ​ I like you too ‘Shoo-Shoo’  

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ Love,  

​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ L. 
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Somewhere in England
287

, unstated 

Tuesday - 25
288​

[January 24, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

Here I am, after a hard day of trying to keep one step ahead of 

those who are trying to put me to work, reporting the events of the day - 

hope all my small talk makes for an interesting letter. Awoke just after 

8:00, in time to miss breakfast as usual, so contented myself with 

buttered toast and coffee (complements of the snack bar.) After that 

hearty repast I fetched myself over to Ground School where I heard more 

of the same dribble that's been thrown at me since leaving school. Class 

lasted until eleven-thirty when it was time for the noonday meal which 

consisted of that delight of all Etousians
289

 (GI's of the ETO
290

 – stew! Had 

planned to go back to school for more dribble but Lieutenant Arban, the 

squadron Navigator collared me for some extra help and practice on 

(censored
291

), the greatest aid
292

 to navigation since the compass. After an 

hour and a half of this I decided to call it a day - and that I did. Hung 

around the barracks, washed up, straightened things out a bit until time 

for supper. Eating over for the day, we took ourselves to the Post theater 

to see a musical revue staged by the enlisted men of this base. The name 

You've Had It is a story in itself and I'll endeavor to explain it now. If you 

run after a bus and just miss it, the English say ‘You've ‘ad it, chum,’ 

meaning ‘You had your chance and missed it’ - translated literally into GI 

talk  T…. S…  The revue itself was very good, depicting the humorous 

side of various phases of army life. The music, all original, was very good 

292  Royal Air Force: Knettishall was a fully operational RAF base before serving as an American base. Lenny was 

pleasantly surprised by the condition and state of technology of the radar and navigation tools here. 

291 In this letter, Lenny self-censors the word radar, the X kisses below his signature, and the location of the ase. 

290 European theater of operation 

289 A word coined by Lenny 

288 A typo 

287  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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and quite catchy; it was played by The Gremlins - The hottest thing in the 

ETO. The show lasted a full two hours and every bit of it thoroughly 

enjoyable. One fellow in particular stopped the show; originally he sang 

with Xavier Cugat and Ernie Madaguina - sang Amabala among others in 

Spanish and as I said he stopped the show. From there we adjourned to 

the club where, after a game of Snooker - a form of billiards - I came into 

the lounge to write. That my darling was today - not unlike many that 

have gone by. 

Due to the fact that Chris
293

 is not here yet we are not operational, 

so I'm still ‘sweating out’ my first mission. Foolish as it may sound, I am 

anxious for them to start because the sooner I get them over with, the 

sooner I'll be back with you, and that my sweetheart is all that I'm living 

for. Mail has yet to catch me, so I'm in the dark as far as news of you, the 

family or Hartford is concerned. Please don't neglect to include all the 

details in your letters, things like how the city looks with the lights back 

on, your job and even the weather. 

Time to get some ‘sack time’ Butch, So, once again, I want you to 

know that I love you very much. If I remember correctly you were once 

afraid that I'd stop telling you that but, believe me my lovable wife, I'll 

never get tired of telling you that I love you nor how much I love you - 

Goodnight my darling - take care of yourself. 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

293 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
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Monday night​
January 24, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ The newspaper that you 
sent me, the Evening Standard294 
arrived today. It was very 
interesting and I read it from 
start to finish. I am going to put 
it in our scrapbook.295 

​ We had miserable weather 
yesterday - it rained and then it 
snowed - but it was a wet snow. 
It didn't clear up until 5:00 and I 
decided that I'd run over to 
Natie296’s and see Philip297. He 
looks much nicer now - he's 
gained weight and there is 
something to see now… He's 
two months old today - that's 
two days longer than when we 

said goodbye.  

​ I was just speaking with Margie298. She isn't working anymore as I have already told 
you. She told me Boomey is in town – he visited Dad this afternoon. That's all I know about 
it - but isn't it nice that he can get home. I guess it was another sudden pass and he came in 
very unexpectedly. 

298 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and at the time of this letter was pregnant 

with their first child.. 

297 Philip Henry Geetter is Sylvia’s nephew. 

296 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan (Nate) A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter and had two children, Philip Henry, 

who was two months old at the time this was written. 

295 Sylvia’s scrapbook of Lenny’s mailed souvenirs has been lost. 

294  Lenny and Sylvia expected he was heading to England. This was the part of the plan to share his Mission 

location, which otherwise would have been censored: sending a newspaper. The Evening Standard is a 

newspaper published weekly and distributed free of charge in London, England.  
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​ Last night I went to the Lenox299 with Sadie300. I saw Red Skelton in I Dood It and hon, 
I laughed so much. It was very entertaining and I enjoyed it immensely. Looking over the 
theatre section of the newspaper you sent to me, I noticed that most of the pictures are films 
that were produced here. Oh yes, I get a real kick out of the crossword puzzle - the way it is 
worded - it is a puzzle! 

​ Sweetheart, I'm hoping I get a letter from you tomorrow - missing you so much - you 
have no idea how I look forward to your letters. Every night I pray that you are well and hon, 
add that you will get my mail - I just hope you have received all of it. Goodnight darling, and 
with all my heart, I love you. 

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX    

 

 

  

300  Sylvia’s oldest sister Sadie Geetter 

299 The Lenox was a movie theatre on Albany Ave. in Hartford, Connecticut.  

Page 572 



 

Somewhere in England
301

, unstated 

Wednesday - 26
302​

[January 25, 1944] 

 

Dearest wife - 

Just remarked to the fellow sitting next to me that writing gets to 

be more of a problem every day - there just isn't anything to write about. 

This was one of those good days, slept till eleven, attended a couple of 

lectures but took it easy the rest of the time. Oh yes, I drew some more 

equipment - soon I'll need a warehouse to store it all.  

Felt rather ambitious earlier so I wrote a few outstanding letters 

including one to the future mother Marge
303

. She no doubt fell over when 

she saw it. 

Still non operational so I can't fill the sheet with exciting reports of 

dropping bombs on Europe - in fact I seem to be just as far from the war 

as we were back in Alexandria. Remember my saying that I wanted to 

come here because the navigation was so easy? Well it's even easier than 

I thought with all the aids the R.A.F.
304

 have; soon I'll be able to get as 

much sleep as Rock
305

. 

Not another thing to say, so with all my love i'll say goodnight - 

 

Goodnight my darling -  

 

I love you​
Lenny 

305  Raymond (Rock) Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

304  Royal Air Force: Knettishall was a fully operational RAF base before serving as an American base. Lenny was 

pleasantly surprised by the condition and state of technology of the radar and navigation tools here. 

303 Margie Naidorf Levy was Norman’s wife and pregnant for the first time. 

302 A typo 

301  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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Somewhere in England
306

, unstated​
Thursday​

[January 26, 1944] 

Dearest wife - 

After reading your first V-mail
307

, I heartily agree with you that they 

are not very pleasant to receive; not only are they too short, but they do 

not even look like a letter. I'm truly sorry I sent the few that I did, But 

you can be sure that there will be no more. It's true that stationery is 

very hard to obtain; as you can easily see from the very assortment I've 

been using lately, but no more V-Mail. 

Can readily understand your surprise about the ring, my darling, 

but I did mean every word of it. Just as soon as I get to go to a town, I'll 

have my finger measured and send it (the size) on to you. Glad you didn't 

ask for an explanation of my change in feeling for I'm afraid I couldn't 

give one - it's just that I want everybody to know that I'm married instead 

of trying to keep it a secret, as you, jokingly, accused me of trying to do. 

So you are curious as to what Boxing Day is? I was too for quite 

some time, until I found somebody who knew. The explanation as I got it, 

is this: years ago the fortunate few who were wealthy made boxes, 

containing gifts, food and clothing, on Christmas night and then, 

through the Church, they would be distributed to the poor the next day - 

hence the name Boxing Day. Like all holidays, about all that remains is 

the name, and now the holiday merely calls for an extra day of 

celebration.  

Along with your two letters today I also received one each from 

Norm
308

 and ‘Boomey the Kid’  wrote his from the hospital and there was 

nothing of interest in it. Norm's letter further proved that his luck is all 

good. He is now stationed at Langley Field Virginia - only thirteen hours, 

308 Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy had recently enlisted in the Army. 

307  V-mail, short for Victory Mail, was a hybrid mail process used by the United States during the Second World War 

as the primary and secure method to correspond with soldiers stationed abroad. To reduce the cost of 

transferring an original letter through the military postal system, a V-mail letter would be censored, copied to 

film, and printed back to paper upon arrival at its destination.  

306  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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by train, from home and he is free practically every weekend. Just before 

arriving there, he got into a poker game and made a fistful of money. 

Traveling by plane, he saved some time and was able to spend a few days 

in Hartford. He also told me that Ebner
309

 is now stationed somewhere in 

Ohio - as yet I haven't heard from him but sooner or later the mail 

catches up to me. No doubt he (Boom) and [Frances] will get married one 

of these weekends - do you get to see her much? 

By the time this reaches you, the package will have arrived. The 

lighter will be very much appreciated, for even matches are rationed - to 

the tune of one box a week. 

This was another easy day; slept until nine-thirty, had coffee – at 

the snack bar and then attended class, with Rock
310

, for an hour. The 

afternoon was free and we spent it playing Gin Rummy - He keeps 

beating me though and therefore it's not enjoyable. Oh yes, Chris
311

 came 

in last night, so once again we are all 

together - it shouldn't be too long now before 

we start work again. I keep threatening to 

write to Fran about his alleged misdoing and 

now he's trying to find out your address - to 

hold over my head.  

Your pictures, all three of them, 

occupy a place of honor in the barracks, my 

sweetheart, And the usual compliments on 

what a pretty wife I have, have been 

forthcoming with regularity by everyone that 

sees them. They all three overlook my bed 

and each morning I awake to look right into 

your brown eyes - I do love you so very very 

much my Butch - I’d give most anything just 

to hold you in my arms for a moment – God 

311 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

310  Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

309 Ebner Glooskin graduated from Weaver High School with Sylvia in 1938 and has been a friend of his since Lenny 

and Sylvia started dating. 
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how I miss you. Nothing matters but that, someday, I am able to come 

home to you and make you the happiest girl in the world. Just pray that 

the Allied successes continue and that time will [come] sooner than we 

dare hope. 

By the way, I notice that your customary X's were missing in the 

last two letters - please put them back - or did you purposely leave them 

out because I did? Mine are out only because censorship forbids them. 

In one of your letters you mentioned the fact that you are putting in 

quite a bit of overtime and that it tires you out - please take care of 

yourself for me, my darling because I want you just as I left you. 

Until tomorrow then, when more of your letters should give me 

more questions to answer, I'll say goodnight - but not before I tell you 

once again that I love you very, very much (and like you too.) 

Goodnight my darling -  

 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

 

 

On the back of the envelope is a penciled greeting from another Hartford 

boy in  Knettishall: Hiya Toots – S.E.
312

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

312​  Sam Ellison 
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Wednesday afternoon​
January 26, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ I am writing this letter in the thirty minutes I have left in my lunch hour. I didn't write 
last night because as soon as I came home from work - all I could do was eat and go to bed. 
I thought my eyes would close at work all during the day, I was so sleepy. So, by nine o'clock 
last night I was fast asleep and I feel wonderful today.  

​ It is very cloudy today and it looks as though it is going to rain. I hope not, because 
as usual, I don't have my umbrella. 

​ This morning just flew by.313 I was so busy all morning that 
when the lunch bell rang, I couldn't imagine what it was… I don't 
kill time at this job like I I used to do when I worked for the Retail 
Credit Company314. Speaking of the Retail Credit Co.,  reminds me 
that I have to call them up about what my earnings were for the 
time I was employed there. I have to file my income tax returns. I 
won't have a large tax to pay this year because I didn't earn very 
much - I only worked four or five months. Oh, What a life - Just 
working five months out of twelve. Yes I'm lazy. 

​ The insurance agent was around last night - I was working overtime. He has the 
money from your policy. I called him and I expect him to come again tonight. 

​ I'm thinking of visiting [your] Mom tonight… if it doesn't rain. 

​ My boss just passed by and he told me to tell you that I'm 
working hard. He is always kidding with the girls. 

​ Sweetheart, I don't know whether there is a letter from you 
today as yet - but I'm looking forward to receiving one.  

​ I am going downtown tonight directly from work. It is Tootsie's 
birthday tomorrow and I have to get her a gift - just what is still a 

problem. 

​ The girl who sits in front of me was just remarking about my diamond - I wish you 
only heard all the compliments I get on it. ​ 

314  By the 1940s, Retail Credit Company was one of the nation's largest credit bureaus, holding files on millions of 

American citizens. It now operates as one of the “Big Three” credit bureau, Equifax. 

313 Sylvia worked at Associated Transport. 436 Capitol Ave., which was one of the largest Transportation Companies 

in the country at the time. They were in a period of growth and mergers. 
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​ It has been a little more than two months since we have said goodbye. Darling, I've 
missed you so much. I'm really thankful for the fact that I'm working and although it 
requires a lot of extra time and energy - it keeps me busy and I don't notice the time passing. 
It's time to get back to work, so I'll have to end this letter. Until tomorrow when I write to 
you - remember that I love you with all my heart. 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX 
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Thursday night​
January 27, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ It is now eleven o'clock and everybody is in bed. It is so quiet that the scratching of 
my pen is magnified a million times louder. 

​ Sweetheart, I've missed not receiving mail from you so much this past week. I am not 
feeling sorry for myself - really I'm not - but I can understand how you must feel not getting 
our mail for such a long time. I do hope with all my heart that you have received some of it. 

​ I tried to send you a copy of this week's Saturday Evening Post but they wouldn't accept 
it at the post office.  

​ Came home from the Lenox315. I went with Florence 
Greenberg, very unexpectedly. We saw Guadalcanal Diary. It 
was good as far as I could see - the woman in front of me 
had a peculiar hairstyle and it got in my way. If it was her 
hat I could have asked her to remove it, but, in this case, as 
you can well see, I was just plain stuck. 

​ We did not work overtime tonight and it felt just like a 
holiday. My boss suddenly thought we were tired, so he 
generously let us go home at five. It was appreciated 
nevertheless. 

​ It gave me a chance to get Tootsie a birthday gift. I 
got her a cookbook too - remember she got me one, too? I 
called her this evening to wish her a “happy returns of the 
day.” She was all set to go out for the evening. She was 
going out to dinner and she and Charles were going to the Bushnell 316to see Jane Eyre. She 
asked me to come to supper Saturday night - so I guess that's where I'll be Saturday night. 

​ I was speaking to your mom tonight. It has been several weeks since I've been at the 
house, so in order to make sure I come this Sunday, she invited me for dinner. It really isn't 
that I need an invitation to visit Mom and Dad. In fact I like to go there, but I just haven't 
had much time lately. 

​ Darling, I've been trying so hard to be brave and not wear my heart on my sleeve - so 
to speak. but golly, honey, I hope I'm not being a sissy when I tell you that I miss you so very 
much. I must confess that all I think about lately is how wonderful everything will be when 

316 Bushnell Memorial Hall presents live theatre and music, as well as feature films. 

315 A movie theatre in Hartford, Connecticut 
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you are home again as my darling husband. I find myself looking at linens, and dishes, and 
silverware, and furniture: things that never interested me before. It is perhaps just 
dreaming… when I look at all these things but I know that God will make these dreams 
come true in the very near future. So darling, until that happy day, with all my heart I love 
you. 

       5Goodnight, darling - 

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX 

 

Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:           

A. C. Williams [Signature]           ​
1st Lt. AC Adj   ​
561 Bomb Squad           ​
4-21-44           

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Mar 23, 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and a Second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated April 20 1944 by the Control Section. 
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Somewhere in England
317

, unstated 

Friday​
[January 28, 1944] 

 

My darling wife - 

Evidently my days of sleeping late are to be but fond memories; 

today I was rudely awakened at six-thirty and told to be at briefing at 

eight. Therefore, I had my first breakfast at this base and then went 

down to the line for a practice mission. Chris
318

 was ‘checked out’ today 

and we flew as a crew for the first time since leaving Alex[andria]. When 

we got out to the ship, I found the squadron navigator waiting for me - 

instead of going along just for the ride I, too. was to be checked out on 

the type of navigation used here. We took part in a big formation with 

Chris doing very well - I think I did also but no word was forthcoming 

from the navigator; however, I did not get lost and, over here, that is 

quite an accomplishment. We flew about three hours and I hate to say 

this, for the first time since flying in a B-17, I felt a bit woozy. I blame it 

on the fact that my stomach is a bit unsettled and also because it's been 

so long since last I flew. This afternoon was spent at school so you can 

see that there was no time for the ‘sack’ today. 

Expected mail today, but was sadly disappointed - not a one. That 

is the sad state of affairs that the postal system is in here in the E.T.O. 

(By the way, in case you are a bit puzzled, E.T.O. means European 

Theatre of Operations.)  

By the way Butch, you've never mentioned, in any of the letters I've 

received from you, whether or not you ever got the stuff I sent you from 

Grand Island
319

. Let me know in your next letter if it came; in case it 

didn't I'll write to G.I. and have it traced, for there was some valuable 

319 The Grand Island Army Air Field was located in Grand Island, Nebraska. It was the final stop for many airmen, 

including Lenny, before going overseas for combat in the European Theater against the Germans.  

318 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

317 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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equipment, including that box of gum in it for you. Also let me know if 

you've received your first allotment check yet. 

I tried to cable you yesterday, but what I had to say would have 

been so decided against it. The one thing I wanted you to get in a hurry 

was my change of address but they won't let it go by cable - why I don't 

know. 

Last night's lengthy letter, plus the lack of anything exciting today 

leaves me with nothing more to write about, my sweet. 

(Chris just went to the bar to buy a couple of Cokes - not the real 

McCoy - and when he went to pay for them found that he had no money 

- so Lenny had to pay.) 

It's getting towards the end of the letter and not once have I told 

you that I loved you - but not because I forgot or because I didn't want to 

- it was merely so that I could say that for the end, like some people 

[save] the best part of their dessert. I do love you so very very much my 

darling and miss you more than ever. Please take care of yourself for me- 

Goodnight my darling-  

 

I love you​
Lenny 
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Friday night​
January 28, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ I just finished polishing my nails. I couldn't do my right hand, so Sadie320 did it for 
me. Halfway through the job, she got very silly and so did I, so I can't brag about how nice 
my right hand looks right now. I have to do it over again when I finish writing this letter. 

​ I received three letters today, but none from you. I received a letter from my cousin in 
Denver. It was a very nice letter. She invited us to visit them someday as her guests. Oh, 
darling someday let's take a trip there - it's one place I always wanted to visit.  

​ I also received a letter from my cousin Evelyn in Newark. Her boyfriend is in 
England now. She's taking a Nurse’s Aide course to help pass the time away. If…  I didn't 
have to work three nights a week, I'd love to enroll in a class.  

​ Eleanor finally got around to answering my letter. It was just like Eleanor. I laughed 
from the start to the finish. She is in Tampa FL and I guess Sam has about one more month 
before he will be on his way. She's not too keen about his crew. She still would like to have 
me go someplace with her. I honestly don't care to go any place now darling. If I can't be 
with you, I'm happiest being with my family. I guess I finally learned that home isn't just the 
place where you hang your hat. 

​ Your cousin Buster gave me a ride to work today. He asked about you and sent his 
best wishes. 

​ Sweetheart, is there anything you want that I can send you? I know there are so many 
things you can't get, and if it is at all possible for me to get it - please tell me. 

​ Hon, how are the boys in the crew? is Chris321 having any more trouble with his ears? 
I hope not. How about you darling? How do you feel? Did you lose any weight? I imagine 
you did - but that doesn't matter as long as you are feeling well. 

​ Sweetheart, nothing more to say… I want to tell you before I say goodnight - That I 
love you with all my heart and miss you. Take good care of yourself darling. goodnight hon- 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

   

321 Augustine (Chris) Cristani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

320 Sadie Geetter is Sylvia’s oldest sister. 
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Somewhere in England
322

, unstated 

Saturday​
[January 29, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Once again Saturday has rolled around and everybody is preparing 

for the night's ‘big doings.’ Some of the boys are at the shower room, 

others are shining shoes, while others are just resting up. I've already 

done my preparation - what little I had to do, and after mailing this will 

stop in for my weekly sample of Scotch and Sodas. 

Your letter of the 12th came today: while it was full of questions I'm 

afraid that most of them have been answered in previous letters. My 

request for a package should have reached you by now, you know of the 

countless handkerchiefs I bought [and] also socks and underwear - as for 

the fluid - that is the only part of the lighter that I can buy, so you see 

that things are still working out for us. I'm still awaiting the chocolate 

although the situation here is a bit better - my biggest need now is 

stationery - if I don't find some soon I'm going to have to ration my 

letters. 

Sweetheart, you write that you were sick from over-tiredness, while 

the girls at the office think it is due to pregnancy - one is as bad as the 

other; if your present job is proving too much please, give it up. I'm sure 

that there are easier jobs to be had. 

Haven't done any flying lately and we are all becoming a little bored 

with things. The only thing for us to do here is go to Ground School and 

even that is called off when the boys go out on a mission, so you can see 

that most of the time we do nothing but hang around killing the day. 

Today for instance, I slept until almost noon and then ... a good part of 

the afternoon - taking my weekly shower - I can't afford to take them 

more often because I don't have the necessary changes of underwear - 

the laundry situation being what it is. If you think of it, send me some 

handkerchiefs and underwear - I can always use them. 

322 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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Darling in your letter you wrote ‘We Geeters are a sentimental clan, but 

there's a good reason why we are.’ What, my Butch, is that good reason? 

The boys are getting ready to leave now - I guess I'll tag along. You 

can be sure my darling that each sip of each drink will bring back 

memories of the times we went out and we drank - you and your Scotch 

and Ginger Ale - me and my Scotch and Soda, at the Old Mill, Club 

Ferdinando and all the other places. Someday soon my sweet we’ll relive 

those days, but with a fuller appreciation of what they mean to us. We'll 

know then of our great and wonderful love for each other, and what it 

means to be separated from the one we love so dearly. I do love you so 

very very much my darling. As they may have said it in the days of 

Caesar Ego sui te amo - 

 

 

I love you​
Lenny 
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Saturday night​
January 29, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Today when I came home from work, I had no plans made as to how to spend the 
afternoon. While I was eating my dinner I thought that I'd take Betty323 and Lorraine324 to 

the movies to see Margaret O'Brien, the child star, in Lost Angel. But 
when I called them, I found that they both had colds, so that was 
out. and then, when Sadie325 came home, she told me she wanted to 
look for a dress, so I suggested I go with her. So, all afternoon we 
went from one place to another looking for a dress, but there was 
nothing really nice. So Sadie went home and I went to Tootsie's 
house for supper - that was the invitation she extended the earlier 
part of the week. I haven't had bacon in such a long time and I like it 
- so it was a good supper.  

​ She was glad I gave her a cookbook for her birthday. I gave her 
one just like the one Mrs. Rodeilait had. Now… that Charlie can eat 
everything again, she can use the cookbook to full advantage. 
Speaking of Charlie, he doesn't want people to know that he doesn't 
have to be on a special dish anymore, because it might get around 
[to] the draft board - and then they might not believe he has ulcers.  

​ Little Robbie is as cute as he can be.  He still doesn't talk - Just 
one word at a time and most of it is in a language of his own. He 
calls me Wa-Wa, That's a new one to my collection. I fed him his 
supper and darling my maternal instinct was awakened. I just 
couldn't help but think how happy I'll be when I'll be feeding a son 
of ours. 

​ Charlie went back to the store after supper and Toots and I talked as usual about 
everything and yet nothing in particular. She wants me to come over again next Saturday - I 
didn't want to promise I'd come - but I think I will [go] there again Saturday. 

​ Tomorrow, I am going to your mom’s house for dinner. I would have slept there 
tonight as long as I was at Tootsies but two reasons kept me from doing so. First, I have to 
help clean the house on Sunday mornings - and I don't enjoy sleeping with Margie. She has a 

325 Sadie Geetter is Sylvia’s oldest sister 

324 Lorraine Geetter is also Sylvia’s niece 

323 Elizabeth (Betty Mae) Weidman is Sylvia’s niece 
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terrible habit of groaning in her sleep and the last time I slept there - I was awake all night 
and I had to go to work the next morning and I thought I'd never last through the day. 

​ Do you recall in my letter, I think the one I wrote last night, that I went to the movies 
with Florence Greenberg326? She's been acting very unhappy lately and on the way home 
from the Lenox327 she told me something that surprised me. Darling, this is a secret, so I'm 
trusting you to keep it. She told me she isn't happy at all and it all revolves around the fact 
that she hasn't had a child. I was always under the impression that it was she that couldn't 
have the baby, but instead she told me that there is something wrong with Lou, and he 
refuses to go to a doctor and see if something can be done. Isn't that a shame darling? I feel 
very sorry for Florence because she wants a child of her own so much328. I do hope that 
something happens and things will work themselves out.  

​ Everybody asks me about you but there's not much I can tell them, not hearing from 
you lately. I imagine you must be on the move now and it may be a while longer before I 
hear from you again. I hope that you are well, darling and are getting my mail regularly now. 
Don't worry about us at home as we are all well. I must admit we do miss your letters. 

​ It is time to say goodnight now darling. I'll be thinking of you, darling And loving you 
with all my heart.  

Goodnight darling - 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

        

        

        

 

 

 

 

328 Florence Greenberg Gold had three sons  

327 A movie theatre in Hartford, Connecticut 

326 Florence Greenberg Gold 
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Monday night​
January 30, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ The dinner that was made today was delicious. The way Mom and Dad felt about 
how long it had been since I had visited last - like years instead of a few weeks. 

​ Margie is the same - there are so many things she says and does that I can't 
understand., I have just given up. I guess it would be wise not to say any more because 
you've convinced me that I have faults too.  

​ Your Mom and Dad went 
to your Aunt Ann329's house for 
the afternoon, Mr and Mrs 
Goralnick went too. It seems 
that they have been getting 
together these past Sunday 
afternoons and have a card party. 
Mom told me that Dad slept 
until a quarter to twelve this 
morning. That doesn't sound like 
Dad does it, darling? I was up at 
six-thirty - can you imagine 
getting up that early on Sunday 
morning at home? I had a good 
reason. I began to menstruate 
and I always feel better if I 
exercise - so at six-thirty I was 
cleaning the kitchen. 

​ Rosalyn came over to Mom's in the afternoon. and Margie's girlfriends, Helen and 
Pearl were there too. It seems as though they both bought furs for their suits. Pearl had hers 
and they were very pretty. we played the records, yes the same ones that we had when you 
were home. Pearl and I jitterbugged - and hon, not being a jitterbug, I was dead tired after a 
few numbers. Later on, Pearl, Roz and I went to the Strand and we saw Desert Song - which 
was awful. We had to separate as the show was crowded, as usual. I sat between two couples 
and how I certainly missed you. Both couples were holding hands and every so often they'd 
whisper those little things - I guess I paid more attention to them than I did to the picture. 
Somebody asked me at work yesterday if I am getting used to going out without you - that's 

329 Ann is one of Bubie Levy’s sisters 
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one thing I'll never get used to - I always feel like part of me is missing, no matter where I 
go. I love you so much sweetheart - so very much. 

​ I am not going to work at 8:15 as usual tomorrow. I am taking a few hours off to go 
to the bank and get things straightened out. 

​ Sweetheart, I want to ask so many questions but honestly I don't know what you can 
tell me. I want you to tell me as much about yourself in your letters as possible and if you can 
ever send me any pictures of yourself please do. and hon, the other night I put the 
newspaper you sent me in our scrapbook330. It was a tough job “but I dood it.”​  

​ Sweetheart, tomorrow is Monday and a long day of work so I better get to bed. As 
usual I'm wide awake now, but when that alarm goes off in the morning, it won't be the same 
feeling. So angel, I'll say good night - and once more I love you darling - 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

        

        

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

330 Sylvia’s scrapbook of Lenny’s mailed souvenirs has been lost. 
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Somewhere in England
331

, unstated 

Monday​
[January 31, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Days without any mail from you, but I'll try to make this a long and 

interesting one to make up for yesterday, when I failed to write. 

Saturday night was a flop - the red ‘alert’ was on and consequently the 

boys kept themselves in reserve, there were very few drunks and the whole 

fiasco broke up early, Chris
332

 and I were in the barracks by 11:00. Most of my 

time was spent at the roulette table where, through Chris's advice, I made a 

few pounds. 

We slept late, took things easy all day and at night went to the large 

hangar where there was a big party going on. Yesterday was the first 

anniversary of the 388
th
 Bomb Group and our CO

333
, in conjunction with the 

Special Services made a huge success of the evening. They had all the beer that 

could possibly be consumed by even this thirsty bunch, there were free 

cigarettes… for everyone and then there was entertainment, both professional 

and by the boys of the post. The imported talent included, naturally, a 

striptease act, and you can well imagine the disturbance she created in front of 

those hundreds of hungry GIs and officers. Included also, was a well known 

British songstress who sang an all-requests program of American songs. The 

band played several numbers, the newly formed Glee club sang, medals were 

given out for outstanding service to the group, the CO made a short speech and 

as a finale the striptease led a Conga line that had the ‘Wolves’ standing on 

their hind legs with their tongues hanging out. From there we went to the 

snack bar for a bit of food and then called it a day. 

This morning I was up bright and early – seven-thirty - had breakfast 

(delicious pancakes) and then decided to do myself a good deed. Believe it or 

not my darling, I washed out fifteen handkerchiefs and four pairs of socks. It 

was a case of do it or go without. After hanging out my wash I took my watch 

333 Commanding Officer  

332 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

331 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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(the expensive one) to the watchmaker - I broke the crystal in Grand Island
334

. 

Walking out of the building I saw a familiar face and on looking twice 

recognized a fraternity brother of mine, Ivan Finkel
335

 by name. He is a radio 

operator in the 562nd Squadron and has nine missions to his credit.  

 

[We had a] good long talk about the whereabouts of all the 

boys and then I went to the finance office to draw my pay. 

By then it was time for Chow, so off we went. 

Ground School took up most of the afternoon and the rest of 

the time was spent in drawing more equipment (yes more), 

and straightening out my locker. Tonight, [with] the boys 

being flush, there was quite a bit of gambling going on. 

Rock
336

, as usual, went broke and Chris and I decided to 

back him to the tune of five pounds apiece. Our money 

brought him luck and he left the game well over $200 ahead! That accounts for 

the past forty-eight hours my darling. You can judge for yourself what a hard 

life I'm leading. 

Butch darling, I'm really worried about you - and your job - please don't 

work too hard and overtire yourself. If you are rundown but are afraid to leave 

for lack of money, let me know and I'll send you an extra allotment - money has 

no value here and I can easily spare some if you need it. 

As yet your package has not come, but the next few days should see it 

along with some more of your letters. 

That, I'm afraid, is all the news and views of the day. 

As usual, the best is saved for the end, and the best is when I tell you 

that I love you so very much my sweetheart. I'm getting so that I dream of you 

[at] night which means that I'm thinking of you continuously one-thousand, 

four hundred and forty minutes a day. I do love you, and like you, my Butch. 

Goodnight my darling 

I love you​
Lenny 

336 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

335 Tech.-Sgt. Ivan N. Finkle, son of Louis Finkel, graduated from Weaver High School with Lenny and was flying in 

the "Blitzing Betsy." 

334  The Grand Island Army Air Field was located in Grand Island, Nebraska. It was the final stop for many airmen, 

including Lenny, before going overseas for combat in the European Theater against the Germans.  
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Monday night​
[January 31]337, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ I feel as though I accomplished something today. I went to the bank…and I made 
myself the power of attorney of your account. I also bought two bonds - a $100 bond and a $25 
bond. From now on I'm going to use my allotment money for war bonds. I manage to get by 
on my salary, so I don't have to touch this money, and I'm glad I don't need it now, because it 
will come in very handy in the future. 

​ You should see what your smaht wife did tonight. I covered a box I had with some 
wallpaper I had, and it is a very pretty box to keep your letters in. In case you don't know 
this, I have all your letters filed according to the date you wrote them… I read your letters 
over and over - in fact every night before I go to sleep I take another one out and read it - 
and then just before I fall asleep I think about everything you wrote in that letter. It may 
sound silly to you, but perhaps you understand. 

​ Just think, today is February 1. that future we dreamt so much about together is 
getting closer and it won't be long before everything comes true. I just know everything is 
going to work out fine, and we are going to have so much happiness someday. You just wait 
and see, and hon, everything is going to be for the best - like it has always worked out… for 
us. (Of course, my fingers are crossed on the last remark - just for good luck!) 

​ It seems, colds are getting everybody. My mom has a terrible cold, and all she does is 
sneeze continuously. So many girls didn't come to work today because of colds. My boss gets 
so mad when one of us stays out because the work piles up so fast. 

​ Don't forget to mention anything you may want or need, that I can send you, darling. 

​ As yet Frannie has not answered my last letter, and I am very anxious to hear from 
her. 

​ There's not much more to write now, darling. So, once again, it's goodnight, darling 
and - 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

 

 

337 Dated February 1, 1944 in error. 
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Somewhere in England
338

, unstated 

Tuesday​
[Feb 1, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Just a few lines tonight to let you know that I'm still well but not too 

happy; there was still no mail from you and I am beginning to think that 

somewhere along the route they are neglecting to forward my mail. Surely by 

now they all have my forwarding address so there can be no other excuse. 

Today, like all the preceding days, has been one of comparative leisure. 

We were up by 9:30, grabbed a bite at the snack-bar and then went to a class 

in Communications. First there was a written test, in which I did fairly well, 

and then my old bugaboo, [Morse] code, reared its ugly head (to coin a new 

phrase.) Not having taken any in so long I was very slow at it and required a bit 

of help from my radio operator.
339

 With our combined efforts I managed to 

squeeze through. In the afternoon we had another hour of the same subject 

and then I was free for the rest of the day. 

In place of Monopoly we three have become Gin Rummy and Fan-Tan
340

 

addicts. By ‘we three’ I naturally exclude the co-pilot
341

 who is just as eccentric 

as ever. I just can't figure the fellow out. He keeps to himself all day long and 

never has a civil word for anyone.  God only knows what we ever did to deserve 

a character like that. He is just the opposite of ‘Red’ or ‘Copy’ - who was one 

swell fellow. Getting back to the card game, because I was winning most of the 

time, Chris
342

 and Rock
343

 ganged up on me and really took me for a ride. 

We are still non operational and getting more tired of it as the days go by. What 

is holding us back nobody seems to know, but that's the way it is. 

343 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

342 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

341 Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington is the Co-pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

340 Fan-Tan, or fantan, is a gambling game long played in China. It is a game of pure chance. The game is played by 

placing two handfuls of small objects on a board and guessing the remaining count when divided by four. After 

players have cast bets on values of 1 through 4, the dealer or croupier repeatedly removes four objects from 

the board until only one, two, three or four beans remain, determining the winner.  

339 William Burtle Mayne was the Radio Operator in Lenny’s crew. 

338 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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From doing nothing I'm very tired and so I think I'll cut this short and go to  

bed. 

Until tomorrow then, my darling, again I want to say that I love you very very 

much. I also like you very very much ‘Shoo Shoo.’     

Goodnight my darling 

I love you​
Lenny 
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Tuesday night​
February 1, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Yesterday I was ahead of myself - I was under the impression that it was already 
February 1 - see what love does to me. The Fourth War Bond Drive ought to go over real 
big this year when you hear who is helping to sell them - Betty May344. I came home from 
work tonight to hear she's been calling everybody about buying war bonds. She even called 
your mom. It is for the school drive and hon, it's a riot to hear how she asks you to buy a 
bond. She really doesn't know what it's all about. She couldn't ask me about it today because 
by the time I got home from work tonight, she was in bed. However, I will have to buy one 
[from] her - after all, she gets such a thrill out of it.  

​ Which reminds me, she wouldn't come here Sunday afternoon because I wasn't going 
to be home. It's not because she doesn't like Sadie and Mom as much as me, but when I'm 
home, she has somebody to talk to, and I usually end up playing with her. 

​ She told me she wrote you a letter and when I asked her what she wrote her reply was 
“Do you tell me what you write in your letters?” That ended that.  

​ Golly, is it cold tonight? Oh how I would love having you here and snuggling up to 
you tonight.  

​ A girl in my office was married a week ago and she just came back today. Her 
husband was discharged from the Army. Well, she is getting the usual rubbing. She made me 
laugh today when she told me that I will have to learn all over again, while she'll be 
experienced…  

​ I almost had my two tickets for the [movie] Doughgirls 
thrown out. I was looking for them… and I found them in the 
wastebasket. Don't ask me how they got there, but they were 
there.  

​ The office is having a party Thursday night for two of the 
fellows that are leaving for the Army. The old timer I was dancing 
with at the Christmas party tried to convince me I should go, but 
he didn't win. 

​ I saw an awfully cute dog as I was going to work today. It 
reminded me of your promise to get me a dog someday - I always 

344  Elizabeth (Betty Mae) Weidman is the daughter of Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye and her husband Louis B. 

Weidman. 
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wanted a dog; and yet, I'd rather wait until I had a baby and have the dog grow up with the 
child. Don't you agree with me, darling? 

​ We had good news at the office today. I think we are only going to have to work two 
nights a week overtime instead of three - that will be on Monday and Tuesday nights. I'm 
really very happy about it because I find it hard to get anything done at night when I get 
home so late. 

​ Mom told me that you mentioned in your last letter to her that you bought a new 
coat. Is it a short one? I know you wanted to get one when you were home. Well, now you 
have an English tailored one. I know it must be very nice and it looks well on you. Wear it 
well, darling. 

​ I'll say goodnight now darling - and hope to hear from you soon. I love you darling 
and miss you. Take care of yourself. Goodnight darling - 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          
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Wednesday night​
February 2, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ It's funny how things happen. Ida, she's a girl in my office, hasn't heard from her 
boyfriend for about as long as I hadn't heard from you, and today she was so excited because 
she received a letter. She said that maybe when I go home, I'll have a letter from you - and so 
I did. It is hard to tell you how happy it made me feel to hear from you. It is good to hear 
that you like your new place and everything is fine. Yes, there will be so much you will be 
able to tell me and of course we can't forget the children. However, I do wish I could be with 
you - I know that's just wishful thinking. If it is permitted, can you tell me where you are? 

​ Hon, I have such a surprise tonight. You'll never guess who called and the news I was 
given. Well, Ann Pratt called and she has a son five weeks old - isn't that wonderful? I had no 
idea she was pregnant - and I was under the impression that she couldn't bear children. She's 
still living in the same place. Florence345 was confused when she told me Pratt moved. She 
invited me to see the baby Monday night, so I'm going there after work. I'm so excited about 
it - I think it's just wonderful and I am so happy for her. 

​ Oh yes, speaking about babies, Charlotte Greenberg346 expects to give birth next 
month. I had no idea she was even pregnant. I just found out about it. 

​ Margie347 visited Ruth Schechter348 today and she says her baby is very cute - it's three 
months old now. Walt has never seen him but they say it looks just like him. By the way, Walt 
is in Sicily now. 

​ It warmed up considerably today. It certainly was cold yesterday - brrr - I don't want 
to think about it. But, on second thought, I'd rather think about being cold than hot - I 
prefer cold weather. 

​ My check came today and I expected it about the fifteenth - that's when my last check 
came. 

​ I am giving up cigarettes but somehow I wish I had one right now - if you were here, 
I'd take one of yours. Darling - that reminds me - do you have enough cigarettes?   

348  Ruth Schechter graduated from Weaver two years after Sylvia. 

347 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and at the time of this letter was living with 

Lenny’s parents in Hartford, Connecticut. 

346 Charlotte (Greenberg) Greenberg graduated from Weaver High School in Hartford, with Sylvia. Her younger 

sister is Florence (Greenberg) Gold. 

345  Florence (Greenberg) Gold is one of Sylvia’s closest friends at the time. 

Page 598 



 

I am using your statement about Rock349 
asking for latkes350 as a request and I am going to 
send you a package this weekend. I wish I could 
put myself in the package. 

​ I was glad to hear that you received some 
of my mail. I guess it will take time before you 
get the rest of it. Did they seem like old news by 
the time you got them darling? 

​ So, you're calling me “Shoo-Shoo” now - 
it's become so popular in the office that I answer 
to it. Oh, and I have another name - “Cookie 
Puss” - you figure that one out. That's what a girl 
calls me. Today I met Saul Hoffman351 (he’s an 
old friend) and his wife - and he called me Corky. 
I almost forgot that name - but that's the only name he knows me by. Best of all, I like it best 
when my husband calls me Butch.  

​ Sweetheart, I could just about keep my eyes open during work today, so I'm going to 
bed now. I'm happy because I heard from you and I hope that there will be another letter 
tomorrow.  

​ I love you very very much, dear, Goodnight darling - 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

        

        

        

 

 

351  Saul A.  Hoffman and his wife Rosalind Markowitz also graduated in Sylvia’s class of 1938 at Weaver High School 

in Hartford, Connecticut. Lt. Leonard (Lenny) Levy graduated from Weaver in 1936. 

350  A latke is a type of potato pancake or fritter in Ashkenazi Jewish cuisine that is traditionally prepared to 

celebrate Hanukkah.  

349  Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
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Somewhere in England
352

, unstated 

Thursday​
[Feb 3, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

So much to tell you last night but I didn't write; for a change, however, I 

have a legitimate excuse. Seems as though something I ate didn't agree with 

me and I went to bed early with a bad case of indigestion. I feel better today 

and if I can remember what it was I had to say, I'll put them in this letter. 

Yesterday was a big day as far as mail was concerned. I received two 

from you, three from Mom, one from Ebner
353

 and two that make me feel ever 

so good: Valentines, one from Moe and Claire
354

 and one from Bev and 

Marilyn
355

. Butch you've no idea how swell that made me feel. It does 

something to a fellow to know that his people back home haven't forgotten him, 

especially in the case when I've known Moe and Claire for such a short time. At 

the very first chance I'll write to them - not tonight as it's too late - and try to 

show my appreciation for their thoughts. 

Eb’s letter contained just general information concerning his change of 

address and the addition of a stripe to his uniform. From his letter it appears 

that he is still the same old Eb - drifting along, and taking things as they come. 

Mom's mail was a bit outdated and most of her news was old, having read it in 

your letters. She did say that she had a nice time in New York for which I'm 

very glad. Both she and Pop have so few good times that it does me good to 

hear of them going out once in a while. 

Your letters, too, contain some good news. You mentioned the fact that 

you received the first check which takes a load off my mind. At least now I 

know that it has gone through all the ‘red tape’ and they will be coming in 

regularly. So, my darling, you're getting to be a true spaghetti eater! Glad to 

hear it. Now when I come home we can really go out and have a good steak and 

spaghetti dinner, or will you cook it for me? You seem to be going to quite a few 

355 Beverly and Marilyn Geetter are Moe and Claire’s two daughters who were ten and nine at the time of the 

writing. 

354 Maurice S. (Moe) Geetter is Sylvia’s second oldest brother and his wife is Claire K. Geetter. 

353 Ebner (Eb) Glooskin graduated from Weaver High School with Sylvia and became friends with Lenny after they 

enlisted. 

352  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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shows - that's more than I can say. I've been to exactly three shows since 

arriving here in the ETO
356

 The last time being tonight when I saw King's 

Row
357

. I really enjoyed it very much - so much in fact that I intend to get the 

book and read it. 

This was another easy day - up at 11:00, in 

time for lunch, then off to school for a few hours and 

then free for the day. Still ‘sweating out’ becoming 

operational and consequently we do very little flying. 

Our day will come soon and then you'll be reading 

about us - still haven't decided on a name for the 

ship if and when we get it, but you can be sure that 

it will be a good one.   

I've started a new saying here on the base - 

instead of saying TS, so often, it's now ‘Hard Luck’ - 

everybody is saying it -  

I am writing this without reference to your 

letters so if there were any questions they'll have to 

wait until tomorrow. Still no sign of your package 

but I understand that they take a little longer to get 

here.  

Sweetheart, by the time you get this letter Valentine's Day will no doubt 

have passed. I've tried everywhere to buy one - anything - but all to know avail. 

There just aren't any to be had. This letter , therefore, will have to substitute 

for it, so Happy Valentine's Day my darling - I do love you very much. 

Nothing more that I can think of Butch, so I guess this is about all for 

tonight. Good night my darling and when you go to bed tonight do so with the 

knowledge that your husband loves you, misses you, and likes you very very 

much. Kiss yourself goodnight for me and, as I do for you, pray that it won't be 

much longer before we can ... do it for ourselves.  

Goodnight my darling 

I love you​
Lenny 

357 Kings Row is a 1942 film starring Ann Sheridan, Robert Cummings, Ronald Reagan and Betty Field that tells a 

story of young people growing up in a small American town at the turn of the twentieth century. The picture 

was directed by Sam Wood. The film was adapted by Casey Robinson from a best-selling 1940 novel of the 

same name by Henry Bellamann. The musical score was composed by Erich Wolfgang Korngold, and the 

cinematographer was James Wong Howe.  

356  European Theatre of Operations 
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Somewhere in England
358

, unstated 

Friday​
[Feb 4, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Really nothing to write about tonight but I'll make an attempt at a letter. 

I'm really ashamed to make the above statement, for all I've done today is write 

letters, one to Moe and Claire
359

, one to Ebner
360

, and one to [my] folks. Surely 

if I can find what to write to them, there must be something to say to the most 

wonderful person in the world - you.   

 

Went to another movie tonight - saw The Man 

in the Iron Mask. It seems that the few 

pictures I do see here are really good ones. 

You no doubt saw this one too, did you enjoy 

it Butch? One thing I miss while watching a 

picture now is holding your hand. And to 

think that once you became angry at me for 

neglecting to do that very thing. Oh my 

darling, some things are going to be so 

different when I come home - no more will I 

be the forgetful husband - I've learned what 

it means to show love for somebody, 

especially when that somebody is you.   

 

Among my latest accomplishments is the 

drinking of black coffee. Just a short while 

ago, I stepped into the Snack Bar for a cup of 

coffee, rather than wait for the attendant to bring us some fresh cream (or 

360 Ebner (Eb) Glooskin graduated from Weaver High School with Sylvia and became friends with Lenny after they 

enlisted. 

359  Claire Kaplan Geetter married Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice S. Geetter and had two daughters: Beverly 

and Marilyn, who were ten and nine at the time this was written. 

358 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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rather condensed milk.) I decided to drink it black. To my surprise, it was good 

- in fact it was the best tasting cup of coffee in the E.T.O.
361

 for me.   

 

Life is still of the easy variety for me although I had to get up early for a 

class today. It lasted all of half an hour and the rest of the day was mine to do 

with as I please, namely go crazy for lack of something better. We've gotten to 

the stage where we're even playing double solitaire. I think we'd even be 

grateful for a Monopoly set!   

It's beginning to look like Chris
362

 is going to have a recurrence of his ear 

trouble. He complains of difficulty in chewing and swallowing due to a pain in 

the Eustachian tube. Both Rock
363

 and I are trying to get him to go to the Flight 

Surgeon but he refuses, saying he can take care of it himself. The last time he 

said that he wound up in the hospital. Don't in any of your letters mention this 

to Francis
364

. Speaking of Rock, he and the Co-pilot
365

 had it out ‘hot and 

heavy’ the other day and Rock flatly refuses to fly with him. It's been brought to 

the attention of our Group Commander and it looks as if we'll get a new 

Copilot. Everyone on the base knows of our eccentric crew member and he is 

the laughing stock of the post. He speaks without thinking, making ridiculous 

statements, and has no friends; in fact lives in a world of his own .   

There is an ‘alert’ tonight which means that I may be awakened early 

tomorrow to go on a mission so I'd better close soon and get some sleep. 

So, my darling, once again at the end of my letter I want to say that I love 

you, that I'll always love you – [and] when I come home I'll prove it. And, 

‘Shoo-Shoo,’ besides loving you very much, I like you. I'll not try to say how 

much I miss you because I just can't - would it ... suffice just to say that I do 

miss you?  

Goodnight my sweetheart 

I love you​
Lenny 

 

365  Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington was the Co-Pilot in Lenny’s crew. 

364 The wife of Lt. Chris Christiani 

363 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
 

362 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

361  European Theatre of Operations 
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By the way Butch, [my] Mom writes that Lenny Karathen is here in England. 

Do you think you can get in touch with Helen and find out his address?  

Love​
L. 

This letter is continued in another letter. 

Friday night​
February 4, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Right now there is a package I am mailing to you tomorrow, resting on the kitchen 
scale. There is so much I wanted to put in that package but it is surprising how quickly a 
package can weigh 5 pounds - that's the maximum weight. I put in some chocolate bars, 
nuts, a box of assorted chocolates and a few other things I thought you would like. Did you 
get my other package? It had chocolate in it and in your letter today, you told me how much 
you crave it, so it set me to wondering… whether you got it, yet. I hope so darling. 

​ Today was really a banner day for me - I received four letters from you. They weren't 
recent letters - all were written before the seventeenth of January, but it was wonderful to get 
them. I've read them over and over again, and I know before I put them away, they will be 
read several more times. 

​ Hon… I meant to explain to you about something I put in my last package. Please 
don't think I'm silly for doing so - but I put in a large cake of soap. When you wrote in one 
of your letters about how pitiful it is to see the people walk around as though they haven't 
had a soap bath in years - it bothered me. I wanted you to give it to somebody and, hon, if 
you can't eat all the candy, give some to the children you see. Mom told me that you buy gum 
in the PX  to give to the children when you go into town – darling, that was very nice to do, 
and I love you for it. 

​ I'm going to send you some stationery darling, so don't worry about not having any 
paper. Giving stationery is a [selfish] gift - you get it back in the end. smaht huh, hon! 

​ I just washed my hair but I miss the shampoos you used to give me. Speaking of 
hair…  do you know that we switched parts? Let me explain. you part hair on the side, and 
now, and you used to part it in the middle. Now I part my hair in the middle and it used to 
be on the side. 
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​ Tootsie called me a short while ago and she wants me to come over tomorrow night 
for supper. I think I will go. Tomorrow afternoon I intend to take Lorraine366 and Betty 
Mae367 to the movies, that's providing the weather will be nice. 

​ Last night, the office had the party I mentioned for two of the fellows leaving for the 
Army. This morning everybody has big heads and nasty dispositions. It seems that a good 
time was had by all. 

​ Darling, you asked me to tell you all about why Margie368 is living with [your] Mom 
and how the folks feel about it. Hon, this is something just for the two of us to know so 
please don't ever let on to Mom that I told this to you. When Margie came home pregnant - 
her parents were furious and from what Margie says they made it unbearable - nagging and 
telling her that she made her bed.  

Margie was here one Saturday night - when she went home, she had a big argument 
with her folks, and the next day she called Mom and told her. Mom told her to pack and 
come to live with her. No, Mom didn't want Margie to come and live with her, if it could be 
helped. She felt it was Margie's parents’ [responsibility] to keep her and take care of her… 
Well the Naidorf369 and Mom had a fight and now they are not on speaking terms.  

In fact, Margie never calls her mother and one day she was downtown [Hartford,] she 
passed her mother, and her mother didn't even look at her. Hon, I don't mean to be a 
Doubting Thomas - all I know about this big quarrel in Margie's house, is what Margie told me. 
I have a feeling there is more to it than we know… but no parents tell their child to leave 
and disown them for the reasons Margie gave. I've spoken with Mrs. Naidorf - she's a nice 
person and she's had a hard life…  

Margie bought a new coat and two dresses that were form fitting, when she [is] 
pregnant and she won't be able to wear them very long. Her mother took the dresses back, 
when Margie didn't know about it - and I think that started something. I don't blame her for 
wanting to buy clothes, everyone likes [new] clothes, but Norm370 isn't making very much 
now, and whatever money they have in the bank will be needed soon for doctors, hospital 
bills, and the what-not that comes with having a baby… Perhaps her mother argued with her 

370 Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy had recently enlisted in the Army. 

369  Irving and Etta (Weisman) Naidorf also lived in Hartford 

368 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and at the time of this letter was 

living with Lenny’s parents in Hartford, Connecticut. 

367-Elizabeth (Betty Mae) Weidman is the daughter of Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye and her husband Louis B. 

Weidman. 

366  Gladys M. Geetter married Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. Geetter and had a daughter, Lorraine and a 

son, Allan Joel, who were seven and two at the time this was written. 
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about not being wealthy - or even well off – she [Mrs Naidorf] can't buy the things Margie is 
going to need.  

Mom will have nothing to do with Mrs Naidorf… As much as I feel sorry for Mom, I 
can't side with her, so I don't say anything. Mom never got the story from them and as I say 
there are three sides to every story - the Naidorf ’s story, Margie’s story and the right story. 
There must be something to it because I don't believe Margie's parents would have this 
attitude. As for [your] Mom and Dad, well Mom took Margie in because there was nothing 
else she could do. She wasn't happy about it - I can assure you. However, this Sunday, she 
told me they are getting used to the idea and don't mind anymore. I hope all this works out 
all right - but you wanted the story and that's it. 

​ Darling, I think my lucky stars that we were careful - it just is very selfish to have a 
baby now because it puts the responsibility on those that just shouldn't bear it. I admit I'd 
love to have a baby but not now, not without you to be with me. I wouldn't want anyone else 
to take care of me. It's a very complicated case as far as Margie is concerned. I feel sorry for 
everybody – Margie, Norm, Mom, Dad and the Naidorf ’s. It's something that just shouldn't 
have been…  they say, time takes all matters in hand, so I guess everything will work its way 
out. Mom and Dad have life in the house now and Margie is happy because Dad and Mom 
are very good to her. So hon, I guess everything will be all right. 

​ I can't write more because six sheets is the limit for airmail letters. So, sweetheart, I'll 
send this letter, but start in on another letter - nothing like two letters in one night - 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

 

Sarah (Bubie) Levy, Arthur Levy and Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy ​
108 Colebrook St. Hartford, Conn. (front step) 
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Friday night​
February 4, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ This continues my other letter - 

​ Well, now you know the whole truth about Margie371. I know [your] Mom won't be 
pleased if she knows I told you all this, so darling, just don't let on that you know. 

​ There isn't much else right now that I can think of that has happened. I guess I told 
you everything in the first part of this letter. So, I’ll say goodnight now darling, and I'll be 
dreaming of you I know. Goodnight, sweetheart - and with all my heart - I love you. Until 
tomorrow then - 

   Goodnight - ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

        

            Sylvia​    Margie​      ? 

 

371 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and at the time of this letter was pregnant 

with twins. 
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Saturday night​
February 5, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Do you like this stationery? I hope so, because I am sending you four boxes of it and 
five packages of envelopes. It is supposed to be a fine grade of stationery, and I can say… 
that it is easy to write on. I hope that your stationery holds out until you get this. I'm making 
sure that you have enough… so that you can never use the excuse [of] not having any paper. 
Smahtt – huh, hon? 

​ When I came home for dinner, Betty May372 was here to keep me to my promise of 
taking her to the movies. I had quite a time making her agree to the fact that we were going 
to see just the one picture, Lost Angel and not sit through the co-feature. From what 
everybody told me about the co-feature, it was a very morbid picture and definitely not for 
children. Well, we went and I got such a kick out of her. There was another little girl sitting 
in back of her, but she was like that little boy when we went to the Don in Alexandria, 
[Louisiana] – remember? Betty tried to be patient, and she suddenly turned around and said 
to the girl, who was older than her - “Some children just don't know how to behave in the 
movies…”  I had all I could do to keep from laughing. There were a few sad parts in the 
picture and not understanding emotions,… she looked at me and said her throat hurts 
terribly. I was sorry Lorraine373 couldn't go - because I believe she would have enjoyed it very 
much. 

​ It was funny when I was on the bus with her. Everybody looked at her and then 
me… [and] thought she was my child. So, if you hear any stories of your wife having a 
daughter you'll know it was just your niece. 

​ After I took her home I went to Tootsies. I had bacon and eggs and - this may not 
tempt you - baked beans. Phyllis came over too, so we had a nice time just talking. Charlie 
came home later on, and he had us laughing - he can be funny when he wants to be. He told 
me to tell you to be “Wrong Way Carrigan374” and navigate your plane home sometime. He 
thinks it would be very simple. The baby is adorable and as healthy looking as he can be. He 

374 Douglas "Wrong Way" Corrigan was an American aviator known for his unauthorized transatlantic flight from 

New York to Ireland in 1938, which he claimed was due to a navigational error. His adventure captured public 

imagination and earned him the nickname "Wrong Way" Corrigan.  

373  Lorraine Geetter is the daughter of Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. and Gladys M. Geetter. 

372  Elizabeth (Betty Mae) Weidman is the daughter of Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye and her husband Louis B. 

Weidman. 
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is talking more now and Tootsie feels so proud of him. Charlie took us home and it is now 
almost one o'clock. It's rare for me to be up this late. 

​ It is very windy outdoors now and I guess it will rain tomorrow. 

​ Sweetheart I'm wondering - just what are you doing right now. I often wonder if there 
is such a thing as mental telepathy - perhaps you know I am thinking of you. Oh darling, I 
love you so much. I think so much about the time when you will be home again. There will 
be so much that can be said but I bet I'll be so happy, there just won't be a word I can say. 
Until then sweetheart, I'll be happy just loving you as I do - so goodnight darling and take 
care of yourself.  

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          
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Somewhere in England
375

, unstated 

Sunday​
[Feb 6, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

According to the clipping you enclosed in the letter I received today my 

promotion went through, now if only my orders reach me it will be official. I feel 

sure that by now that is the case, but not having the papers to prove it, I must 

still call myself ‘Flight Officer’ [instead of Lieutenant.] The feeling of 

disappointment I experienced when first learning of the title has worn off, and 

then again there is that extra money I get while overseas.  

I've just had something that I'd almost forgotten existed - a bath in a real 

old fashioned bath-tub. Through the grapevine Rock
376

 and I heard of one at 

the hospital, so after supper we took a walk over and sure enough, there it 

was. I got in and just soaked for what seemed hours.   

We are doing plenty of flying lately, but just over England. Chris
377

 is 

going through the process of being checked out in formation flying
378

, and until 

it is completed we'll not go on any real missions. However I have a feeling that 

the next time our group goes out, we’ll be right in there - I hope!   

Last night's dance was quite an affair. What the celebration was I have 

no idea, but besides the usual girls there was a stage show that was very good. 

Among the acts was the fellow who... was Jimmy Cagney's [stunt] double and 

the camp favorite: the Mexican fellow that I wrote about before. Each time I see 

him he gets better.   

In between the aforementioned bath and now, I went to the show and 

saw This is the Army
379

.  

 

379 This Is the Army is a 1943 American wartime musical comedy film directed by Michael Curtiz, designed to boost 

morale during World War II. It features a story about soldiers putting on a show, with music and lyrics by Irving 

Berlin, and stars Ronald Reagan among others.  

378 This is a big step for a Pilot – and all  ten in Lenny’s crew.  Flying in formation requires manually keeping the 

plane in its assigned position and distance from the other B-17G’s in the 561st Squadron. 

377  Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

376  Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

375 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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As you can see I go to very few shows, but those I do get to see are good ones. 

Along with the picture was a USO
380

 show with a MC that had the place 

roaring. He, Al Bernie
381

, by name, had a million gags and he kept firing them 

off one after another - and some were on the raw side. The cracks he made 

about the officers didn't make us feel too good either. All in all though, it was a 

pleasant evening with the best part of it taking place now when I sit down and 

talk to you on paper. Honestly my darling, it is this part of the day that makes 

being away from you bearable.  

Very little else to say, my sweetheart, about today's doings.   

I do love you very very much my darling and like you too -​
 

Goodnight sweetheart 

I love you 

Lenny 

       

381 Alfred Bernard Price, 1920-2003 was a gifted impressionist, who started out as a regular on Rudy Vallee’s radio 

show.  He toured with the USO for two years before resuming a notable television career. 

380 USO (United Service Organization) is a nonprofit organization that provides programs, services, and 

entertainment to the people and families of the U.S. military.  
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       ​
February 6, 1944 

To My Uncle Lenny, 

Love from Betty May Weidman 

 

 

​  

     

 

        

 

 

 

Page 612 



 

February 6, 1944 

To My Uncle Lenny, 

Love from Lorraine
382 

​  

 

 

382​  Lorraine Geetter is the oldest child of Belamin G. and Gladys M. Geetter. She was seven at the time. 
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Sunday -​
February 6, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Right now Lorraine383 and Betty384 are sitting here at the kitchen table with me 
making pictures to send to you. They are so intent on what they are drawing - It's cute to 
watch them. Lorraine is biting her bottom lip. The man next to the house is supposed to be 
a soldier holding a gun. It is more like a picture of surrealism. 

​ Nate,385 Ben386, and Lou387 are playing cards in Mom's room388. It's very quiet in there 
right now - every so often, they laugh so loud the house shakes. 

​ Right now Betty and Lorraine are getting into a quarrel as to who is copying. Lorraine 
just made a bird, so Betty has to do her one better - so she's going to make a bird house. 

​ I've been very industrious today thanks to Sadie389. I kid her about the reason why she 
can't sleep nights390 is because she thinks of what she can have me do when Sunday comes 
around. This week she had me wash the windows - so hon, I won't have to rely on not 
having a profession - I can always wash windows. Ouch - my arm aches. 

​ Darling, I'm thinking about taking out a $1000 endorsement policy. I have no [Life] 
insurance and I thought it could be wise if I had some. What do you think about it, darling? I 
wish I could talk to you about it, but this letter will have to do… my premium will be about 
40-something a year - I was thinking about taking it out under the Prudential.  

​ Rosalind called me earlier this afternoon - She wants me to go to the movies with her 
tonight. I'll go. She's a very nice girl, hon, and I like her very much. We get along very well at 

390 Sylvia and Sadie shared a bedroom with one bed in the home at 148 Magnolia Ave. 

389 Sadie Geetter was Sylvia’s oldest sister and her Mom’s primary caregiver. 

388  Adelle Stolper Geetter was 64 at the time and living at 148 Magnolia Ave. in Hartford, Connecticut. Hayman 

Geetter had died in 1940 and Adelle (Sylvia’s mother) was having a series of health concerns of her own. She 

would die in 1946. 

387  Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 

Weidman and Holly Weidman, who were six and one at the time this was written. 

386 Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. Geetter 

385  Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter 

384  Elizabeth (Betty May) Weidman 

383 Gladys M. Geetter married Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. Geetter and had a daughter, Lorraine and a 

son, Allan Joel, who were seven and two at the time this was written. 
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work391, and you know how much that means. We certainly have some characters in my 
office, and someday I'll have you in stitches telling you about them. 

​ I spoke to [Bubie Levy] today and she's made up a very nice package to send to you. 
Rock392 and you will have a treat - she's sending a salami. 

 

       (?)          Sadie​         Sarah W. Levy ​ Adele S. Geetter   ​
​ ​ ​ ​ Two Bubies (1944) 

 

​ I'm afraid that in the future I won't be going to [your] mom's house as often as I have 
in the past. My job keeps me so busy during the week that I don't have as much time to visit 
as I wish I did. Mom understands, but you can be assured that I'll visit as often as I can. 

​ Everybody has left and the house looks like a cyclone hit it. That's the way it always 
looks when the family gets together. However, I enjoy having them come over - it brings so 
much life into the house. However, Mom says I make enough noise. I guess I do that. 

392  Raymond (Rock) Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

391 Sylvia and Roz worked at Associated Transport. 436 Capitol Ave., which was one of the largest Transportation 

Companies in the country at the time. They were in a period of growth and mergers. 
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​ Issie was here last night with Babe393. He's been coming in quite regularly over the 
weekends - which is very nice. He says he wrote to you about a month ago. Did you get his 
letter? I bet that when you tried to read his handwriting, it was like working out a jigsaw 
puzzle. I always had trouble reading his letters. They all look like a prescription to me. 

​ It's time to eat supper now, if I want to go to the movies with Roz. I know we will 
have to stand before we get in, and I'm not looking forward to that. 

​ It's goodnight for today and again - let me tell you I love you darling. I must admit 
that no matter where I go, I miss you terribly and wish you could be with me. Well, that 
someday may be sooner than we expect - and then, darling, we’ll have wonderful times 
together – like we used to. So sweetheart, goodnight for now.  

​ Regards to Rock and Chris394 - and of course, all of my love to you. 

 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

        

        

        

 

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

394 Augustine (Chris) Cristani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

393 Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David, 

Albert, Thalia, Harold and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written. 
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Monday night​
February 7, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Do you remember in one of my previous letters I told you about having my 
girlfriends over for a reunion? It was just two weeks ago. Well, Sylvia Ronner Zimmerman 
was one of the girls - Sammy Zimmerman's wife - he was a big name in Weaver [High 
School] at one time for football.  

Well, Ronnie395 has been married three years and they have a little girl who will be two 
years old this April. She was pregnant when she was here and hon, I wish you could have 
seen her. She expected her baby any day and she ran up the two flights of stairs. 

​ Well, last night Sonny Rosen396 and Florence took her to the hospital as she began to 
have her labor pains and she was fine. She gave birth to a boy - just what she and Zimmy 
wanted - and she didn't live through it. She died of a hemorrhage two hours after birth. 
Naturally, you can understand what a tragedy that is - she was so healthy nobody expected 
anything like this to happen.  

Her mother is like my mom - on in years and not well - her sister has three children 
of her own - in fact one is just an infant and Zimmy's parents are divorced. He was brought 
up in an orphanage and his father married a Gentile397 woman. So, I don't know what will 
happen to the children - it's so pathetic. I went to the funeral this afternoon and hon, I'm 
still crying. 

​ I knew her very well. When we were kids we played together - she lived across the 
street from me398 - we were in the same club - I went to her wedding, and she helped make 
my shower. It was the saddest thing I have ever seen - she was only 22 and such a lively, 
full-of-the-devil girl.  

I hope that it's true about there being a heaven… it's good to believe she's happy in 
heaven. As for the children and Zimmy - I hope that everything works its way out for them. 

 

398 She lived across the street on Elmer St. where the Geetters had a 6 room flat from 1929 until they moved to 148 
Magnolia Street sometime in the 1930s. 

397 Gentile is a word that today usually means someone who is not Jewish. Other groups that claim Israelite 

heritage, notably Mormons, have used the term gentile to describe outsiders.  

396 Harold L. “Sonny” Rosen is a Weaver graduate who married Sylvia’ friend Florence, and lives in Hartford with 

their two children 

395 Sylvia Ronner Zimmerman (1920-43) was Sylvia’s best friend.  
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​ I was hoping for a letter today but I guess the mailman forgot me. Well there's always 
tomorrow…  

​ Last night I saw Flesh and Fantasy and hon, I was on the edge of my seat, all the way 
through it. And when I looked about - everybody was in the same position. 

​ Florence was just in and she was telling me to tell you that I'm still the same imp. 
Don't believe her, hon. 

​ Well darling, I'm afraid that's about all the news for today. However this may be a bit 
old now - but I mean more now than I ever did - I love you - and I love you more as each 
day goes by.  

​ So it's goodnight for now, sweetheart, but you'll be in my heart until I write you again 
tomorrow. 

​ Goodnight darling - 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX  ​
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Tuesday night​
February 8, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ There were two letters from you today, and they were recent letters - the ones you 
wrote to me and January 25 and January 23. Since you haven't been writing “Somewhere in 
England” on the top of your letter, I was under the impression you were in another country 
since you moved. Not until your letter today did I realize you were still in England. I guess 
that sounds funny to you, but that was just the impression I was under and I just couldn't 
imagine where you were…   

​ It makes me much happier knowing you have different forms of entertainment in 
your leisure hours. The Officers Club must be lovely, and the show given by the GIs must 
have been very funny. I'm sending out the stationery tomorrow - I finally got it all packed. I 
think you will have enough to last a long time - in fact I hope you will need very little of it. 
By that time I mean - you'll be home a long time before you can use it up. 

​ I just came home from Ronnie399's mother's house. I went with Tootsie and Charles 
and Phyllis. We all dreaded going in knowing what a tragedy this has been. However, after a 
few minutes the tension let up a little and we talked about everything but really nothing in 
particular - just talk. I know her family well, as we were neighbors for a good many years. It's 
such an awful thing I can't think of it, without choking up.  

​ Darling, you mentioned a boy you met there who you knew on Adams St. [Your] 
Mom told me you wrote his name to her - Ben Berman. Is his name Bennett Berman? I was 
just wondering whether he is the same fellow I know. 

​ There is a girl who sits at the desk in front of me at work400 and she certainly is a 
character. She's married and has a daughter who is three years old. However, she has a 
boyfriend, a lawyer, who is married, and they go out together. She told me he was waiting for 
her after work (we worked late tonight) and they were going out. I asked her how her 
husband doesn't find out about her affairs and if he did, what would happen. She laughed 
and said he doesn't know about it, and if he found out he'd kill her. I asked if he goes out 
with other women and she said he doesn't, because he's home every evening right after work. 
She feels sorry for me - I don't know why - and wants to “fix me up” some time. I think I 
convinced her that I happen to love my husband very much, even if she can't understand 
what that means. 

400 Sylvia worked at Associated Transport. 436 Capitol Ave., which was one of the largest Transportation Companies 

in the country at the time. They were in a period of growth and mergers. 

399 Sylvia (Ronnie) Zimmerman (1920-43) was Sylvia’s best friend. She lived nearby in the North End of Hartford, 

Connecticut and died after delivering  her second child. 
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​ I didn't do a darn thing during the two hours I worked overtime tonight. I guess the 
Associated will never get rich by my efforts tonight. I just sat there and pretended to be busy 
- it was more fun!It will be very nice if you and Rock401 go to London on your first pass. It is 
fortu nate he has relations in London - it will make it so nice for Rock, and of course, it will 
be nice for you, too. 

​ Time passes quickly when I write to you. I just realized it is after twelve and I should 
be getting ready to go to bed. So, sweetheart,  I'll have to say goodnight now and in closing - 
I send you all my love darling. 

        I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX          

        

401​  Raymond (Rock) Newmark is the Bombardier on Lenny’s crew. 
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Somewhere in England
402

, unstated 

Wednesday​
[Feb 9, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

The ice has broken - at long last,we, as a crew are operational; that last 

word means plenty of work from here on in, as if my letters do not come in 

regularly it is not because of lack of something to say, or laziness but simply 

the absolute lack of time. Monday evening we were told, by operations, that we 

were scheduled to fly the following morning, this meant getting up at three so 

we went directly to bed. After breakfast and briefing, we went out to the plane 

and at seven (the time is censored) we took off.  

 

Due to engine trouble we were unable to continue so we turned back and 

landed. By the time we had cleaned our guns and the ship, we were all so tired 

that we went directly to sleep, awaking in time to have supper.  

Walking into the club we were told that we were due to go up again this 

morning and that I had to attend a special meeting of Navigators. When the 

class was over it was time to get some sleep for we were to get up early again. 

That, I hope, my darling, explains fully the lack of letters.   

402 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  

Page 621 



 

Yesterday, and today, were big days for me as far as mail is concerned. 

Yesterday was truly the jackpot - nineteen letters from you and two letters and 

a valentine from [my] Mom. This afternoon, there were two letters from you and 

valentines from Betty-May and Holly Suzanne
403

. Best of all was the receipt of 

your package containing the lighter and the case. Thanks a million, my darling, 

you'll never know [how] handy the lighter is; on opening the package I filled it 

with fluid and it works like a charm.  

Your three large envelopes with all those letters were most welcome, for 

they cleared up a good many questions in my mind; mainly the one about the 

package sent out from Grand Island
404

. What happened to the souvenirs will, I 

guess, remain a mystery. Speaking of mysteries, Butch, who addressed the 

large envelope? Surely it wasn't you, because my name is misspelled on all 

three! Sweetheart, one of the letters I got from you today made me feel very 

good. I'm referring to the one in which you wrote that you're happy at home. 

You've no idea how often I wondered whether or not you regretted going home 

instead of to Denver
405

 as originally planned. Someday my darling, we’ll surely 

take a trek out there.   

On rereading the first page I find that I didn't tell you what happened 

this morning. We got off the ground all right but while flying around we got 

word over the radio to return to the base So – two take offs and no mission. I 

naturally can't tell you where we were to go, so you'll just have to read the 

papers to find out what part of the world I'm flying over these days. Someday, 

when I lack something to write about, I'll tell you as much as possible about 

the briefings we have - they are very interesting.  

Right now I want to get off a letter each to [my] Mom, Lou and Faye
406

, 

and, if time permits, one to Ben. I say ‘if time permits because once again we 

are scheduled to fly in the morning and it is now eight-thirty. 

406 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman is married to Sylvia’s younger sister Fay Geetter Weidman and the parents of Betty-May 

and Holly. 

405 Dora Kaufman invited Sylvia to her home in Denver. Aunt Dora was Adelle Stolper Geetter’s oldest sister. 
  

404 The Grand Island Army Air Field was under the command of the Second Air Force that was headquartered at 

Colorado Springs, Colorado. Initially the field was home to the heavy bombers such as the B-17 Flying Fortress 

and was the final stop for many airmen before going overseas for combat in the European Theater against the 

Germans. Typically crews would receive their final gear and instructions at Grand Island and many had their 

last memories of a night out on the town here. Lenny was still waiting for his belongings to arrive in  

Knettishall. 

403 Sylvia’s six year old niece Elizabeth (Betty May) Weidman and one-year old niece Holly Suzanne  Weidman, 
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By the way, in your letter you say that you imagined I'm losing weight. 

Quite to the contrary I'm getting fat - more so than at Alex
407

. (Those were the 

days, my darling, without fear I can truthfully say that they were the happiest 

days of my life.) Yeah, honestly darling I'd give most anything to relive them, 

and someday we will, only more fully I promise, Sweetheart.   

From the above you may gather that I love you my darling. That's true. I 

do love you very very much and miss you.  

​
Goodnight my darling 

I love you 

Lenny 

 

 

 

 

407 Alexandria Army Air Base in Alexandria, Louisiana 

Page 623 



 

Somewhere in England
408

, unstated 

Thursday​
[Feb 10, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Thought for a while tonight that I'd have to forgo writing this evening, or 

more drastic than that resort to the V-mail for lack of stationary, but after a bit 

of house cleaning in my foot locker I found this
409

. 

No mail today, and we didn't go on the raid this morning, so there is very 

little news to write about. Rather glad I didn't fly - it turned out to be rather a 

rough party. 

In yesterday's letter I promised 

to tell what goes on at a 

briefing. Hoping that what I'm 

about to say passes the censor: 

we're awakened very early by 

the orderly, and after dressing 

we walk to the mess hall for a 

good breakfast. Trucks take us 

from there to the briefing room 

where each man is checked in. 

When everybody is there the 

door is locked and the briefing 

officer takes the floor. In the 

background is a large map 

covered by a screen; without a 

word the screen is rolled up 

and everybody moans and 

groans because on the map is 

the course for the day's 

mission. The officer then explains why the target is to be bombed, [and] just 

how much it means to the Axis
410

. When he is there, we are briefed on the 

410 The Axis powers, originally called the Rome–Berlin Axis and also Rome–Berlin–Tokyo Axis, was the military 

coalition which initiated World War II and fought against the Allies. Its principal members were Nazi Germany, 

Kingdom of Italy and the Empire of Japan. The Axis were united in their far-right positions and general 

opposition to the Allies, but otherwise lacked comparable coordination and ideological cohesion.  

409  The letter Is written on stationary from Alexandria Army Air Base Alexandria LA  

408 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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weather and the fighter escort
411

 we can expect. At this point the Navigator and 

Bombardier go to ... separate briefings: I, to draw the necessary maps and also 

to get information pertinent only to navigation. I'm left busy until it is almost 

time for takeoff, so by the time I get out to the ship, the crew is all ready, just 

waiting for me. That is just about all I can say, hope I've made it sound half as 

interesting as it really is. 

Completely forgot in last night's letter to compliment you on the ‘doodles’ 

enclosed in one of your letters. They were really very good, my darling, and 

depict certain highlights in our life to ‘T.’ It looks like I'll never live down that 

now infamous remark, made in jest, of that morning. These drawings, along 

with other pieces…  confirmed the opinion I made long ago. If you were to 

earnestly take up painting I really believe that 

you are capable of turning out something 

worthwhile. Why, my sweet, don't you get an oil 

set, you've always wanted one, and, who knows , 

someday one of your works will hang in a place 

of honor in our home - try it anyway Butch?   

Looks as if your husband is not as ‘smaht’ 

as he thought. Today he was completely fooled. 

Not having anything to do, I decided to go to the 

show - this afternoon - the picture billed was 

The Girl in Overalls. It was new to me until the 

first flicker, then I recognized it as one I had 

seen back in the States, but still the name 

wasn't an unfamiliar one. Halfway through the 

picture I remembered - I had seen it under the 

name Swing Shift Maisie!   

I guess that does it for tonight my darling 

- I do love you , my sweet and I want you to 

always remember that.  

​
Goodnight Butch -  

I love you 

Lenny 

 

411  Fighter jets were not based at Knettishall. P51s of the 354th Fighter Group based at Boxted England and/or P38s 

of the 20th Fighter Group (King's Cliff England) escorted B-17G Bombers of the 388th Bomb Group at 

Knettishall to provide navigational support and armed protection  to the bomb group. 
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Thursday morning​
February 10, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ I didn't write last night as I decided I'd wait until this morning. It won't matter 
because you will get it at the same time, so there shouldn't be a lapse between letters. 

​ It's only 8:10 now and I feel so darn sleepy - I can just about imagine how I'll feel 
about 3:00 this afternoon. I didn't get to bed until after 1:00 last night. I went to Mrs. 
Ronner's again and Zimmy412 didn't want us to go home. He asked us to have coffee with 
him, and as he hasn’t been eating, we decided to stay and [thought] it might do him some 
good. He was in a little better spirits and I don't think he was quite as shocked about 
things… He's realizing just what happened. As yet, I don't know what will happen to the 
children - I know he doesn't want to put them in a home - he's especially attached to 
Elaine… the little girl who will be two years old in April. I called all the girls who used to be 
in the same club a few years ago and we made a collection for prayer books in her name at 
the Emmanuel [Synagogue] and we all are going to services Friday night. 

​ I'm writing the rest of this after lunch. As I expected, I didn't accomplish much work 
this morning but surprisingly enough, I don't feel tired. You asked me for Nate's address. It's 
641 Albany Ave. [Hartford, Connecticut.] 

​ Last night your cousin Charlotte Levy Wice and her friends were all at Mrs. Ronner's 
house. Let's see Sid Eichelman  and his wife Mitzi Cone were there, too. I haven't seen them 
since I was in Weaver [High School.]  Telling some jokes and there was one joke I just 
couldn't get - and I finally got it… five minutes later.  They told me I better go to England 
too, if it takes me so long to get… a joke. 

​ It's beautiful outdoors today, and I believe that accounts for my not doing much work 
today. I keep thinking of all the things I'd rather be doing.   

​ You still have to go to school - well I guess no matter how much you have already 
learned, there is plenty more yet to come. 

​ There is a girl sitting at a desk two rows in front of me writing to her boyfriend. She 
has his picture on her desk and she keeps looking at it so lovingly. He's overseas, too - in 
fact, he's been there for quite some time now. 

​ I expect the bell to ring soon - just like school - and so I better start ending this letter. 
There - it just rang… I just noticed that my boss is reading a Sports Stories Magazine. It 
reminds me that you enjoy reading those stories. Everybody is getting back to work - except 

412 Samuel (Zimmy) Zimmerman was married to Sylvia (Ronnie) Ronner Zimmerman (1920-43) who was Sylvia 

Geetter’s best friend. She died in childbirth three days ago. 
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me. Sweetheart, I'll end my letter now and…  remember that I love you with all my heart and 
I wish I could seal this with a real live kiss. 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX  
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Thursday nite​
February 10, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Seeing [as] I wrote this afternoon, there isn't much more that has happened…  
However, this afternoon, the best in me came out. A girl in the office had some candy on 
her desk, and she turned around to talk to two girls sitting behind her. Nobody but these two 
girls sit [near] her. Well, I walked over and took the candy away. When she turned around to 
take a piece of the candy, she had the funniest expression on her face. She looked all over her 
desk… and, for about an hour, she asked everybody if they saw her candy. She turned 
around again, and I put it back in the same spot. She still doesn't know who did it. 

​ I just washed my hair and it's dripping down my back - call me a drip. Margie413 had a 
bad cold this week because she visited Frances Goralnick414 - I mean Mosesson - this past 
Saturday and she washed her hair there. Larry415 ran outside - the door leads right outdoors 
and because of the draft - she certainly had a cold.  

​ I wanted to go to Mrs Ronner’s house tonight but I am afraid if I did, I'd fall asleep at 
work tomorrow. So, I'll go to bed early tonight. I am going to Faye’s house Saturday night, so 
that Faye and Lou416 can visit Ethel - that's Ronnie417's older sister. Rosalyn and Ida are going 
to keep me company. I'm going to [your] mom’s Sunday afternoon. It's been a few weeks 
since I've been there. Income taxes have to be filed next month. I'm leaving my returns up to 
Sadie418 - she figured mine out last year - so you can see that's a job well rid of - of course, 
paying it will be left to me. 

​ I better set my hair now because it is beginning to dry - and the hot water in the 
bathtub is beginning to cool. I wonder if Lou wanted to take a bath tonight - it would be too 
bad if he did - I used all the water. I'll say good night now - and with all my heart --- 

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

418 Sylvia’s oldest sister Sadie Geetter 

417 Samuel (Zimmy) Zimmerman was married to Sylvia (Ronnie) Ronner Zimmerman (1920-43) who was Sylvia 

Geetter’s best friend. She died in childbirth three days ago. 

416 Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye and her  husband Lou Weidman 

415 Lawrence Mosesson was the eldest son of Frances Goralnick 

414 The Goralnick family was a neighbor of Lenny's parents and also a friend of Sylvia’s parents. 

413  Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. 
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Somewhere in England
419

, unstated 

Friday​
[Feb 11, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Have you ever seen a bunch of fellows act like a flock of vultures? That 

was my experience today and, I hate to admit this, I took part in the 

scavenging. Yesterday three fellows from my barracks were lost in a raid
420

 and 

today everybody grabbed the articles they had their eyes on. First of all 

Chris
421

, Rock
422

 and I took over the three beds, giving us an entire end of the 

barracks. Two of the fellows owned bicycles, so now Rock and I ride them! A 

shameful way to act, but that is life in the Air Corps.   

Still living the good life, no 

combat missions but plenty of 

local flying. Every time there is a 

free ship they send us up for 

practice. The only one that really 

gets the practice though is Chris 

as we stay close to the base, and 

fly in formation, which gives me 

no chance to do any real 

navigating. I am, however, 

learning the neighboring terrain 

and that should help when 

coming back from a raid. 

Felt very good to read that 

the family likes me and… inquire once in a while about my well-being. By now 

you should know that I've written to most everybody; the only ones left out are 

Nate
423

 and Is
424

. Nate because I still don't have his new address, and Is 

424 Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Is) S. Geetter. 

423 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan (Nate) Geetter. 

422 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

421 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

420 This was during yesterday’s mission, which Lenny’s crew failed to take part in and he said turned out to be rather 
a rough party 
 

419 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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because you once mentioned that he would write to me from his new station. I 

suppose, however, that I should write to Babe
425

 Esther and the kids - if time 

permits tonight, I'll do so.  

Butch, it looks like I'll have to ask you to get me a new toilet kit. It 

doesn't look as if I'll get to London soon, and besides I doubt if I'll be able to get 

anything worthwhile here. So, if you will send me something similar to the one 

I have - nothing expensive please darling. I've been asking for quite a few things 

lately and I know that you don't have the money so I'll make a deal with you. 

This month I expect to [receive] three months back pay for flying, and… as I 

have no use for it here, I'll send it home to you. It should amount to well over 

two hundred dollars - spend as much as you want on yourself for anything that 

catches your eye - the remainder you can put away for that time when I come 

home - okay sweet?   

Received a nice letter from Norm
426

 today that cleared up a couple of 

questions, namely what was wrong with him and where he is going. Mom, no 

doubt, is happy over the fact that he has been declared unfit for overseas duty, 

it's a good break for him especially in view of his present predicament
427

 and 

that is what it is.   

Neither he nor [my] Mom mentioned the fact that Margie is living with 

Mom and Pop, but I'm afraid that I committed a faux-pas when I wrote to 

Margie in care of the folks. If the matter is not cleared up by now you'll do both 

of us a favor if you would casually mention that the reason I did so was 

because I had forgotten her home address. Please?   

I'd better get some sleep if I'm to be in any shape to fly tomorrow, so with 

all my love I'll say good night my darling.  

​
I love you 

Lenny 

 

427 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy was Norman’s wife and pregnant for the first time. 

426  Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy had recently enlisted in the Army. 

425 Rebekah (Babe) M. Geetter is married to Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Is) S. Geetter. 
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Pvt. N. Norman Levy – 1944 

Lenny’s brother 
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Friday night​
February 11, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ It has been snowing all day - the first real snowfall I have seen this winter… which 
has been very mild in comparison to last year. But, it being the month of February… it 
might be just as bad as… last year. 

​ We aren't going to the Emmanuel [Synagogue] tonight as I told you we intended to 
do. Mrs Ronner wanted to go tonight but it is snowing so hard it would be very hard for her 
to walk from Green St. She doesn't ride on Friday428. So one of the girls called the rabbi and 
explained everything, so he will read  her name before Kadish next week. 

​ Right now we are waiting for Dr Kaschmann. My mother isn't feeling too well again. 
It's the first time she is having him because her doctor, Dr. Rosenbaum, is in the Navy. You 
know Dr Rosenbaum don't you? 

​ I hope the weather will be nicer tomorrow as we intend to go to the Bushnell429 in the 
afternoon. We are going to see Doughgirls. From what I have heard it is very good, so I am 
looking forward to it. Your mail must be held up somewhere, as we haven't heard from you 
since Monday. I know you are writing regularly as you said you would, but I wonder what is 
causing the delay in the letters coming here. 

​ I have to address my valentines to the nieces and nephews today. Sadie430 bought 
some for me, and hon, I don't know where she got them. They are cute in an odd sort of a 
way, if you know what I mean.  

​ I keep teasing her about what she's planned all week to have me do this Sunday 
morning. Sadie just told me now that I better make out my income tax, but I'm trying to 
convince her that she's had more experience at bookkeeping than I, and she'd better do it - I 
don't know who will win yet. 

430 Sylvia’s oldest sister Sadie Geetter 

429  Bushnell Memorial Hall in downtown Hartford, Connecticut is a live music and theatre venue as well as a movie 

theatre. 

428  Honoring the Jewish Sabbath, which begins on Friday evening and concludes on Saturday evenings 
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[Your] Mom told me that it has been taking time for Norm431’s letter to arrive - so they 
haven't been getting any mail either. Margie432's cold is better now. I hope I don't get any 
more colds this winter - I've had two and that's record breaking for me. 

​ How have you been darling? You haven't caught any colds lately have you? Are you 
having trouble with your stomach? I hope not. 

​ Sweetheart, tomorrow when I write again, I'll tell you how I enjoyed the show. There 
is no more to write tonight. I do miss you darling more than I can ever say and I love you 
more than words can express. Take good care of yourself darling -  

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

        

 

 

432 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. 

431 Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy has recently been posted to an Army base in the US after being classified unfit 

for overseas duty. This classification also precludes him from joining his older brother in the Air Corps. 
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Somewhere in England
433

, unstated 

Saturday​
[Feb 12, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Today has more than made up for all the time we've spent hanging 

around doing nothing. First thing this morning we were awakened and told 

there was but ten minutes before we were due for a briefing. We jumped out of 

bed, rushed to the Mess Hall and then to the briefing. When we got there we 

found out that it was to be only a practice flight. Some Inspector General was 

to give us the once over, After a slight delay we got off the ground, pulled into 

the formation and then flew all over England.  

 

We landed around three, and then we got the jolt of the day: our 

squadron CO got a brainstorm - he devised a new type of formation and 

wanted twelve crews to go up and try it out. Needless to say, we were one of the 

crews - we were all very hungry and tired and became angry. After an hour of 

talking I finally convinced Chris
434

 that it was foolish for us to fly, and besides, 

434 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

433 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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the fellow that was to be our co-pilot
435

 never did show up. Off we went to the 

mess hall where we convinced them that we were hungry and finally got 

something to eat. Back to the barracks we went where I got about two hours of 

sack time.   

Now, after having washed, I’m writing to you before going to the club. 

Chris and I have promised each other that we would get drunk, we were both 

so angry this afternoon. 

This is not only Saturday, but it is also the 12th my darling. It is exactly 

eight months since the memorable event took place Butch - an event that, had 

it not happened, I would have regretted it for the remainder of my life. As you 

have so often said, and written, it is both good and bad, that this is not our 

18th month anniversary. Good because it gave you time to realize something… 

and bad because we could have had so much more time to ourselves had we 

taken the step when we first contemplated it.  

The little time that we did spend together, my darling was the happiest 

part of my life. I'll never forget you as a blushing (?) bride - nor your meals, 

cooked under protest that you did not know how. There was our first home
436

 

and then Alex where you bought your first cooking utensils! Golly darling - 

there are so many pleasant memories connected with our lives that it should 

be impossible for me to ever get really blue. Some day soon, we’ll be able to sit 

by the fire and talk, and laugh, about all that happened. Of course we'll be 

busy with our new life, but there'll always be time for a pleasant memory.   

It's pouring out now, so instead of leaving for the club right now, I'll do a 

bit of fixing up first and try to make my corner more livable.   

Last sheet of paper, so whether I want to or not it's time to end. 

Goodnight my darling, and on this special night more love than usual (if that's 

possible.) 

 

Goodnight Butch –​
I love you 

Lenny 

 

 

436 In Monroe, Louisiana, Mr. and Mrs. Leonard Levy lived in their first home, a rented room in a private house. 

435  Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington is the Co-Pilot of Lenny’s crew 
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Somewhere in England
437

, unstated 

Monday​
[Feb 14, 1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Today is Valentine's Day, so to the sweetest, and best, Valentine a fellow 

ever had, all the love in my heart. I do love you so very much my darling.  

Sunday, yesterday, was the most mixed up day I've ever had. To begin, I 

must go back to Saturday night. When Chris
438

 and I finally got to the club, the 

sign was green meaning that there was no flight scheduled for the following 

morning. On seeing this we started to have a good time. First we played the 

roulette wheel until we had each made four pounds; then we started to drink, 

and kept it up until almost 12:00 when Rock
439

 convinced us that we should go 

to bed. We did so and it seemed that no sooner had I closed my eyes than Chris 

was waking me, saying we had just five minutes to get to the briefing room, 

there was a mission.  

 

439 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark  is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

438 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

437 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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I was too busy rushing to become excited over the fact that this was to be 

my first Combat Mission. After much delay, we got out to our plane, took off 

and, for a while, everything went off fine. We got into formation all right and 

Chris was doing a good job. Just as we got to the English coast, and on our 

way, one of our engines went bad and we had to turn back! Three attempts and 

no missions. For one long second during our flight back I thought I had given 

Chris the wrong heading, and that we were over enemy territories, and then, lo 

and behold, a familiar landmark and we split the field.  

After landing we had something to eat and then went to the club; when 

we looked in at the bar, the sign was red. Being late we went to the barracks to 

sleep, for red means a mission in the morning. Sometime during the night, it 

was canceled and they never did wake us. So instead of flying and giving Hitler 

hell, I went to school and got a little more learning.   

This evening, after a delicious steak dinner, with real ketchup and plenty 

of raw onion, it's calmer. We went to the show and saw Mr Smith Goes to 

Washington. It's been so long since I saw that, [and] having forgotten some 

parts, I enjoyed it. From there we went to the club where I lost 10 shillings 

(about two dollars)  playing FanTan
440

, and decided that was enough. That 

takes care of the past forty-eight hours and explains, I hope, why there was no 

letter yesterday.  

Butch sweet, now that we are operational there will be many a day, 

sometimes two and three in a row, when it will be physically impossible for me 

to write. You do understand, don't you my darling, about me telling you this, so 

that you won't worry. No mail from you in three days. I hope tomorrow brings 

me a goodly number. By the way my darling in your last letter you mentioned a 

cold coming on. Hope by now it is gone and that you are feeling well. As for 

myself, I'm feeling great and really putting on the weight.  

Time to get to bed - so to the sweetest girl and best wife a fellow ever had 

- I love you, I do so very much my darling and miss you and like you.  

 

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you 

Lenny 

440 Fan-Tan, or fantan, is a gambling game long played in China. It is a game of pure chance. The game is played by 

placing two handfuls of small objects on a board and guessing the remaining count when divided by four. After 

players have cast bets on values of 1 through 4, the dealer or croupier repeatedly removes four objects from 

the board until only one, two, three or four beans remain, determining the winner  

Page 637 



 

 

Monday night​
February 14, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ You will have to forgive me for not writing last night. My Mom hasn't been well, and 
I just couldn't write…  I know you will understand. I didn't go to work today so that I could 
take care of her. It's easier for me to stay out of work than it is for Sadie441.  Well, we had Dr. 
Kaschmann again this morning. He wants to take X-rays of her stomach. She has been 
losing…  a good deal of weight and I think he suspects she has the same thing my dad died 
from442. I'm afraid my Mom suspects [this as well] - and she's afraid to take the X-rays. 
Truthfully - I don't blame her - oh God - I just hope it's not so. 

​ In your letter today you were... wondering whether we received your package from 
Grand Island443 which you stated contained valuable equipment and a box of gum. most 
likely you never received my letter in which I told you that we received it - so darling don't 
worry about it. I am wondering whether you ever received three letters from me which 
contain six letters each. These letters were the ones I had saved, when you first left, waiting 
for your address. Did you get them, dear? 

​ About that practice mission - don't feel bad about that woozy feeling you got - you 
haven't been flying in quite some time and having your stomach upset…  well you don't need 
to fly to feel woozy, anything could make you feel like that. I hope your stomach settled and 
you are back to normal again. I am sure you must have done well on that mission because if 
you didn't - you know you would have been told about it. And, darling, if you did everything 
you were taught and didn't get lost… I'm sure that's good. 

​ I visited [your] folks yesterday afternoon. Margie444 was in bed, as she let something 
bother her last week, which in her condition made her nervous. I guess you want to know 
what it is, and I hope I can tell it correctly. It seems that Norm445 met Lou Fierberg in a town 
near his camp one weekend and they went out for a steak dinner and had a good time. Well, 
[Norm] wrote to Margie and told her he had a steak dinner with Lou and they sat around 
‘chewing the fat’ all evening before he went back to camp. Well, Helen called Margie last week, 

445 Lenny’s younger brother N. Norman Levy had recently enlisted in the Army. 

444 Margie Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy and is pregnant for the first time. 

443 The Grand Island Army Air Field was located in Grand Island, Nebraska. Initially the field was home to the heavy 

bombers such as the B-17 Flying Fortress and was the final stop for many airmen before going overseas for 

combat in the European Theater against the Germans.  

442 Hayman Geetter died of cancer in 1940  

441 Sylvia’s oldest sister Sadie Geetter 
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as she had just received a letter from Lou in which he told her about seeing Norm, and he 
told her they went to a dance and had a heck of a good time. Well being such a true friend, 
she had to tell this to Margie, which made Margie very unhappy to think Norman lied to her. 
A few days later Helen called again about another letter she received from Lou and although 
what he said wasn't incriminating… it could imply a good deal if read a certain way - it was 
one of those double meaning statements. Well Margie got mad and wrote a letter to Norm - 
telling him… she wasn't the least bit pleased about his not telling her the truth. This letter 
was written five days ago and she hasn't written to him since. Of course this is a personal 
matter… but  it doesn't do her any good in her present condition. She feels better today - in 
fact she was very happy tonight as she received a Valentine from Norm and it had a lovely 
handkerchief in it. ​  

​ Again I have to ask you to keep secrets - the ones I refer to now pertain to my Mom 
and the episode of Margie’s. I know you will do this for me.  Darling, Claire (your sister in 
law) is making up a package to send to you. I don't know just what it will be composed of, 
but I know it will be a delicious package and you will enjoy it.  

​ Today when Dr Kaschmann was here I told him I wanted to gain weight and I was so 
surprised when he told me I shouldn't because he said my body will always be young looking 
which will be a true compliment to me when I get older and all of my friends will be trying 
all sorts of diets to reduce. Now do you wonder why I like him? 

​ Darling - do you know that I don't know the Rock’s446 name - I mean his full name. Is 
he the one who wrote “Hya Toots” and signed SE447 on the back of one of your letters? I got 
a kick out of it…  

​ Boomey448 is home now I hear. From what I can gather, he's home on his last leave as 
he expects to go overseas soon. I hope it's not true but if it is, I hope that it will be possible 
for you to perhaps get to see each other. That would be nice wouldn't it hon? 

​ Darling, like you, I like to wait until the end of my letter to tell you how much I love 
you. I do love you so much sweetheart - and I know it won't be long until we will be together 
again and go on being happy together.  

​ Take good care of yourself for me darling because   

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX 

448 Boomey Siegel is a friend of Sylvia’s who is also training in the Air Corps. 

447 The note was from fellow Hartford native and Weaver graduate Sam Ellison.  

446 Raymond (Rock) Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
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Somewhere in England
449

, unstated 

Tuesday​
[Feb 15, 1944] 

Dearest Wife, 

This was another red letter day; first, and most important, there were 

four letters from you and then this afternoon just as I was complaining about 

not having any clean clothes, my laundry came from the last base I was at. 

Once again I am well stocked with clean clothing. You don't know what a good 

feeling that is.   

They woke us up and gave us five minutes to get to briefing this morning 

and when we got there found it was just a practice flight, so up we went and 

flew over England for the remainder of the morning. I took it fairly easy, relying 

mostly on the radio, glancing out once in a while to see where we actually were. 

On our way to dinner, after landing, we stopped for our rations and besides the 

usual candy and stuff we were each allowed a can of grapefruit juice. One of 

these nights we'll be able to hold a real party!   

Butch darling, the idea of an insurance policy is a very good one. In fact, 

if it is at all possible, try to make it for more than one thousand [dollars]. That 

may sound like a lot but think of what it will mean when it is all paid up. Your 

new friend Ray sounds like a nice person…  I'm really glad you found 

somebody like that at your office, for, as you say, it makes things all the more 

pleasant. As yet the only package I've received is the one containing the lighter, 

so I'm eagerly awaiting all the others. I told Rock
450

 about the salami and you 

should have seen his face and eyes light up. You mentioned the letter from Is
451

 

as yet I've failed to receive it…   

The Red Sign has just gone up, so it looks like I'm going to be in bed 

early again. In fact, my darling , I'm going to have to close now in order to make 

the necessary preparations. Goodnight my darling and to quote you “wherever I 

go,” I think of you and love you very much.  

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you 

Lenny 

451 Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore S. Geetter. 

450 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
 

449 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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Tuesday night​
February 15, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Today was really the jackpot day - I received five letters from you. Really made me so 
happy darling. However, I do feel bad because you aren't getting my mail. I don't know just 
why you are having such trouble in receiving your mail but whatever is causing it I hope has 
cleared up by now. 

​ It is quite a coincidence that you should mention in one of your letters that you 
received the clipping in regards to your promotion from Flight Officer to Second Lieutenant. 
Well if …  you haven't already received your orders that you are now 2nd  Lieutenant - let me 
assure you that you are – and [accept] my most sincere congratulations. If you were home I'd 
give you the biggest hug and squeeze ever - but darling seeing I can't - at least you know it is 
what I would like to do. You deserved it a long time ago, but nevertheless you got your gold 
bars - even if it did take a little longer.  

Now I bet you wonder how I know all this and am so certain about it. Last night at 
about 12:00, the telephone rang - and we were all asleep. I didn't hear the phone ring, but 
when I heard Sadie say “Mrs Levy is my sister” I woke up. I answered the phone, and it was 
a telegram from the Adjutant General of Washington DC requesting your address, so they 
could send your orders of promotion…  to you. How do you like that? - Your wife knows 
more than Washington! No doubt you can understand that such a telegram at that hour of  
night was quite a shock and I must admit I was in a cold sweat. So hon, that's how I know 
about it. When they mail me a copy of the telegram I'll send a copy of it to you.  

​ You asked me to send you Lenny Karathan’s address. I called Helen tonight and she 
and I had quite a long conversation. By the way, Lenny's son is a year old today. It seems like 
he was just born. Time does pass rather quickly doesn't it? 

​ Well here's Lenny's address.  

​ ​ Staff Sergeant Leonard  Karathan 31326714​
​ ​ Co: B. 296th Eng. Bn. C​
​ ​ APO 230 c/o P.M.​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​ ​
​ ​ New York City, NY 

​ Sadie452 just called Dr Kaschmann and my Mom is going to the hospital tomorrow – 
Mt Sinai for X-rays. Hon, If you can, it would be nice if you just wrote her a short letter and 
as to what you should say - well - just generalize - and just say you hope she is feeling better - 
I'll leave it to your discretion - it will make her feel happier…  and she will think it very nice 
of you. So please write her a letter. 

452  Sylvia’s oldest sister Sadie Geetter both lived with their mother at 148 Magnolia St. in Hartford, Connecticut. 
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​ Darling, please don't worry about my job. it's not as bad as you think it is. If I think it 
is making me ill, I'll quit. In regards to sending me more money - Well as I said before if you 
feel that you have extra money - well send it home. There are so many things we are going to 
need when this is over and hon, if I have a baby, as I want to so badly, when this is over - 
we'll need the money. Mind now - I mean extra money - I don't want you to deprive yourself 
of a thing. If you feel that you have money you don't need… then, …  send it home. 

​ I hope that something has been done about your Co-pilot453. I can't understand just 
what is wrong with him. I can't help but feel sorry for him - he must be unhappy deep down 
inside and there must be something wrong with him…  I honestly think he just can't help 
being the way he is. Of course - it does make it very unpleasant for those who have to 
associate with him so I do hope you get a new co-pilot who can be like “Red.” 

​ I'm going to try to find a Monopoly set that will meet shipping requirements for size 
and send it to you. I'll also get the handkerchieves and underwear. I hope I get what you 
want - oh the trials and tribulations of a wife! 

​ The party that was held to celebrate the first anniversary of the 388th Bomb Group 
sounded like a real good time. I'm so happy that you do have some entertainment where you 
are. 

​ I'll have to ask Ben454 if he knows Ivan Finkle455. If he's a fraternity brother of yours 
he would know him.  

​ I'm sorry to hear that Chris456 is being troubled with His ear again. you can trust me 
to say nothing about it to Franny. I do hope he is better and he won't be troubled with it 
anymore. 

​ I'm getting to be a real good girl honey - I very rarely use slang. Of course I still say 
bull shit when I lose my temper at work. The kids laugh so hard when they hear me come 
out with it suddenly after I can't get a column of figures six feet long to balance. Hon, it can 
make anybody mad. Truthfully, I expect all the girls in my section to get fired someday. That 
married girl I told you about who has boyfriends has so many stories to tell us during work 
and they are so funny - well we don't always keep our minds on our work. 

​ You asked me what I meant by saying “We Geetters have our reasons for being 
sentimental.” Of course, I'm a Levy now but you know what I meant by that statement. It's 
just that we didn't have much affection while we were children. So it means a great deal to us 

456 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 

455 Tech.-Sgt. Ivan N. Finkle is a Hartford airman also stationed at Knettishall 

454 Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin (Ben) G. Geetter 

453 Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington was the Co-Pilot in Lenny’s crew. 
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when there is a little sentiment attached to things, than it might to those who have been used 
to it all of their lives. Have I explained it darling? 

​ So, you have taken to writing to me in Latin now! Well I have a Latin book here, and 
I'm going to look it up tonight. you're so Smaht hon! - And I love you so much. 

​ I have to do something that's going to make Lou Weidman457 mad - I'm going to fill 
up the tub and there won't be anymore hot water. I think I enjoy my bath twice as much for 
that reason – oh, I’m a mean one! 

​ Sweetheart, I'll say goodnight to you now with a million “I love you’s” in my heart. 
Oh yes, I forgot to tell you that Sadie458 was very provoked at me the other night because in 
my sleep I got close to her. so sweetheart if some morning I wake up to find myself on the 
floor - you'll know why. 

​ Well sweetheart it's good night for now - and with all my heart -   

        ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

        

        

        

458 Sylvia’s oldest sister Sadie Geetter 

457  Lou Weidman is married to Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye Geetter Weidman. They are living at 148 Magnolia St. in 

Hartford, Connecticut with their two young daughters, but trying to find their own rental. 
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Somewhere in England
459

, unstated 

Wednesday​
Feb 16, [1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

You've certainly made me the envy of the barracks today - seven letters 

and all from you. You can't imagine the enjoyment I get out of opening them 

one by one and imagining that, instead of just reading letters, I'm actually 

sitting, holding your hand, with one arm around you, and talking with you. 

Judging from the contents, you are not getting my mail as quickly as I get 

yours; there can only be one cause for the delay and that is that they have to 

pass through the censor's office. Speaking of censors, I can't tell you in what 

part of England I'm in - about all you are allowed to know is what squadron 

and group I'm in and that you know from my address. 

Your letters contained news both good and bad, about babies. I was 

indeed glad to hear that the Pratts are proud parents - convey my best wishes 

if you haven't already done so. Your news of Zimmy's wife was truly a shock - I 

know him very well, in fact I grew up with him. As for Florence Greenberg - well 

I don't know just what to say - I remember you telling me , more than once, 

how she would love a child of her own and that it was a shame that she wasn't 

physically able to have one. The biggest surprise was your saying that your 

maternal instinct was awakened the time you fed Robbie. I clearly recollect 

your firm statement that you could never stand the thought of bearing a child - 

how time changes a season's viewpoint. Don't worry Butch - when I get home 

you'll do your share. 

This was another hard day for me - it rained all day so flying was called 

off, then the ground school schedule was canceled, so all I did was eat, play 

cards and go to the show. What a life, eh? That last remark reminds me. 

Rock
460

 got a letter from the ‘Knob’- he is in Italy.   

Your story about Margie and her troubles and the home front sound just 

like Margie. I'm sure, just as you are, that there is a great deal more to the 

story than what she told, but I guess it's none of our business. When I hear 

things like that it makes me almost happy that I'm not there, because I’d be 

sure to say something that I'd probably be sorry for later. Keep me posted on 

the latest happenings.  

460 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

459 Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent.  
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If all goes well, I expect to be in London at the end of this week. We are 

next on the list to get a three day pass, and that should be a Saturday. If I do 

get there, you can be sure, Butch, that I'll get some kind of souvenir for our 

‘crap book’ and also to try to have my picture taken. The letter may be 

impossible as the materials for it are rather scarce over here.  

Among the items that are rationed, is this stationery, so if my letter 

seemed short that is the only reason. This is the last sheet, save one which I 

am going to write... a note to Mom, so I'll say good night my sweet and remind 

you again that I do love you very much. 

 

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you 

Lenny 
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Wednesday night​
February 16, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ This has been a very busy day for me at work. Truthfully, I am glad it was because the 
day just flew by. 

​ I went to the hospital to see my Mom. She went this afternoon to have X-rays 
taken…  She is so frightened, it's pathetic. The doctor said she'd be there about a week until 
all X-rays could be taken. She's in the Mount Sinai Hospital and there are two others in the 
room with her. It makes it a little more pleasant for her because she doesn't have to be alone 
- she didn't want a private room. Dr. Kaschmann was there and he took me home.  

​ I received the telegram today which I spoke to you about. This is what it says, 
“Present Address [Of] Your Husband Flight Officer Leonard Levy T-61298 for Notification 
of Promotion.”  Adjutant General,  Room 436 Munitions Building, Washington DC. If I 
never received such a telegram I'd never believe it. I can't understand why they don't have 
your present address. 

Tomorrow night Sadie461 and I are going to the Bushnell462 after we visit Mom. There 
is going to be a big band show - featuring Captain Glenn Miller463. We have good seats as 
Sadie bought two $500 bonds for her boss and the seating arrangement is according to the 
valuation of the bonds purchased. 

​ We have had several invitations for supper tomorrow night. Faye464, Claire465 and 
Gladys466 asked us to have supper at each one's house tomorrow. 

​ Something very funny happened at work this afternoon right after lunch. A girl who 
sits near me made a sudden dash for the ladies room – holding her mouth. When she finally 
came back I asked her what was wrong and she said she had eaten pickles and milk for 
lunch. She said that she didn't believe it was a bad combination but I guess she's convinced 
now. She does the dumbest thing - She has us laughing all day. 

466 Gladys M. Geetter is the wife Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin (Ben) G. Geetter 

465 Claire K. Geetter is the wife Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice (Moe) S. Geetter 

464  Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye Geetter Weidman 

463 For a brief time during World War II, big-band leader Glenn Miller was stationed at the Army Air Force Technical 

Training Command at Yale University in New Haven. The show at the Bushnell, featured the same musicians 

that performed with Capt. Miller at Woolsey Hall in New Haven.   

462 Bushnell Memorial Hall in Hartford. 

461 Sylvia’s oldest sister Sadie Geetter. 
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​ Claire called tonight to tell me she received your letter and she thought it was a very 
nice one. She says she'll answer it as soon as she can. Her dog, Spunky, was sick this week 
and she had the doctor this evening. I asked her if I could send some flowers or a box of 
candy to her. I'm going to buy a get-well card tomorrow and send it. If she gets Valentines - 
she ought to receive a get well card.  

​ Well, darling, I guess I'll go to bed now. It's late now and I should get my sleep. So 
darling - remember that I love you with all my heart - and miss you more than I could ever 
tell.​      

        ​
Goodnight darling -​

I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX          

  

Capt. Glenn Miller at Woolsey Hall, New Haven, Connecticut in 1944 
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Saturday Morning​
[February 19, 1944] undated 

Darling ~ 

​ I felt just like a wife this afternoon. I bought you some shorts and jerseys and I guess 
it may sound silly to you, but it did give me a proud feeling. 

​ Margie's467 birthday is this coming Friday but I was a bit ahead of time and I bought 
her gift today. She's been talking about wanting to take care of her nails so I got her a 
manicuring set. When I gave it to her tonight she seemed very pleased, so I guess I hit on the 
right thing. 

​ My mom came home from the hospital today as all X-rays have been taken. From the 
results… they found out she has an enlarged liver - but thank God - no cancer. As you know, 
that's what we were all afraid of - and although having an enlarged liver is serious, we are 
thankful it wasn't a cancer diagnosis - nothing could be worse. 

​ My cousins were here from Newark. Melvin, He's the oldest boy, 18, is in the army 
and he was home on furlough. He also has a brother 16, and darling, what good looking 
cousins they are. Both of them are 6’ 2” and one's dark and the other a sandy colored 
redhead. I guess for the first time I didn't mind kissing them! Evelyn was here also and she 
and I had a nice talk - it's been quite some time since we have seen each other. 

​ I received a postcard from Eleanor yesterday. It was from Miami Beach - if you recall 
I told you that she and Sam are living in Tampa. Well the message was typical Eleanor - It 
said, “Hi, Syl” - Flew down - It's hot – Elly.” 

​ I also received a letter from you today - and it was so good to get it. The way you got 
your new beds and the bicycle I guess is an example of the world today. Darling about that 
money you are sending home - it is very sweet of you and as long as you won't need it, I'm 
glad you are sending it home. There are some things I want - a new gold bracelet for my 
watch is one of them. And, of course, whatever I don't need - I'll put into bonds. You see 
hon, I promised myself that as much as possible I'll buy bonds with my allotment… The 
bonds I have been buying are going toward that wonderful future we are going to have 
together. 

​ As you know, I visited the folks tonight. Claire468, Ben469, Mr. and Mrs. Goralnick and 
Mom were having a poker game - Margie and I talked in the living room. [My] Mom gave me 

469 Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin (Ben) G. Geetter 

468 Claire Kaplan Geetter married Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice S. Geetter and had two daughters: Beverly 

and Marilyn, who were ten and nine at the time this was written. 

467Marjorie ( Margie) Naidorf Levy was Norman’s wife and pregnant for the first time. 
 

Page 649 



 

six very pretty dish towels - Baskets of strawberries on them. She told me to make sure you 
break them in! 

​ Faye470, Lou471, Betty Mae472, and Holly473 were here this afternoon. They broght the 
letter which you wrote to them. Betty was so thrilled about you mentioning her letters she 
asked me to read it to her again. 

​ Well, sweetheart, it's late now and it's time to say goodnight once again. Oh yes, I 
tried to get a Monopoly set small enough to send overseas - but they don't make the boards 
small enough. Is there any game you would like - say a new kind of card game? 

​ Darling - I miss you so much and I can't tell you how much I think of you. 
Sweetheart, I love you so much, I just wish you were here so that I could tell you so. Well, it 
won't be too long will it hon, when we are together again. 

So my darling, Goodnight -       

        I love you          ​
Sylvia          ​
XXX          

473 Holly Weidman was the one year-old daughter of Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye Geetter Weidman and her 

husband Louis B. Weidman.  

472 Elizabeth (Betty) Weidman was the oldest daughter of Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye Geetter Weidman and her 

husband Louis B. Weidman. Betty was six at the time of writing and one-year old Holly Weidman was at home. 

471 Louis B. Weidman is Faye’s husband. 

470 Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye Geetter Weidman 
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Sunday night ​
Feb. 20, 1944 

Darling ~ 

​ Today has been a funny day - I didn't do much yet, 
before I knew it, it was time for supper. I had all intentions of 
staying home all day but about six-thirty, I got restless and 
called Rosalind. She and Ida were going to the Far East for 
supper and then to the State474 to see Xavier Cugat. I had 
already eaten my supper so I met them at the Far East Garden.  

​ There were a few girls sitting at the next table and I 
recognized one of them as Lina Romay, Xavier Cugat’s singer 
.She is a very beautiful person. When we did get inside the 
State I sat behind a woman whose hat must have been a mile 
high and a mile wide. So you can understand when I say that 
Xavier Cugat sounded good because I couldn't see him. The 
lady left when the picture came on. I wished she had stayed because I wouldn't have missed a 
thing - you know the kind of picture they show at the State - all Academy Award winners. 
Jane Withers was in this picture and there were a group of teenage boys sitting in back of us 
and they couldn't stand it so they just made all the noise they could.  

​ I sent the get well card to Spunky and signed it “Mrs. “Ziff. In case that means 
nothing to you - well Mrs. Ziff lives next to Claire475 and Mo and she's threatened time and 
time again to have the dog pound take Spunky away. Spunky senses she hates him so 
whenever she sees this as if they have all they can do to keep her from jumping on her. 

​ Gladys was here this afternoon and she was so pleased with your letter. It is nice of 
you … to write the letters you have written to my family and it does please me so much, not 
saying how much the family appreciates it.  

​ I’ll end my letter now darling, as there's not much more I can say tonight. So 
goodnight my darling and with all my heart I love you. 

                  ​
I love you             ​

Sylvia             ​
XXX             

475 Claire Kaplan Geetter married Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice S. Geetter and had two daughters: Beverly 
and Marilyn, who were ten and nine at the time this was written. 

474 The State Theatre was the largest performing arts venue in Hartford at the time. It seated 3880 people, had a 
Geneva Organ, was located at 70 Village St. and torn down in 1960. 
 

Page 652 



 

 

State Theatre - 3880 seats 

70 Village St., Hartford, Conn. 
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 Monday night ​
undated February 21, 1944 

Darling ~ 

 ​ There was so much excitement in the office today476. All 
the girls in my department and the girls in several other 
departments are going to be out of work about April 1. They 
are transferring all the work… to the office in New York. It 
has been rumored for quite a while but nobody was sure of 
just what it was all about. This morning I asked Bernie, he's my 
supervisor, if he knew what the story was all about and he 
went up to see Don Whalley - he's the personnel director and 
office head - and he was told that it was time that all the work 
was going to be sent to New York and by April 1,  about 100 
girls will be dismissed and the newer ones will leave before the old, but in due time all of the 
girls will be let go. Well when he came back with the news you can imagine the commotion 
that it caused. Everybody was mad because no notice had been given. The assistant in my 
office who has been with the company for nine years has been told to look for another job. 
At lunch today I thought some girls were going to talk themselves horse. Oh yes, we also got 
a notice thanking us for our cooperation in the past but from now on there will be no more 
overtime work. So we all went home at five tonight instead of seven.  

As far as I'm concerned, it is good news as I wasn't too keen about my job but I 
couldn't get a release as I was frozen to it and if I quit it meant two months of staying idle 
which I didn't want. However I wish it happened a little closer to summer because if it did I 
wanted to go to the beach with Faye for a while before starting a new job. Well what I have 
decided to do is to stick to my present job and wait until I get my notice. My department 
may be kept on a little longer as there is so much work yet to be done. Well, what will be will 
be-and I'm not worried about it in the least. I just hope it will hold out for a few more 
months. 

​ Issie477 was in New Britain tonight for a few hours. He called and he wanted your new 
address. Did you get the letter he wrote to you about a month ago? There's a great tragedy 
that happened in his home. Issie told me Silvio the Snail died. They named the snail in the 
fishbowl after me.  

477 Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David, 

Albert, Thalia, Harold and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written. Issie 

left his job at Mt. Sinai Hospital in Hartford to enlist in the Navy, and has just learned he will be commissioned 

a Commander. 

476 Sylvia worked at Associated Transport. 436 Capitol Ave., which was one of the largest Transportation Companies 

in the country at the time. They were in a period of growth and mergers. 
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Moe478 called tonight - he knew it was me who sent the 
card to Spunky. Your letter was very interesting today. 
Although you couldn't tell me everything you do at [a] 
briefing, I have a good idea about it. You see, I have a 
copy of Pix Magazine which really tells quite a bit about it 
and there are pictures of what is done, too. These pictures 
were taken in England.479  

Darling, I know you must be really busy flying these days. 
You will have so much to tell me when this is all over - 
won't you? Meanwhile, darling, do your best and keep 
your mind on your work - it means so much.  

I made up your package of underwear tonight. I won't be 
able to mail it until Wednesday as the Post Office won't 
be open tomorrow. Seeing you are gaining weight - I got 
four pairs of shorts in size 34 and one is a 32.  

​ Sweetheart, it's almost three months since we have seen each other. I have missed you 
so much in these three months. I love you so much darling that, until you are home again, I'll 
miss you more everyday.         

Goodnight darling          ​
I love you            ​

Sylvia            ​
XXX            

Inserted: letter from Issie in a separate envelope.          

 

Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:            

A. C. Williams [Signature]            ​
1st Lt. AC Adj    ​
561 Bomb Squad            ​
3-16-44            

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Mar 19 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and a second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 20 1944 by the Control Section.          

479 Sylvia and Lenny had discussed the possibility of being deployed to England. 

478 Claire Kaplan Geetter married Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice S. Geetter and had two daughters: Beverly 

and Marilyn, who were ten and nine at the time this was written. 
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Somewhere in England
480​

Feb 22, 1944 

 

Dearest Wife, 

It's been quite a while since my last letter and I really am ashamed of 

myself, but I'm hoping that by the end of this letter you will understand why 

it's been so long.   

In one of my recent letters, if you will recall, I told you that we had a 

three day pass coming to us. Well, we got it but instead of three days it turned 

out to be almost four! Naturally we went to London and that is where my story, 

and excuse, starts. 

We left here Friday 

afternoon and got into 

London quite late, so we went 

directly to the Officer’s Club 

in town
481

 and got a bed for 

the night. Saturday we were 

up early - 10:00 - and after 

breakfast we got into a cab 

and started to look for a hotel 

room. The cabs are of the 

1920 vintage - not a modern 

one in the city.  

The driver took us to 

almost every hotel in the city 

from the Savoy, comparable 

to the Waldorf in New York, 

down to the cheesiest one he 

knew of, but all to no avail; 

there just wasn't a room to be had. It reminded me of the weekend that we 

spent in New York, Butch. Finally after pestering the manager of the Savoy for 

over an hour, he gave us a phone number to call and at last we had rooms for 

481 The town of  Knettishall  

480  Knettishall was the unnamed American Base where Lenny was sent. Royal Air Force Knettishall or more simply 

RAF Knettishall was a former Royal Air Force station in Suffolk, England, UK. The 388th Bomb Group, which 

stayed at Knettishall for their entire service in the ETO, flew B-17 Flying Fortresses on missions over occupied 

Europe and its four squadrons consisted of the 560th, 561st,  562nd, and the 563rd Bomb Squadrons.  Lenny 

served in the  561st Bomb Squadron. 
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the night. Just like the hotel the Taft referred us to that weekend, this was a 

third rate place, away from the center of 

things but it was clean so we took it. At first 

the woman at the desk said she had but one 

room with only two beds. There were four of 

us and we finally talked her into moving 

somebody out and giving us two rooms, one 

single, and one with three beds. By the time 

all the arrangements were made it was 

almost five in the afternoon.  

Forgot to tell you where we had lunch. We 

ate in Scott’s - the evening place of London 

where we had, of all things, (no not steak) 

[but] Jugged Hare, better known as Roast 

Rabbit; it was truly delicious; along with it 

we had a vintage wine, real tomato soup, 

coffee and pastry.   

After leaving the hotel we went back to the heart of London, and after 

walking around a bit decided it was time to eat again. We found, of all things, a 

Jewish restaurant! So in we went, Chris
482

, Rock
483

, the Copilot
484

 and myself. 

Rock and I drove the waitress crazy asking for latkes
485

 but there were none… 

We did have… pickled herring with onion, chicken soup with lokshen,
486

 roast 

chicken, potatoes and vegetables, real sour pickles, Jewish pumpernickel and 

rye bread, and finally coffee and pudding. It was a meal that I never expected to 

have ‘over here.‘  

After leaving the restaurant we went into a Brasserie (known as a Grille 

back home) where all we could buy was beer. Being Saturday night the place 

was packed with soldiers, both male and female. We stayed there until 11:00, 

when everything in London closes down, or at least Chris and I did. Rock and 

Red (the co-pilot) [each] picked up a girl. From there Chris and I went to 

486 The word lokshen is Yiddish for noodle. A lokshen kugel is a kugel made with noodles. There are endless 

variations on the noodle kugel theme; they can be made savory or sweet, topped or untopped, with dried fruit 

or nuts or seasonings.  

485 A latke is a type of potato pancake found in Ashkenazi Jewish cuisine. The dish, which is traditionally served 

during Hanukkah, can be made with grated, shredded, or mashed potatoes.  

484 Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington was the Co-Pilot in Lenny’s crew. 
 

483 Ray (Rock) Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

482 Augustine (Chris) Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
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Piccadilly Circus where we amused ourselves watching the prostitute's doing 

business. Piccadilly is the red light district of London, and business is done out 

in the open. We were approached more than once and the price is exorbitant. 

One prostitute asked me to go home with her for £5 , the equivalent of $20, 

when I told her that was a lot of money she said she would throw in a bottle of 

scotch! 

12:00 rolled around and we 

decided to go to the hotel and that is 

when the fun started. There just wasn't a 

cab to be had - we stood on a corner for 

half an hour without any luck, finally a 

truck came by, picked us up and took us 

where we wanted to go, or at least in the 

neighborhood. It was dark, with the 

blackout, and neither of us had a 

flashlight. We finally found what looked 

like our hotel. In fact there was a sign 

but we couldn't find the door! Just as we 

were giving hope of sleeping we turned a 

corner and there was the entrance!  

Smaht, eh? Finally got to sleep, and 

around 6:00 in the morning Red came in, grabbed his things and that was the 

last we saw of him until this morning.   

After breakfast Sunday morning the three of us went sightseeing. First 

stop was Petticoat Lane, the Delancey Street of London. It was just like it too, 

the pushcarts on the streets from 

which one could buy anything he 

wanted, provided he had the 

coupons (ration cards) and we 

had none, so we contented 

ourselves to look until almost 

1:00. From there we went to 

another Jewish place for dinner - 

we had…  chopped liver with 

chicken fat , roast chicken with 

Kasha. 
487

 

487 Kasha is a type of porridge made from roasted buckwheat groats, commonly used in Eastern European cuisine. It 

can be served as a savory dish or a sweet breakfast cereal and is often associated with Jewish comfort food, 

such as kasha varnishkes, which combines kasha with pasta and onions.  
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We got into a cab and told the driver to take us to all the historical places 

in London. We saw St. James Palace and park, Buckingham Castle, Queen 

Victoria's monument (a beautiful memorial), Westminster Abbey, Big Ben and 

places I can't remember. We were allowed inside of Westminster Abbey and, 

Darling, it was beautiful. There were services going on and even I was 

impressed with the beauty and solemnity there. The walls are covered with 

memorials of England 's great and in the floor are buried the greatest of 

England's statesmen. A truly impressive sight, and that was the end of our 

tour. From there we went to the Officer’s Clothing PX
488

 and bought some 

needed items such as socks, underwear and I bought two pairs of pants, one 

pair of pinks and a pair of OD’s. After taking this stuff back to the hotel we 

went out to eat, then Rock took off to keep a date and Chris and I went to a 

bar, Odenino’s for a few drinks.  

While sitting there, who should walk in 

but Mike Manone. Remember him 

Butch?  He's the one that gave that 

brilliant answer to the question about 

the blue bar. We had a long talk, over a 

few Scotch and sodas, and then went 

back to the hotel for some sleep.   

Due to the fact we were due back at 6:00 

Monday evening, there was little that we 

could do that day, especially when we 

didn't get up till almost 11:00. We did 

manage to get to the London PX to 

secure our rations for this week. Among 

my purchases were pipes: yes my sweet, 

your husband is now a pipe smoker. I 

also bought this excellent linen finish 

stationery there. Truthfully, it was the 

only thing they had and I thought that 

anything is better than nothing.   

The ride back to camp was uneventful 

but we came back to some bad news. 

One of the crews sleeping in our 

barracks went down on a raid held while we were on pass. It was hard to take 

because they came here with us and our crews had become good friends. It 

sort of took the edge off of our good time.   

488 Post Exchange (PX): During World War II,  thousands of post exchanges operated throughout the world, from the 

smallest South Pacific island to London, England.  
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Around seven the orderly came in and told us that there was a raid 

scheduled for this morning, being just a bit overtired from our trip we hit the 

sack almost immediately. We took off with high hopes of getting our first raid 

today, but Lady Luck is still looking the other way and the mission was called 

off and we are still virgins. It's getting to be quite a joke, every time we take off 

something happens and we have to turn back.  

Last night when we came home, I found quite a few letters awaiting me - 

there were three from you, one from Betty-May,
489

 one from Is, among others. 

How does one read his letters? It took me fully half an hour to decipher it and 

then I [still] couldn't make out all of it… I gather he is enjoying his work even 

though it is a bit different from what he is accustomed to.  

My trip was quite an enjoyable one but, as you have so often said, 

something was missing. Honestly, sweet, it could be so much better if only you 

were there with me seeing those things with me seeing those things that I once 

thought I would only read about. Golly, but I do miss you in everything I do.   

This was another banner day for me, as far as mail from you is 

concerned There were seven letters from you, including the works of art of 

Betty-May and Lorraine and the clippings - thanks a million for them. As yet no 

packages have arrived for me - just have to sweat them out I guess.  

There is, probably, a lot more that I can say but right now my mind is 

blank so I'll call it quits for a while. Although it’s afternoon here it's night back 

home, so I guess it's all right if I say goodnight to you my darling and say once 

again that I love you very very much my sweetheart. I too hope that it won't be 

much longer before we are together again.  

 

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you 

Lenny 

 

489 Elizabeth (Betty) Weidman Klein, Sylvia’s niece who was six and half years old at the time. 
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Tuesday night ​
Feb. 22 - 44 

Darling ~ 

​ No work for me today and I spent the day at home. Sadie went to work today, so I 
kept my Mom company490. She's feeling much better. I guess the relief of knowing that it is 
just her liver making her feel ill has made her feel so much better.  

​ Today David491 and Albert492 came to Hartford by bus all by themselves. Nate493 met 
them downtown where they got off the bus. They were here for about an hour this 
afternoon and weren’t still for a minute. In fact they had a fist fight in the kitchen because 
David told me about the valentine Albert sent to a girl in his room that was covered with “I 
love yous” and x’s. This fight had to be stopped by [my] Mom pulling them apart and my 
poor dog took an awful beating. David used it for a punch bag until I caught him at it. I 
always wanted boys but after watching them I realize I have quite an order ahead of me. 
Betty May494 had school today and she came here for dinner. Her “halo” suddenly appeared. 
She was so quick and so good while Albert and David were here I couldn't quite understand 
it. She made me laugh though because she had such an angelic expression on her face. 

​ This afternoon I didn't do much - just sat around and read some articles in the 
Saturday Evening Post. About five o'clock Faye495 called and asked me to come over for a while 
and she wanted to look at a five-room flat to rent on Cabot Street. I rushed over there and it 
began to rain. Faye and Lou left and I finished feeding Holly496. Betty wanted to learn how to 
write - she knows how to print so I wrote the alphabet and I was showing her how to write 

496 Holly Weidman was the younger daughter of Sylvia’s youngest sister Faye Geetter Weidman and her husband 
Louis B. Weidman.  

495 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 
Weidman and Holly Weidman, who were six and one at the time this was written. 
 

494 Elizabeth (Betty) May Weidman was the oldest daughter of Sylvia’s youngest sister Fay Geetter Weidman and her 

husband Louis B. Weidman.  

493 Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter and had two children, Philip Henry, who 
was three months old at the time this was written, and Diane who would be born in December. 
 

492 Albert Leonard Geetter was the second oldest son of Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore. He was eight at the time of 

the writing.  

491 David Maranski Geetter was the oldest son of Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore S. Geetter. who was commissioned a 

Commander in the US Navy and trained in New London, Connecticut. David was ten at the time of this writing. 

490 Ever since their father Hayman Geetter died in 1940, Sylvia and her oldest sister Sadie Geetter lived at home 

with their mother Adelle Stolper Geetter. at 148 Magnolia St. in the North End of Hartford.  The two sisters also 

cared for their ailing mother who was sick with thyroid cancer and a new liver diagnosis. Adelle would die in 

1946. 
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them. I think what has made her ambitious to know how to write it so that she can read 
letters and write them.  

​ Holly is so cute but I'm afraid she's going to have straight hair like me. She's walking 
now but she does so with great care. She's afraid of the floor coming up to meet her. I called 
Nate tonight and asked him how he felt - if the boys hadn't run him ragged. 

​ Sweetheart, I hope you get the stationery I sent to you soon - after all I don't want 
the lack of paper to be a reason for not writing.  

​ Well, darling, until tomorrow I guess this is about all. A million times I love you and 
with all my I miss you. 

        

Goodnight darling -        ​
I love you           ​

Sylvia           ​
XXX           

         

         

         

Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:           

A. C. Williams [Signature]           ​
1st Lt. AC Adj   ​
561 Bomb Squad           ​
3-16-44           

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and a cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Mar 19 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and Second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 20 1944 by the Control Section.         
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      Sylvia in front of 148 Magnolia St. Hartford, Connecticut 
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[Somewhere in England]​
Feb 23 ‘44 

 

Dearest Wife, 

This letter contains , as you may have guessed from the slight change in the 
return address, some long awaited news. Yes, my darling wife, your husband is now 
Lieutenant Levy. No longer F/O [Flight Officer]. The order came through while we 
were on pass, and due to the fact that we've been doing so much flying of late, they had 
a hard time getting in touch with me. Coincidentally, in his letter to me, Is497 apologized 
for addressing me as F/O thinking that the promotion had already gone through.  

As I wrote last night, we were up very early again this morning, presumably to 
go on a raid. At the last minute it was called off and so we still have no missions to our 
credit. The entire base knows of our ‘luck,’ and when they see us they shake their head 
and smile. John Lindsay, the ex-cop from New York (you'll remember him if I say that 
he is the fellow that always had that silly look on his face) gets in his now famous 
remark ‘Some have it, and some don't,’ every time we meet.   

The day became a complete success when, after being sworn in, I came back to 
the barracks and found another letter from you. Chris498 says there ought to be a law 
against one fellow getting so much mail. The truth is, my darling, lately I've been 
getting more than my share. I'm afraid that if it ever stops…  I'll be lost. Speaking of 
your letters reminds me, Butch, can you change the type of envelope you're using to 
something heavier? All your letters lately have come open on the way over499.  

I'm smoking my new pipe knowing that you like it. I thought that line would 
give added pleasure to this letter. I really enjoy smoking it, especially now that I found 
some American tobacco for it…   

We are still talking about our weekend and that once again the Co-pilot has 
found his ‘one and only’ That makes five he's met since I’ve known him. 

Butch, you have no idea how good I feel when you write and say that the family 
really likes me and in particular your Mom. I do want... them to like me and, if it's in 
my power, I'll never do anything to make you, or them, sorry that you picked me over 
the rest. I do love you so very much, my darling.  

499 The US Army censors were opening both Lenny’s outgoing and  Sylvia’s incoming mail. 

498 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

497 Sylvia’s oldest brother Isadore (Is, Issie) Geeter.  
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You seem to have become a rather steady patron of the Bushnell500 of late. Good 
for you sweet! By the way, was Dough Girls on the sexy side?   

In last night's letter I forgot to say that much to our regret , we took no pictures 
while on pass. We were planning to take some with the Co-pilots camera but, as I wrote, 
he disappeared for the weekend. As far as commercial photographers it would take two 
months of Sundays to get any results… and the price is prohibitive. 

The flag is red again tonight meaning another early awakening so I'd better hit 
the sack shortly. Before saying goodnight I want once again… to tell you that I love you 
very, very much , like you and miss you  

 

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you 

Lenny 

 

 

500 Bushnell Memorial Hall is a Performing Arts venue in Greater Hartford serving as a gathering place for movies, 

live music, dance and theatre.  
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Wednesday night ​
February 23, 1944  

Darling ~  

​ It seems as though you are certainly having delays before getting off on your first 
mission. Well, darling let's hope that when they do come about they pass quickly and in no 
time you will be home again.  

​ Sue, the girl who sits next to me at lunch, came back from lunch so excited. She 
received a letter from her husband who is in the Navy and he will be home tomorrow. It's 
been four months since she has seen him. Gerry, the married girl I told you about that has 
boyfriends, gave her an envelope and on it she wrote, “Better be safe than sorry.” You can 
imagine what was in it. Sue showed it to me and I could feel my face get hot. Bernie noticed 
it and he wanted to know what we had - and darn it if I didn’t blush more - I wish I could 
get over that.  

​ The radio and newspapers are full of the news being made by the American bombers 
flying over Germany. Everytime I listen to the news I wonder if you were on that particular 
mission.  

​ It's such a good feeling knowing that we do not have to work overtime anymore. It 
gives me the evening to do with as I please. It was very hard trying to go anywhere or do 
anything after I got home from work when I had worked overtime.  

​ About those rooms Fay and Lou501 looked at last night - well they didn't take them. It 
was the usual reason. The landlord couldn't clean them. 

​ Did you know that Mr. Garolnik502 sold the house.? [Your] Mom and Dad have an 
agreement of some kind where they can live there for three more years. But your Uncle 
Ralph503 has to move, as the family who bought the house is moving in there504. They want 
to buy a house but you know how hard that is today. When Mom told me she was sending 
you a nougat I knew it would make Rock505 happy, I hope you received it by now and you 
both had a wonderful time eating it.  

505 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 

504 The downstairs house. 

503  Wolfe Ralph Rosenthal married Annie Levy Rosenthal and had two children, Irene Rosenthal and Myron M. 
“Buster” Rosenthal who were aged 29 and 27 at the time. Annie died in 1929 at age 36. Uncle Ralph remarried in 
1932.  
 

502 The owner of the two family house where Lenny’s family lives.  

501 Sylvia’s younger sister Faye, her husband Lou and their two children are looking for a larger apartment in 

Hartford. 
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​ How about your co-pilot506 - is he still with you or have you a new one? How is 
Chris507's ear and is the Rock as goofy as ever?  

​ There is a girl I have seen quite a few mornings when I'm on my way to work who is 
as high as a kite. She can't be more than 26 and at eight o'clock in the morning she's so 
drunk it's terrible. This morning she was singing “Here Comes the Bride” at the top of her 
lungs. I don't know where she gets her liquor but it sure does the trick. You asked me if Roz 
is like Eleanor. No hun, she's not like her - she's quieter but she's very nice and what I like 
most about her is that she's a good sport. 

 

​ Edith Spector, formerly Edith Kohn, twin sister of Sammy, called me this evening. 
She's having a gathering Friday night at her mother-in-law's house. I'm going to the 
Emmanuel508 [Synagogue] first but I'll go there as soon as services are over. I haven't seen 
her for such a long time.  

​ I received four letters from you today and you can understand what a good feeling it 
was.  

508  In 1919, the Emmanuel Synagogue was established as the first Conservative synagogue in Connecticut. At the 
time, the synagogue was in the North End of Hartford on Woodland St. 

507  Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

506 Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington was the Co-Pilot in Lenny’s crew. 
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​ Darling, two of the letters were rather recent - one was the 12th and the other the 14th. 
It makes me so happy knowing you didn't forget our anniversary date or Valentine's Day. I 
have the water running in the tub and I better take my bath as it's not too warm. Lou must 
have beat me to the draw this time. So my darling - let me tell you that I love you so very 
much and I miss you more every day. Take care of yourself, darling. 

       

Goodnight darling -      ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

          

Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:          

JP. Gross [Signature]          ​
1st Lt. AC Adj  ​
561 Bomb Squad          ​
3-25-44          

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Mar 27 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and Second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 28 1944 by the Control Section.        

 

 

The Woodland Street building today 
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Thursday night​
Feb. 24 - 44  

Darling -  

​ We had such beautiful weather today. One nice thing about this winter so far is the 
fact that it has been comparatively mild to last year.  

​ This evening I went to the Lenox509 with Roz. We saw 
Alice Faye in The Gang's All Here. It was in Technicolor and 
what made the picture [so] good [is] the photography. It was 
really beautiful. The co-feature was one of the Falcon series.  

​ Sadie510 is home this week doing the cooking. Well, she 
said she would have a surprise for supper. We had 
gingerbread with whipped cream. Speaking of cooking I'm 
afraid that whatever little I learned about cooking will be 
forgotten in the time I'm home. The only thing I've cooked 
since I've been home is an egg - and a soft-boiled one at 
that. 

I spoke to your Mom tonight and although there wasn't 
much news we just talked. Everybody is well - so that's 
something, darling. 

 

There's not much more to write tonight - guess this is just one of those very 
uneventful days. However I can't close my letters without telling you that I love you with all 
my heart -  

 

Goodnight darling -       ​
I love you          ​

Sylvia          ​
XXX          

 

 

510 Sylvia’s oldest sister Sadie Geeter. 

509 The Lenox was a 1000-seat performing arts venue at 961 Albany Ave. in Hartford, Connecticut. This theatre was 

a 5-minute walk from Sylvia’s house. 
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Lenox Theatre - 1000 seats 

961 Albany Ave., Hartford, Conn. 
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Friday night ​
Feb 25, 1944  

Darling - 

 

​ Right now the Double Or Nothing511 
program is on the radio and so far I've got most 
of the answers - there's a catch to that - 
everybody stopped at the $12 question - nobody 
has gone as high as the $64 one  

​ How do you like the enclosed cartoon? I 
thought it was very funny. Tomorrow is Saturday 
again and of course I'm glad it is - it means a 
short workday.  

​ Gerry bought her horoscope for this year 
and her birthday is two days after mine so it 
applies to me as well. So, we have a new pastime 
at work - we read it and find out what each day holds for us. Well, yesterday it stressed being 
friendly, so we were friendly (of course we overdid) it a bit - just for good luck.  

​ Adelaide [Kahn] called me tonight 
and darling she said she saw Paul Heinrich 
in his latest picture last night and all 
through the picture she kept thinking 
about how much you look like him. So she 
called me tonight to tell me. So, hon, I 
guess I'm not the only one who thinks so. 
Remember I told you that a long time ago. 
She told me not to miss it but I told her 
that I'm apt to forget myself and call out 
“Lenny” in the middle of some dramatic 
moment. 

The papers are full of headlines about the 
two-way bombings on Germany and that's all we hear on the news broadcast -so darling - 
you are making the news today.  

511  In Double or Nothing featured Guests are asked an opening question, the answer is worth $5. Then they have 

one minute to ad-lib on the topic of the question, and earn money for each statement. After the ad-lib they are 

asked a final question, the correct answer doubles their winnings.  
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​ Faye512 asked me if I wanted to go to New York some weekend sometime in April for 
the weekend. Adelaide wants to go too so when it gets a little warmer I think I'll go. Today 
was another beautiful day and it is so unusual for this time of the year. Well you can never tell 
though, tomorrow morning we may have a snow storm - then I can throw some more 
snowballs. 

​ I better start getting myself ready for bed. When I think of going to bed I think of 
that alarm clock that goes off in the morning. I wonder whoever it was that invented the 
alarm clock - he must have had a grudge against humanity.  

Well, my darling, it's another day gone, another day closer to when we will be together again 
and another good night. Goodnight, darling, all my love to you -      

       ​
I love you         ​

Sylvia         ​
XXX         

  

 

       

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Enclosed Private Buck cartoon 

      

512 Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman. 
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The Christiani Crew
513

 

Mission 1 

February 25, 1944 

 

 

B-17G 42-38177  

Aircraft delivered to Cheyenne 1/6/44; Gr Island 1/10/44; Grenier 1/24/44; Assigned 
561BS/388BG-H Knettishall 2/14/44. Target of first bombing mission: Pazen, Poland 

 

Crew:  

Pilot: Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani ​
Co-pilot: Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington ​

Navigator: Leonard (Lenny) Levy​
Bombardier: Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark (pictured above) 

Waist gunner: William N. Kline ​
Waist gunner: William (Bill) Alfred Pope Jr. ​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Salvatore (Sal) Ciaccio ​
Radio Operator: William Burtle Mayne​

Ball turret gunner: Rupert Garland Smith​
Tail gunner: John Clayton Griscom 

 

Target of first bombing mission: Pazen, Poland 

513 Crews were listed by the pilot’s name until the aircraft assigned to them were named. 
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England​
Feb 26 [1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

There is a saying that things happen in threes; this week was no 

exception. As you know, Tuesday I was sworn in as a 2nd Lieutenant, that was 

the first of the three incidents. Wednesday we went to [the] briefing and nothing 

happened, but Thursday and again Friday our early awakening meant 

something. Yes my darling I now have two missions over enemy territory to my 

credit. I can't say where we went, but if you read the [news]papers you'll know 

[where.]
514

 I was naturally very excited and nervous the first time, but this 

excitement wore off and except for a few moments it was similar to a [training] 

flight back in the States. These few moments were when we saw flak
515

 and 

when the [German] fighters made a pass at us.
516

 I can readily see why we were 

allowed to lounge around the past month - they were building us up for the let 

down. In the past three nights I've had exactly fifteen hours of sleep - knowing 

me, you can well imagine how tired I was this morning. Luckily we didn't fly 

this morning and so I slept until 5:00 this afternoon. Due to the fact that I was 

out of bed by three, and then didn't get back until almost nine, it was 

physically impossible to write. Please forgive me, my darling?  

Chris
517

 has proven our confidence in his flying; the higher ups have 

noticed his good work and it looks as if he is being groomed for a Squadron 

Leader. This means we will fly in a safer spot, and I will have a lot more 

responsibility.
518

 We were given a ship
519

 of our own today, now we have to 

think of a good name for it. What do you suggest, Butch?  

Honestly my sweet I've had so much to write and so little time to do so 

and now that I've got the time my mind is going in such a whirl that I just can't 

think. There's been no mail for me the past three days and still no packages. Of 

519 Aircraft 

518 Lenny’s role as Navigator for a Squadron Leader’s aircraft. 

517 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

516 The faster and more agile German fighter pilots attacked the US bombers from the air. 

515  Antiaircraft artillery from the German ground forces. 

514  Censors would have cut out any details about the two bombing missions over German-occupied territory. 

Obviously, Lenny is proud that his two missions were so successful. 
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course I shouldn't complain, not having written so much myself lately, but I do 

have a legitimate excuse, or don’t I?  

Once again it is time for me to say that I love you very very much, darling 

and for the days that I missed [writing] I'll make it up when I come home. With 

these two missions in, I'm that much closer to coming home. Once again my 

darling, I do love you and miss you very much. 

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you​

Lenny 

 

How is mom feeling give her my regards as well as to The rest of the family 

Love​
Lenny 
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Saturday Night ​
February 26, 1944  

Darling ~ 

In my letter yesterday I told you how I like Saturdays best because  it is the shortest 
workday of the week. Well, it seemed that all of my accounts sent checks in today in payment 
of their bills and I thought I'd never apply them all. But the incentive of getting out at 11:45 - 
I had them all applied and balanced by that time.  

​      Ida and I went downtown to Frank's 
for a spaghetti dinner – yes, I really like 
spaghetti now. We met there at 1:30 and 
Betty520, Faye,521 Ida and myself went to the 
movies. We saw Betty Hutton in The Miracle 
of Morgan's Creek which was an unusual story 
and very funny.  

When we came out of the movies, it was 
only six o'clock and Ida and I didn't feel like 
going home so we went to the Empire for 
supper and had a long wait until we got a 
table. I must admit I felt so lonely - I work 
all the time.  

You and I went there for Sunday night 
dinner - we did have such nice times 
together - didn't we? Well, when you are 
home again we'll go right on having those 
good times.  

When we left the Empire we noticed that the 
Palace had two old pictures which were 
brought back by popular demand - so 
seeing that neither one of us saw them we 

decided to go. However, Ida couldn't take it - she fell asleep during the second picture. I 
guess you would like to know a little more about Ida. Well, she's a typist in my office and 
usually she and I make a threesome. She lives in Rocky Hill but she boards in Hartford. Her 
mother isn't living and her father is an invalid. Her boyfriend has been overseas for over two 
years which is a long time, as you would agree. He was in the hospital a long time as he 

521 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 
(Betty May) Weidman and Holly Weidman, who were six and one at the time this was written. 

520  Elizabeth (Betty Mae) Weidman 
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contracted malaria. He's back in battle now. Ida is a very sweet girl and very good-natured. I 
enjoy her company very much.  

Well here it is after 12:00, and your wife is tired. It is miserable outdoors tonight - it's 
raining and there's that cold damp. Rosalyn went to New York for the weekend but it looks 
as though she took a bad weekend to go. There has been no mail from you since Monday 
and darling I must admit I miss hearing from you so much.  

Well darling, it's time to go to bed. I know that I lie in bed and think of all those 
pleasant memories and I'll fall asleep and have such nice dreams - so sweetheart it's good 
night - once again I love you so much my darling - so very much take care of yourself -      

      ​
I love you        ​

Sylvia        ​
XXX        

 Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:        

A. C. Williams [Signature]        ​
1st Lt. AC Adj​
561 Bomb Squad        ​
3-15-44        

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Mar 17 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and  Second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 18 1944 by the Control Section.      
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The Christiani Crew
522

 

Mission 2 

February 26, 1944 

 

 

B-17G 42-38177 

Aircraft delivered to Cheyenne 1/6/44; Gr Island 1/10/44; Grenier 1/24/44; Assigned 
561BS/388BG-H Knettishall 2/14/44. Successful bombing missions: (1) Pazen, Poland 

 

Crew:  

Pilot: Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani ​
Co-pilot: Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington ​

Navigator: Leonard (Lenny) Levy​
Bombardier: Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark (pictured above) 

Waist gunner: William N. Kline ​
Waist gunner: William (Bill) Alfred Pope Jr. ​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Salvatore (Sal) Ciaccio ​
Radio Operator: William Burtle Mayne​

Ball turret gunner: Rupert Garland Smith​
Tail gunner: John Clayton Griscom 

 

Target of this bombing mission: Regensberg, Germany 

522 Crews were listed by the pilot’s name until the aircraft assigned to them were named. 
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England​
Feb 27 [1944] 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Life has reverted back to what it was last week, for the present at least, and once 
again I'm well rested. We slept until time for dinner today, and then we called up for 
transportation and took a ride over to one of the nearby Fields to look up some friends 
from Alex. The place is only 20 odd miles from here, but it took us over two hours to get 
there due in entirety to the road systems of this country. There are no signs whatsoever 
at the crossroads and needless to say we always took the wrong turn. We finally got to 
our destination, spent an hour talking about the good old days back in Alex, and then 
came back here just in time for Chow.  

Last night's party was a huge success due, no doubt, to the fact that the green 
flag flew for the first time in a week. Liquor was poured much in the same way as 
water, and there were more fellows drunk than sober. For the first time in a long time, I, 
too, had a little too much, and the boys told me that I was a riot when I got to the 
barracks. Seems that I put my pajama pants on backwards, and when I had to ‘go,’ 
couldn't, so one of the fellows took his knife and cut a hole in the pants for me. This 
Saturday night occurrence is known [here] as a ‘drunk front’ - when bad weather comes 
in, it is known as a front, hence the name ‘drunk front.’  

And now, my darling, for the choicest morsel of the month. I've written to you 
quite a bit about our unique Co-pilot, and by now, you should know the type of person 
he is. Sit back and listen to the climax - you remember my writing that he met a girl in 
London last week? Well, yesterday, she came out here for the weekly shindig. He left 
her all to himself in a corner, not even having a dance with her. She stayed overnight, 
and this morning, he was up at seven and has been with her all day. Just a moment ago, 
two of our enlisted men came in and told us that he  applied for permission to marry 
her! The entire barracks is talking and laughing about him.  

That, my darling, is just about all the news there is, and because the flag is a 
brilliant red, I'd better sign off and get some sleep.  

Again, I want you to know that I do love you so very, very much and miss you 
terribly, my darling.   

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you 

Lenny 
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Sunday night ~​
February 27, 1944  

Darling ~ 

Hello darling, how are you today? I've been thinking of you so much today. Issie and 
Babe523 were here this afternoon. He looks about the same - he enjoys his life in the Navy524 
and likes being in New London. Then Nate525 and Lou526 came over and from then on it was 
noisy. When Is and Babe left, they had a card game but I don't know who was winning today 
- they were unusually quiet.  

Sadie527 has gone to the movies tonight. My mom is sitting in the living room 
listening to the radio; I bet she's asleep - she's like Uncle Barney528 - sleeps best when the 
radio is on full blast. I wanted to visit your folks this afternoon but because Issie came in I 
had to cancel the visit. I spoke to Mom and she was just finishing her morning cup of coffee. 
Margie529 is getting bigger everyday - the new niece or nephew is coming along fine.  

It's been raining today and this makes the third Sunday in a row that the weather has 
been far from pleasant. However, it didn't keep Betty May530 from coming over here - she's 
still as lovable as ever. Sadie made spaghetti for dinner and it was good. That makes having 
spaghetti two days in a row.  

530 Elizabeth (Betty) May Weidman 

529 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy. She is pregnant with twin boys 

Richard and Steven Levy.  

528 Barney Levy was Lenny’s oldest uncle. 
 

527 Sadie Geetter was Sylvia’s oldest sister and was unmarried at the time. 

526 Louis (Lou) B. Weidman married Sylvia’s younger sister Faye Geetter Weidman and had two children: Elizabeth 

Weidman Klein and Holly Weidman Philips, who were six and one at the time this was written. 

525  Sylvia’s youngest brother Nathan A. Geetter married Lillian R. Geetter and had two children, Philip Henry, who 

was three months old at the time this was written, and Diane who would be born in December. 

524  Isidore left his job as a physician at the Mt. Sinai Hospital in Hartford to enlist in the US Navy. He is finishing his 

training in New London, Connecticut. 

523 Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David, 

Albert, Thalia, Harold  and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written. 
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I went to the Crown Market531 this morning to do the shopping but it's Bedlam in 
that place. On Sunday morning I had to buy meat and when I looked at the woman pushing 
to get waited on I wished I didn't have to get that meat. Well, I summoned all my courage 
and went to the meat counter. The woman on my right was yelling at the woman on my left 
that she was there "Foist" and the woman on my left was twice as mad and claimed it was 
her turn. The butcher smiled at me - I smiled back and I was waited on "foist."  

Claire just called and she wanted to tell me that your package is all packed. You better 
have a can opener darling - you'll need it. I could hear Adelaide supervising the package. She 
got a cable this morning from Jarvis - he moved recently and he arrived at his new post.  

Do you know that this is my last sheet of stationery? I have to buy a box so that I can 
write tomorrow. Speaking of stationery - I hope you got my box of stationery that I sent to 
you - or as Nate said - you'll be writing on the kind with perforations! If you know Nate and 
you do - you know what he means by that. I hope that tomorrow will bring a letter from you 
darling - until then I'll be thinking of you, loving you and missing you - 

     ​
I love you       ​

Sylvia       ​
XXX       

531 The Crown Market is a Kosher supermarket founded in 1940 by Sam Smith, Sam Sowalsky and Meyer Goldfield 
on a piece of land on Albany Avenue between Magnolia Street and Irving Street in Hartford. The business was 
originally a group of concessions operating in the store. The meat and delicatessen was run by the Crown founders, 
while the bakery was run by the Lassoff family, the fruit department run by Bob Kotik, and the fish department by 
Hymie Goldfarb. The grocery department was run by the Winer family.  In 1943, Meyer Goldfield left the business 
and was replaced by Jack Sloat.  
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England​
Feb 28 [1944] 

 

Dearest Wife,  

Your letter today was the first indication I've had that [your] Mom is in 

the hospital. I hope that by now the doctors have found the trouble and that it 

is nothing serious. Also hope that by the time this reaches you, she is home 

and feeling well again. Give her my best wishes for a quick recovery, Butch.  

Today's mission was canceled during the night, so another easy day was 

spent by most of us. Poor Chris
532

 had to fly with one of the new crews and 

check out the pilot. Rock
533

 and I slept ‘til almost three and then went to the 

show where we saw Assignment in Brittany. Very good.  

We've all been laughing at [our] Co-pilot
534

 and his latest exploit, but I'm 

beginning to think that maybe he has a smart idea. She has evidently taken a 

room in a nearby hostelry, [and] tonight she was in the Mess Hall for supper. At 

least he has his ‘girl’ nearby, while we who are laughing have but a picture and 

happy memories to keep us happy.  

Funny coincidence, your letter told of Gladys and Ben
535

 spending the 

weekend with, and in the same mail... was a letter from Lorraine.. Somehow, I 

still think of her as a young kid, and when she mentioned [being in] high 

school, I was surprised. Her letter means still another one that I have to write - 

at the rate I'm going, I'll never catch up.  

We (the crew) have finally decided on a name for our ship.
536

 It is to be 

officially known as the Shack Rabbit. I'm afraid you'll have to guess the 

meaning of the name. One hint, you surely know what rabbits are famous for! 

We hope to have a [picture of a] rabbit and a nickname under the window of 

each crew member. Just as soon as the name is painted on, we are going to 

have our picture taken as a group, and then you'll have an idea what it looks 

536 A  Boening  B-17G Flying Fortress, the most common of heavy bombers in England with the US Forces. 

535 Sylvia’s brother, Ben Geetter and his wife, Gladys. 

534 Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington is the Co-pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

533 Ray (Rock) Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
 

532 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
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like. Rock's suggestion for the name under the Co-pilot's window is Bugs 

Bunny.  

 

The enclosed slip of paper is, as you may have guessed, my ring size. I 

tried to find a jeweler around here to have it taken, but there are none. I 

completely forgot about it while in London. I'm really sorry, my darling, that I 

let it go for so long. I assure you that I shall be more than proud to wear it 

when I get it. I'm leaving the choice of style completely up to you. I trust your 

taste.  

The flag is bright red again, and fearing that we are in for a long ride,
537

 

I'm going to hit the sack early. I do want to write a few lines to [my] Mom, 

haven’t written since Wednesday, so this is fairly close to the end.  

Once more, I want to assure you that I am feeling fine, and there is 

nothing for you to worry about. Just take…  care of yourself for me, and I'll be 

happy. So, it's goodnight, my sweet, and once again, I love you so very, very 

much, like you, and miss you terribly. 

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you​

Lenny 

Yes, the lighter is really just what I wanted. It's in use all day, every day.  

Love,​
L 

537 This indicates Lenny was prepared for a longer flight plan for tomorrow’s mission.  
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Monday night ~​
February 28, 1944  

Darling ~ 

As of late, there's never a dull moment in the office now since the story came around 
that our jobs will end April 1. There is constant buzzing in the ear last week about four girls 
in the office found new jobs and were released today. Three girls asked for releases as they 
had no jobs too - but as of today no releases will be issued until April 1. Well, one girl had a 
good job lined up and she was so disappointed when she didn't get her release - she said she 
cried as soon as that happened. You can imagine how noisy the office became, so now you 
know what I mean by my remark that there's never a dull moment and of course now I enjoy 
my job.  

We had company tonight Mr. and Mrs. Kaplan - my sister-in-law Claire's parents538. 
Claire and Adelaide were here to visit my mom. I got rid of two of my hats. I gave my 
Debbie hat to Beverly and my black hat to Claire. I never wear them because I don't like 
them. Claire said she was glad she came over as it turned out to be a profitable evening for 
her. Adelaide was telling me about the $10 she won playing Bingo at the St. Michael Church 
last week so we made a date to go next Tuesday night. I never played Bingo for prizes with 
the exception of that night we went to that Carnival in Alexandria539 - remember?  

Tomorrow night I intend to visit Libby Clavin. It's a long overdue  visit. Speaking of 
long visits brings to mind so many people I should visit as I've been asked to come there 
time and time again. Let's see there's Ruth Schecter,  Ann Pratt, Hermie and Miriam that's 
Gladys540’ sister and brother-in-law. Remember the?. I don't want to think about it anymore. 
I feel guilty. Well, I'll make good intentions of trying to visit them soon. Now I feel better.  

Well, darling - this is about all the news for today. Goodnight, darling - I love you very 
much. 

   

    ​
I love you      ​

Sylvia      ​
XXX      

540 Gladys M. Geetter married Sylvia’s third oldest brother Benjamin G. Geetter and had a daughter, Lorraine and 

Allan Joel, who were seven and two at the time this was written. 

539 Alexandria, Louisiana 
 

538 Claire Kaplan Geetter married Sylvia’s second oldest brother Maurice S. Geetter and had two daughters: Beverly 

and Marilyn, who were ten and nine at the time this was written. 

Page 687 



 

    

     

    

Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:      

J. P. Gross [Signature]      ​
Capt. AC Exec      ​
561 Bomb Squad      ​
3-26-44      

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and a cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Mar 27, 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and a Second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 28 1944 by the Control Section.    
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England​
Feb 29, 1944 

 

Dearest Wife, 

Another day, another raid, and more importantly, another payday. The raid we 
went on today was more like a sightseeing tour of the country than anything else. As I 
mentioned in a previous letter, we are being extremely lucky in the positions we are 
drawing, and the danger we are placed in is lessened. I'd like very much, my darling, to 
go into complete details about my missions, but I'm afraid that these stories too will 
have to wait for that time when I'm home and in your arms.  

The end of the month means but one thing in the army, payday. Just as soon as 
the interrogation was over with, I went to the finance office and drew my pay. It was 
not quite as much as I expected. They forgot to pay me for one month's flying time, but 
there was enough to enable me to send you an extra $200. You should receive it in two 
or three weeks. Do with it as you wish.  

No mail again today, my sweet, and I'm beginning to worry. Is there something 
wrong at home? Please don't keep anything from me, as waiting for news is worse than 
reading bad news. I do think that it is just the faulty mail system, but again, don't hold 
anything from me, please, my darling.  

For quite some time, Butch, I've been 
meaning to tell you of the work that the 
various organizations are doing for us. 
The best way to explain what is on my 
mind, I guess, is to tell you which ones 
are doing good and which are nothing 
but a lot of show.  

If and when the Red Cross541 has another 
appeal for funds, give till it hurts, sweet, 
for they are really taking over here. Not 
only do they have an office on most 

bases, but they also maintain a club on each block for the enlisted man. In towns such as 

541 American Red Cross workers provided assistance to all servicemen and women wherever they were stationed or 
deployed at home and overseas. Services were also extended, with limitations, to some civilian groups, such as the 
merchant marines, civilian pilots in the Army Transport Command, and to the armed forces of the Allies when they 
were in the United States or serving with the U.S. military. Military and Naval Welfare Service was basically of three 
kinds: Camp, Club, and Hospital. 
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London, they have tremendous club rooms where a soldier can have anything up to and 
including a place to sleep. In London alone, they have three or four such places for 
enlisted men and two for officers. The Officers Club in London run by the Red Cross, 
besides having rooms, also has an all-night cafeteria where at times you can even get 
real “Yank” hamburgers.  

As for the USO542...  they use some of the biggest 
names in the world of entertainment, but who gets to see 
them? Only those lucky enough to be stationed near a large 
city even get the chance to sweat out the line for tickets. Or 
they send shows around to the camps, but the performers 
wouldn’t rate billing in a third-class vaudeville house back 
home. It seems odd to me, but in the States where the need 
for morale building is not as great, the entertainment is 
much better…   

Having been up since two this morning, I'm getting 
just a bit sloppy, I'd better end this and get some 
much-needed sleep. I do love you so much, my darling, 
and you can feel sure that although you're not there in 
person, at least in my mind, you are on every raid I made. I think of you constantly, my 
darling, more so every day.  

 

Goodnight my sweetheart –​
I love you 

Lenny 

 

542 The United Service Organizations Inc. is an American nonprofit-charitable corporation that provides live 
entertainment, such as comedians, actors and musicians, social facilities, and other programs to members of the 
United States Armed Forces and their families. Since 1941, it has worked in partnership with the Department of 
War, and later with the Department of Defense, relying heavily on private contributions and on funds, goods, and 
services from various corporate and individual donors.  
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Tuesday night ​
February 29, 1944  

Darling ~ 

Today I bet a girl a half-pound of Mary Oliver's [chocolate] if she would take 
advantage of it being leap year day and propose to an old bachelor in the office. Well, she 
took me up on it - of course, she told him it was only a dare but I wish you could have seen 
the expression on his face. He didn't know what to make of it and he looked so 
dumbfounded. We all got a laugh out of it so it was well worth the loss of the bet. The girls 
in the office think it's a good idea that our jobs won't be for long because if I keep on the 
way I do we'd all get fired.  

 

Mary Oliver and the Strand Theatre 

1017 Main St., Hartford, Conn. 

Darling, you never mentioned whether you received my valentines - did you? I sent 
you two of them to be sure you got one, in case one got lost. Speaking of valentines, Ruth 
Schecter received roses today from Walt that he had wired to her for Valentine's day. She said 
that everybody in Sicily has seen the picture she sent him of the baby - of course that's a 
slight exaggeration.  

I hope you did get your three day pass so that you could go to London for the 
weekend. If it were possible for you to take those pictures you mentioned, it certainly would 
be nice.  
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I went to Libby's543 house tonight. It was snowing when I left and I was covered with 
snow when I got there. Her baby is so cute and for sixteen months he speaks so well. I 
visited until eleven and I was sorry I stayed that late because the weather is so bad tonight – 
well, it doesn't matter now because here I am and I'm thawed out. It is very cold outdoors.  

Mom received the letter you wrote on your last sheet of stationery. I hope that until 
you get the stationery I sent you, you can manage somehow to get some paper on which to 
write your letters home.  

Well, darling, it's time to say good-night. Take good care of yourself - give my regards 
to Rock and Chris.  

Goodnight, darling ~ 

    ​
I love you      ​

Sylvia      ​
XXX      

    

   Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:      

W. C. Williams [Signature]      ​
1st Lt.AC Exec      ​
561 Bomb Squad      ​
3-16-44      

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and  cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Mar 21, 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and    Second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 22 1944 by the Control Section.    

  

543 Libby Handler is one of Sylvia’s closest friends. She graduated in the same 1938 class at Weaver High School, 
where she was also a member of the Girls Business Club along with Sylvia (Ronnie) Ronner, Eleanor Kohl, Sylvia 
Geetter, and others who have stayed in Hartford and remained good  friends. 
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War Brides544 1943 - Hartford, Connecticut 

Adelaide       Bonnie           Sylvia ​         Libby      Margie       Nettie​
​     Kalin         Spector​ Levy​      Handler      Levy​         Siegel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

544 Titled by Sylvia in a photo album. 
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Shack Rabbits
545

 

Mission 3 

February 29, 1944 

 

 

B-17G 42-38177 'Shack Rabbits'  

Aircraft delivered to Cheyenne 1/6/44; Gr Island 1/10/44; Grenier 1/24/44; Assigned 
561BS/388BG-H Knettishall 2/14/44. Successful bombing missions: (2) Pazen, Poland and 
Regensberg, Germany. 

 

Crew:  

Pilot: Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani ​
Co-pilot: Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington ​

Navigator: Leonard (Lenny) Levy​
Bombardier: Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark (pictured above) 

Waist gunner: William N. Kline ​
Waist gunner: William (Bill) Alfred Pope Jr. ​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Salvatore (Sal) Ciaccio ​
Radio Operator: William Burtle Mayne​

Ball turret gunner: Rupert Garland Smith​
Tail gunner: John Clayton Griscom 

Target of this bombing mission: Brunswick, Germany 

545 The Lt. Christiani crew wished to name their aircraft Shack Rabbit, which had already been  named by another 
crew in 1943. They could have chosen Shack Rabbit 2. Instead they selected Shack Rabbits. 
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Wednesday night ~​
March 1, 1944  

Darling ~ 

Another month has gone by and it was a pleasant feeling to tear off the month of 
February on my calendar this morning. It meant one thing to me, one month of separation 
was over and we are one month closer to that time when we will be together again.  

 

Hartford is having a big Red Cross Drive this year. It seems rather unnecessary to 
have such an extensive campaign for donations and I think everybody realizes how 
important the work of the Red Cross is today. They had a parade today and the fellows from 
Bradley Field and Rocky Hill had to do their left-right.  

This afternoon was a complete waste of time in the office. Nobody did very much 
and everybody was fooling... 

[missing page] 

I guess by refusing to give out releases, they did the wrong thing because the girls' 
attitude towards their work is [now] indifference. The girl who sits in front of me is in a 
ticklish situation now. She has [a] bad appendix and [was] warned by a doctor about a month 
ago to have an operation as soon as possible. Well, she's afraid to be operated on as her sister 
died from an appendix operation three years ago. Well, she decided that she would get her 
release by saying she was going to have her operation – which she really isn't - what she's 
going to [is] look for another job. But, my boss was one step ahead of her because through 
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his various "informers" he found out just what her intentions were - so he's giving her a 
release but… it will be for "medical attention." Now, when she looks for another job she will 
have to explain what that means and naturally it will be almost impossible for her to get a job 
because no company will want to hire her when she is in bad need of an appendix operation 
which can take her out of her work with no notice. So, she has to take this release and she 
certainly is sorry she asked for it.  

I went to a dress shop on Albany Avenue this evening with Sadie. She is looking for a 
new dress and she heard of this new dress shop and she thought she would find something 
she might like. It was opposite Kent Street so you can see it was a walk from my house and it 
was so windy we were practically blown there and back. She didn't buy anything but as long 
as we were near the library I got some books to read.  

 

I was just listening to Frankie 
"Swoonatra" He does sing some songs very well - 
I guess I'm beginning to live up to my name of 
"Shoo-Shoo."  

Darling, is there anything you need that I 
can send to you? I hope you won't neglect to 
mention anything you may want in your letters - 
so hon - you won't forget will you?  

My goodness - it's getting late - it seems 
that the time just flies when I write to you - but 
there is no better way to pass my time.  

Darling ~ I hope that with this letter I 
could send all of my love - but it would take 
more than a letter. I love you so very much 
sweetheart and I miss you more and more 
everyday. Have you heard that new song "I wish I could hide inside this letter546" -?  well, 
darling - I wish I could, and as the words go - "I'd seal me up and send me out to you." That 
would be wonderful!  

Goodnight, darling ~  

   ​
I love you     ​

Sylvia     ​
XXX     

546 As performed by Lawrence Welk with vocals by Jayne Walton. See lyrics below. 
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I Wish That I Could Hide Inside This Letter 

Performed by Lawrence Welk​
Recorded December 2, 1943​
Written by Nat Simon, Charlie Tobias 

My heart's in this letter I'm sending​
The same as the others I write​
I close it and then start pretending​
The same as I do every night​
I wish that I could hide inside this letter​
And seal me up and send me out to you​
What a surprise in store​
They'd bring me to your door​
I'd pop right out and kiss you​
like you've never been kissed before​
We'd be so happy we could cry together​
And then we'd love the way we used to do​
I wish that I could hide inside this letter​
And seal me up and send me off to you 

We'd be so happy we could cry together​
And then we'd love the way we used to do​
I wish that I could hide inside this letter​
And seal me up and send me off to you​
Special delivery​
I'd V-mail this female to you 

 

 

Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:     

W.C. Williams [Signature]     ​
Capt. AC Exec     ​
561 Bomb Squad     ​
3-16-44     

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and  cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Mar 21, 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and  Second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 22 1944 by the Control Section.   
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V Mail​
March 2, 1944 

 

Darling ~ 

I'm writing this in the office just before we start work for the day. In my letter last 
night I forgot to tell you that I bought a kit for your shaving things and I am sending it to 
you this week. The reason why I didn't send it last week is because we are allowed to send 
one package a week (with the request of course) and I sent your underwear out last week.  

I better get to work now my adding machine is still covered and everybody around 
me is busy working. I'll write a long letter tonight - so until then ~ 

 

 

I love you      ​
Sylvia      ​
XXX      

    

    

    

Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:      

J.R. Gross [Signature]      ​
Capt. AC Exec      ​
561 Bomb Squad      ​
4-15-44      

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and a cancellation 
stamp on reverse dated Apr 20, 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and a second 
cancellation stamp on reverse dated Apr 21 1944 by the Control Section.    
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Shack Rabbits 

Mission 4 

March 2, 1944 

 

 

B-17G 42-38177 'Shack Rabbits'  

Aircraft delivered to Cheyenne 1/6/44; Gr Island 1/10/44; Grenier 1/24/44; Assigned 
561BS/388BG-H Knettishall 2/14/44. Successful bombing missions: (3) Pazen, Poland, 
Regensberg, Germany and Brunswick, Germany. 

 

Crew:  

Pilot: Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani ​
Co-pilot: Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington ​

Navigator: Leonard (Lenny) Levy​
Bombardier: Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark (pictured above) 

Waist gunner: William N. Kline ​
Waist gunner: William (Bill) Alfred Pope Jr. ​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Salvatore (Sal) Ciaccio ​
Radio Operator: William Burtle Mayne​

Ball turret gunner: Rupert Garland Smith​
Tail gunner: John Clayton Griscom 

Target of this bombing mission: Chartres, France  
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England​
Friday, March 3 

 

Dearest Wife, 

As I mentioned in a recent letter, my letters to you will be less regular than they 
have been in the past, but only because we are being kept so busy now. In the past three 
days, I've flown three times, twice on regular combat missions, and once as an 
instructor. Yes, my sweet, I said as an instructor. The other day, when a practice flight 
was scheduled, I was told to fly with one of the new crews and help the navigator get 
started. Can you imagine my surprise when I find out that the fellow I was to teach was 
formerly an instructor at Selman Field547? He graduated about a full year before I did, 
and taught at Monroe till a year ago, January. There were, however, a few things he 
didn't know about navigation over here, so I didn't appear too dumb.  

 

Phillip Brejansky - Navigator548 - 563th Bomb Squadron 

548 Once a crew has completed five missions, the US Air Corps takes official photographs of the crew:  a group shot 
similar to the one on the next page and 10 crew shots at their stations in the aircraft. 

547 Selman Army Airfield is an inactive United States Air Force base, approximately 7.7 miles east of Monroe, 

Louisiana. It was where he received his Pre-flight training as a Navigator.  
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The two combat missions have boosted my total to five, meaning that I will soon wear 
the Air Medal. This is an automatic award given for five missions. What do you think of 
your husband now, my darling?  

There is a saying, ‘All things come to the one who waits.’ Today, I not only got a 
letter from you, the first one in a week, but also two packages, the first two you sent out. 
Needless to say, I now have a goodly supply of candy. Thank you very much, Butch. 
Was very glad to hear that Mom is out of the hospital. I was beginning to worry, not 
having heard from you in so long. Give her my regards.  

The weather over here is the one thing that reminds me of New England. For a 
while, the days were warm. Then the other day, we woke up to find the ground covered 
with snow. Since then, it has been rather cold, and we have an acute coal shortage. A 
long time ago, I promised you a picture of the crew. Just as soon as our plane is finished 
up, that is, when the name and the other things are painted on, we are to have a crew 
picture taken by the base Photo Department. It is all settled, and they have promised us 
enough copies for each.  

 

B-17 42-30340 "Screaming Red Ass" & Crew, 563rd Bomb Squadron, 388th Bomb  

Group Standing L to R are: 2nd Lt. Harry L. Cotter 1st Lt. William K. Bowler 2nd Lt. Bruno A. 
Manno Kneeling from L to R are: T/Sgt. Denton E. Walthall T/Sgt. Matthew Bejma S/Sgt. 
Willis D. Condren S/Sgt. Calvin Hoagland S/Sgt. Roy T. Patterson S/Sgt. Fred C. Kerr 
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My darling, I'm thrilled you felt just like a wife when you went out shopping for 
shirts and jerseys that day. I'm very glad that you had that proud feeling. I'll always do 
my best to keep you feeling that way. I do love you so very much, my darling.  

There is no rest far the wicked  on the Air Forces in the ETO549, meaning that the 
red flag is flying again, so your “baby” must go to bed very shortly. These early 
morning awakenings are really tough on one who loves his sleep as much as I do. 
Again, my darling, I love you very, very much and miss you terribly. Until that day 
comes when we shall be together again, always remember that. Not that I'll ever let you 
forget.  

​  

 

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you 

Lenny 

 

 

 

 

549​  European Theatre of Operation, which was the area of military operations for the United States Army during 

World War II in Europe from 1942 to 1945.  
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Friday night ~​
March 3, 1944 

Darling ~ 

This is going to be my first letter addressed to Lt. Leonard Levy and it makes me so 
proud to be able to do so. Mom received the letter in which you told her all about it and she 
told me about it tonight. Again darling - let me congratulate you and may your gold bars 
bring you all the luck in the world.  

I received the letter you wrote to me on February 22 - yes, the nice long one that 
came in separate envelopes. I am so happy you had such a good time in London and darling 
no excuse was necessary for not writing. However, did you get me the souvenirs for my 
scrap-book550? I was hoping you would send something - have you darling? If you couldn't 
find anything for the scrapbook - it's perfectly ok. I know it's because there was nothing to 
send.  

I can see where you'll get very little sleep when you come home dear, I'm going to 
keep you awake telling me about all the things you are seeing and have yet to see. Just think 

of all the interesting stories you will be able to tell 
our children. Did Rock look up his relatives in 
London? I must say that prostitution is a good 
profession in England. I get a kick out of the 
trouble you and Chris had getting back to your 
hotel - it surprises me that you did find it after all. I 
hope that it won't be long before you can have 
another weekend and have a good time again.  

​      I just came home from the Emmanuel551. 
There were quite a few sailors from Trinity there 

and they were all so young - I went with Libby. It is snowing now but I don't think it will 
snow very long.  

551 Formed in 1919, Emanuel Synagogue in Hartford was Connecticut’s first Conservative congregation. In 1920, 

members dedicated its first synagogue in the former North Methodist Church on Main Street. With a growing 

membership, the congregation purchased farmland on Woodland Street in Hartford’s Upper Albany 

neighborhood. A new synagogue, designed by Ebbets and Frid, was completed in 1927. The former Hartford 

synagogue is now Faith Seventh Day Adventist Church. 

550 Sylvia collected souvenirs Lenny sent her from the bases and nearby cities he was deployed to. This scrapbook 

was lost years later. 
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So, you received Issie's552 letter at last. I knew you would have difficulty reading it 
because I have that trouble myself.  

By the way, in your letter you mentioned that Rock and Red went out together. Does 
that mean that Red is getting to be more sociable? That really surprised me because the Rock 
had so many "outs" with him.   

It's another coincidence, meeting Mike at that bar. How is he? Is he stationed near 
you? 

No, your stationery isn't very pretty but it's beautiful to me because it is something 
for you to write your letters on - and that's all that counts.  

Tomorrow, I am mailing you your new kit for your shaving things etc. I hope you will 
like it - and I hope it won't take as long to get to you as my other packages are doing.  

Today the girls at work were talking about the Devil and some of them believe that 
the Devil actually makes people devilish - and they all tell me that I have the Devil in me. 
Some of the things I do at work is what causes them to think it. As usual, I'm always up to 
something. Yesterday the boss on the other side of the room called up my boss to tell the 
girls to be quiet as we were disturbing his department - and do you know who was at the 
bottom of it - yes - me! This is what started it - a girl brought in her wedding pictures and 
Bernie, he's my supervisor, had one on his desk. Well, I made believe I was jealous - so I 
drew a picture which was supposed to be my wedding picture and I must admit - it was no 
pin-up girl. Well, I left it on Bernie's desk and that started it all. The girls got around the desk 
- and were laughing and talking and innocent me - I was busy at my desk. Shmaht huh, hon. I 
guess you'll still have your hands full when you come home, darling.  

I'm enclosing an article taken from the [Hartford] Times. It's about Ivan Finkle. I 
thought you would enjoy reading it - especially after bumping into him recently.553   

Darling, about those delays you've had taking off for your first mission - please don't 
feel bad about it - remember what you always say - "Everything Happens for the best." I 
have to tell myself that a good many times and I find that it always turns out to be true.  

Hon, I'm getting sleepy - so I guess it's time to say goodnight. I know it won't be long 
before you will be here and I can kiss you goodnight again - Until then - darling - remember 
-  

553  Ivan Nathan Finkle was stationed in Knettishall AFB in the same Bomb Group 561 as Lenny. He graduated from 

Weaver High School in Hartford two years after Sylvia.  

552 Rebecca (Babe) M. Geetter married Sylvia’s oldest brother Isidore (Issie) S. Geetter and had five children: David, 

Albert, Thalia, Harold and Suzanne. They were ten, eight, five, three and one at the time this was written.  

Isidore left his job as a physician at the Mt. Sinai Hospital in Hartford to enlist in the US Navy. He is finishing his 

training in New London, Connecticut. 
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   ​
I love you     ​

Sylvia     ​
XXX     

   

   

 

 

   

Letter marked "Missing" below the return address, by:     

J. P. Gross [Signature]     ​
Capt. AC Exec     ​
561 Bomb Squad     ​
3-17-44     

Stamped "Return to Sender Verified 1st Base Post Office" below postage, and    

cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 20, 1944 by the US Army Postal Service, and   

Second cancellation stamp on reverse dated Mar 22 1944 by the Control Section.   
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March 3, 1944 

Sergeant Finkle Wins Citation 

Tech.-Sgt. Ivan N. Finkle, son of Louis Finkel of 15 Milford Str., a member of the 
Eighth Air Force, stationed in England, who recently completed 18 missions, has been 
awarded the Air Medal  and two Oak Leaf Clusters.  

According to a citation, Sergeant Finkle was commended for "exceptional 
meritorious service while participating in aerial flight. The skill, coolness and courage 
displayed by the enlisted man (Sgt. Finkle) reflects great credit upon himself an[d] the 
Army Air Force.  

Sergeant Finkle is a member of the crew of the Blitzing Betsy. 

 

 

 

 

​ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

​  
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Blitzin’ Betsy​
 

 

B-17G-15-DL #42-37886 'Blitzing Betsy'  

Aircraft delivered to Denver 10/2/43; Gr Island 10/21/43; Assigned 561BS/388BG-H Knettishall 
10/25/43. 

 

Crew:  

Pilot: Lowell H. Watts​
Co-pilot: Robert M. Kennedy ​
Navigator: Emmett J. Murphy ​

Bombardier: Edward J. Kelley Jr. 

Waist gunner: Raymond E. Hess​
Waist gunner: Donald W. Taylor​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Joseph B. Ramsey​
Radio Operator: Ivan N. Finkle​

Ball turret gunner: Robert M. Sweeney​
Tail gunner: Harold A. Brassfield 
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Shack Rabbits 
Mission 5 

March 3, 1944 

 

 

B-17G 42-38177 'Shack Rabbits'  

Aircraft delivered to Cheyenne 1/6/44; Gr Island 1/10/44; Grenier 1/24/44; Assigned 
561BS/388BG-H Knettishall 2/14/44. Successful bombing missions: (5) Pazen, Poland, 
Regensberg, Germany, Brunswick, Germany,Chartres, France and Berlin,Germany.  

 

Crew:  

Pilot: Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani ​
Co-pilot: Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington ​

Navigator: Leonard (Lenny) Levy​
Bombardier: Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark (pictured above) 

Waist gunner: William N. Kline ​
Waist gunner: William (Bill) Alfred Pope Jr. ​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Salvatore (Sal) Ciaccio ​
Radio Operator: William Burtle Mayne​

Ball turret gunner: Rupert Garland Smith​
Tail gunner: John Clayton Griscom 

 

Target of this bombing mission: Berlin,Germany 

Page 710 



 

 

Shack Rabbits 
Mission 6 

March 4, 1944 

 

 

B-17G 42-38177 'Shack Rabbits'  

Aircraft delivered to Cheyenne 1/6/44; Gr Island 1/10/44; Grenier 1/24/44; Assigned 
561BS/388BG-H Knettishall 2/14/44. Successful bombing missions: (6) Pazen, Poland, 
Regensberg, Germany, Brunswick, Germany and Chartres, France and Berlin,Germany twice. 

 

Crew:  

Pilot: Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani ​
Co-pilot: Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington ​

Navigator: Leonard (Lenny) Levy​
Bombardier: Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark (pictured above) 

Waist gunner: William N. Kline ​
Waist gunner: William (Bill) Alfred Pope Jr. ​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Salvatore (Sal) Ciaccio ​
Radio Operator: William Burtle Mayne​

Ball turret gunner: Rupert Garland Smith​
Tail gunner: John Clayton Griscom 

 

Target of this bombing mission: Berlin,Germany 
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England​
3 – 6 – 44 

Dearest wife –  

​ Spare time is, of late, a very rare thing but when I sit down to write to you it is 
the best, and happiest part of my day. You have no idea how good it makes me feel to be 
able to sit down and ‘talk’ to you. 

Since my last letter to you I have added another mission to my name – they are 
starting to add up, my sweet. The only bad feature of having them so fast is that at night 
we are so tired that we simply hit the ‘sack’ and are out until the orderly wakes us in the 
morning. Last night we didn’t even bother to dress and go to the weekly shindig. 
Rock554 went to bed while Chris555 and I went to the show for a few hours of relaxation. 
The picture was Girl Crazy and it did have a few laughs in it. Slept until 10:00 this morn’ 
and then had to get up to attend a group meeting. Chris had to fly as an instructor again 
this afternoon – I put my time to good use by taking a much needed bath. I was 
honestly shades lighter when I got through; it is so darn inconvenient to wash around 
here that we just let it go until we become unbearable to ourselves. 

Syl, Mom finally wrote me the story of Margie556 – of course it was just her side of 
the story and I still can’t make any sense out of it. Her folks must have had a reason 
(good or bad) for doing what they did and knowing Margie the way I do I’m inclined to 
think she did more than her share in provoking them into it. I’m of the opinion that it is 
a dirty trick on Mom + Pop but I think they had no alternative to do what they did. I’m 
wondering what will be when the baby is born. Frankly my darling I’m truly happy 
that we were as careful as we were. I do so want a child of my own but I want to be 
with you when the time comes. 

So once again you are to be a lady of leisure – I too hope that it holds out until 
summer so that you will be able to go to the shore with Faye – didn’t know that you 
didn’t care for your present job. Just what is wrong with it Butch? 

Started to read one of the books you sent the other night and almost finished a 
can of nuts along with the book – both were very good. Reading material is scarce also 
but then I don’t miss that too much as there isn’t the time to read anyhow. Told Chris 

556 Marjorie (Margie) Naidorf Levy is married to Lenny’s brother N. Norman Levy who is a Private in the US Army. 
Margie is pregnant with twins and living with Lenny’s mother and father in Hartford, Connecticut. 

555 Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani is the Pilot of Lenny’s crew. 
 

554 Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark is the Bombardier of Lenny’s crew. 
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that you wanted to send out a ‘Monopoly’ set and he wanted to know if you could also 
send the time along with it. 

It’s time once again to say goodnight to you my sweet – Remember always , my 
darling, that I love you so very, very much and miss you more with each passing day. 

 

Goodnight my darling –​
I love you 

Lenny 
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Black Monday 
Mission 250 

March 6, 1944 

On Monday 6 March 1944 the US 8th Air Force for the first time mounted a full scale daylight 
attack on Berlin, capital of the Third Reich. As a result of the hard fought battles on the way to 
the target, over it and during the return flight, 75 US 4 engine bombers and eleven escorting 
fighters failed to regain their bases; in no other days fighting before or after, would the 8th Air 
Force lose a greater number of aircraft.  
 

A total of 730 bombers were sent to Berlin, of which 504 B-17 Flying Fortresses and 226 B-24 
Liberators. The formation flew a fairly direct route to Berlin, which passed over Southeast 
Drenthe on both the outward and return journeys. 801 American fighters were sent along to 
escort the bombers. These were of the P-38 Lightning, P-47 Thunderbolt and P-51 Mustang 
types. Approximately 10% of the bombers did not return: a total of 75 bombers were lost. This 
day would become known as 'Black Monday'.  

 

Introduction from 

Stichting Luchtoorlog Onderzoek Drenthe  

https://www.slodrenthe.nl/ 

 

 Target Berlin Mission 250: 6 March 1944 ​
By Jeffrey Ethell and Dr Alfred Price ​

Green Hill Books London  
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Blitzing Betsy 
Mission 21 

March 6, 1944 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B-17G-15-DL #42-37886 'Blitzing Betsy'  

Aircraft delivered to Denver 10/2/43; Gr Island 10/21/43; Assigned 561BS/388BG-H Knettishall 
10/25/43. 

Crew:  

Pilot: Lowell H. Watts (Prisoner of War)​
Co-pilot: Robert M. Kennedy  (Prisoner of War)​
Navigator: Emmett J. Murphy  (Prisoner of War)​

Bombardier: Edward J. Kelley Jr.  (Prisoner of War) 

Waist gunner: Raymond E. Hess  (Killed in Action)​
Waist gunner: Donald W. Taylor   (Killed in Action)​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Joseph B. Ramsey  (Prisoner of War)​
Radio Operator: Ivan N. Finkle  (Prisoner of War)​

Ball turret gunner: Robert M. Sweeney  (KIA)​
Tail gunner: Harold A. Brassfield  (KIA) 
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After taking off from RAF Knettishall at 0801 hrs, B-17G 42-37886 'Blitzing Betsy' of the 562nd 
Bomb Squadron, 388th Bomb Group was flying the same direct route to Berlin. B-17G 42-37886 
'Blitzing Betsy' was part of B Group, led by B-17G 42-40054 'Jinny', along with 17 other B-17 
Flying Fortresses. The aircraft was carrying the usual crew of ten.  

On the return from a mission to Klein Machnow, Berlin on March 6, 1944, B-17G #42-37886 
Blitzin' Betsy was severely damaged by attacks from several FW190s causing it to collide with 
another 388th B-17, namely #42-40054, exploding in mid-air and crashing near Emmen, 
Holland.  

The formation followed the route and, despite several attacks by German fighters, successfully 
arrived at Berlin. The first group (B Group) dropped its bombs at 13:47 and hit Oranienburg, a 
northern district of Berlin. The second group (A Group) waited a little longer; they dropped their 
bombs at 14:07 and hit Wittenberg, northwest of Berlin. After completing their mission, the 
formation flew back towards England. ​
 

As B-17G 42-37886 'Blitzing Betsy' approached the Dutch/German border without fighter 
escort, the crew soon spotted German fighters approaching from the front and rear. Edward J. 
Kelley Jr., the bomb aimer, and Joseph B. Ramsey, the flight engineer, opened fire on the Focke 
Wulf Fw 190s approaching from the front. Harold A. Brassfield, the tail gunner, opened fire on 
the Fw 190s attacking from the rear. 

The navigator of B-17G 42-37886 'Blitzing Betsy', Emmett J. Murphy, fired a few bursts from 
the forward side guns and felt his knee buckle as he was hit by shrapnel. He also saw smoke 
coming from the bomb bay and opened the hatch to see a blaze. He tried to extinguish it but the 
fire extinguisher did not work. In fact, the bomb bay was not on fire but the engine and wing 
were on fire and flames were coming in through a large hole. 

Harold A. Brassfield shouted over the intercom, “I got one, I got one!” And almost immediately 
he shouted, “I got hit in the eye!” Donald W. Taylor, the left side gunner, left his gunnery 
position to help him. 

Pilot Lowell H. Watts reports: “Our plane was set on fire by 20-mm incendiary shells fired by 
Fw 190s from positions 11, 12 and 1 o’clock. From the intercom conversation I got the 
impression that we were also being attacked from the rear, although I did not see this. The 
20-mm shells entered our plane through the nose section and exploded under my feet near the 
fuel lines and main oxygen supply. The combination of incendiary shells, 100-octane gasoline 
and oxygen was of course extremely flammable and the fire spread very rapidly.” 

The shooting down of B-17G 42-37886 'Blitzing Betsy' was attributed to Hauptmann Hugo Frey, 
flying Focke Wulf Fw 190A-6 Wnr. 470083. Hauptmann Hugo Frey also crashed with his 
aircraft on 6 March 1944, after having shot down a total of four B-17 Flying Fortresses, at Erm. 
It is unknown whether the gunners of B-17G 42-37886 'Blitzing Betsy' were the cause of its 
crash. 
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Lowell continues: "I remember someone calling over the intercom that the plane was on fire and 
at the same time noticing smoke and flames coming from under my seat. Since we were flying in 
the forward position of the low squadron, I was in the co-pilot's seat on this mission. I requested 
the navigator to use a hand-held extinguisher in an attempt to control the fire. 

"Further action would be useless," Lowell said. "At that moment I gave the order over the 
intercom to abandon the plane, but received no acknowledgement. Whether this was due to the 
fact that the communication system on board had been shot to pieces or to general confusion, I 
do not know. The alarm switch in a B-17 is located on the left wall next to the pilot's seat; the 
fact that I was in the right seat made it impossible for me to operate the alarm. I did not hear him 
ring, and whether my co-pilot, Bob Kennedy, operated the alarm I do not know, although it was 
my impression that the bell did not ring. 

The flames were now so intense that I could no longer see outside or even the instrument panel. I 
called Bob over the intercom for help. When I got no answer, I turned my head in his direction 
and found that he had already left the aircraft. The nose hatch, which allowed the officers in the 
front of the aircraft to exit, was still open, further fanning the flames. My lack of visibility made it 
impossible to determine exactly what happened next . 

As the crew left the aircraft, I pushed the wheel forward, as there was a burning aircraft on my 
left, descending below the formation. I leaned forward to engage the autopilot. Just as I felt it 
engage, there was a violent jolt and great confusion, which I only learned later was caused by 
my aircraft having collided with the command aircraft of our formation, which was flying above 
us and was being flown by Captain Job.” This was B-17G 42-40054 'Jinny'. 

“ Since I could not see anything because of the fire, I did not know that our aircraft had actually 
started to climb, although I was trying to descend. Personally, I believe that our aircraft had 
been damaged in the tail section, which changed the trim and caused the aircraft to climb 
instead of descending. I tried to reach the throttles to reduce the power, but the aircraft went into 
what I suspect was a kind of spin. This caused so many G-forces that I was unable to take my 
hand off the autopilot controls to operate the throttles. Because of the fire in the cockpit, I am not 
certain, but I had the impression that both inner engines were also on fire. “ 

Emmett J. Murphy tells his side of the story: “During the frontal attack we were hit in the inner 
engines by 20 mm shells; one shell went through the Plexiglas nose, missed Ed Kelley’s head and 
mine, and exploded in the oxygen tanks under the cockpit. The whole thing started burning. So 
Ed jumped out the forward hatch and I followed him, singeing my eyebrows. Bob Kennedy also 
jumped in time, having to knock out the fire on his chest parachute before it could hook up.” 

Emmett J. Murphy was just diving out of the hatch when the explosion occurred: “When I last 
saw our plane, hanging from the parachute, it was on its back in a steep dive, burning like a 
torch with its engines screaming and running wild. Then it exploded. We were flying at an 
altitude of 15,000 feet when we were hit and I opened my parachute after dropping perhaps 
7,000 feet , wanting to get away from the plane and out of the battle area as quickly as possible. 
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As I hung from my parachute I saw our fighter escort – P-47 Thunderbolts – coming up and a 
big dogfight developing. If we had held out a little longer the Germans would undoubtedly have 
been driven off.” 

Lowell H. Watts jumps back a few seconds in the story: “Knowing that my ball turret gunner, 
Bob Sweeney, could not have had an opportunity to escape, I tried to relieve the G-forces on the 
plane by pulling back on the wheel with all my strength. I was now aware that the windshield, the 
top of the cockpit and the dorsal turret were destroyed and that I was, quite frankly, sitting in a 
burning pile of scrap metal. The G-forces finally subsided somewhat, but I am not certain of the 
position of the plane at that moment. We had been in a spinning dive for so long that I expected 
the plane to crash to the ground at any moment. 

At the same moment there was an explosion in the aircraft and I was catapulted out of the top of 
the cockpit with considerable force. As I was wearing a back parachute and not a chest type, my 
parachute was in place and I was able to open it shortly before I hit the ground. An Fw 190 shot 
past me into the depths with the pilot apparently wounded or dead in the cockpit and crashed 
close to where I landed.” 

Lowell H. Watts, Joseph B. Ramsey, Ivan N. Finkle and Raymond E. Hess were all thrown from 
the plane by the explosion. All but Raymond E. Hess managed to open their parachutes. He was 
found a short distance from the wreckage with his unopened parachute still on. 

The collision marked the end of both B-17G 42-37886 'Blitzing Betsy' and B-17G 42-40054 
'Jinny'. 

 

from 

 Stichting Luchtoorlog Onderzoek Drenthe ​
https://www.slodrenthe.nl/b-17g-flying-fortress-42-37886-blitzing-betsy/​
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Suzy Sagtitz 
 

March 6, 1944 

 

 

 

Delivered Cheyenne 25/9/43; Gr Isle 8/10/43; Romulus 12/10/43; Assigned 562BS/388BG 
Knettishall 14/10/43; Missing in Action Berlin 6/3/44 with  

Montgomery Givens, Co-pilot: Harry Teat, Navigator: Ken Betts, Bombardier: Larry McMillan, 
Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Roy Kesanen, Radio Operator: Jim Geraghty, Ball turret 
gunner: Tom Foulds, Waist gunner: Jack Karr, Tail gunner: Dan Walstra (9 Prisoner of War); 
Waist gunner: Willard McGee (KIA-killed by enemy a/c, over Holland) Missing Air Crew 
Report 3082. SUSY-SAG-TITZ.  

Suzy was shot down at 15:05 hours by Hauptmann Hugo Frey in his Fw 190, who himself was 
killed in the air to air battle, after shooting down 4 B-17s in the battle.  Enemy aircraft crashed at 
Oud Schoonebekerveld, alongside Dommerskanaal, near Emmen, Hol.  

Suzy was a loaner AC, Givens AC 'Quarterback', was being repaired from battle damage from 
March 4 Berlin Mission. 

 

from 

 American Air Museum ​
https://www.americanairmuseum.com ​
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Shack Rabbits 
Mission 7 

March 6, 1944 - Black Monday 

 

B-17G 42-38177 'Shack Rabbits'  

Crew:  

Pilot: Augustine (Chris) Benedict Christiani (Prisoner of War)​
Co-pilot: Clarence (Red) Darryl Farrington (Killed in Action)​

Navigator: Leonard (Lenny) Levy (Prisoner of War)​
Bombardier: Raymond (Rock) Robert Newmark (Prisoner of War) 

Waist gunner: William N. Kline (Prisoner of War)​
Waist gunner: William (Bill) Alfred Pope Jr. (Prisoner of War)​

Flight engineer/top turret gunner: Salvatore (Sal) Ciaccio (Killed in Action)​
Radio Operator: William Burtle Mayne (Killed in Action)​

Ball turret gunner: Rupert Garland Smith (Killed in Action)​
Tail gunner: John Clayton Griscom (Killed in Action) 

Target of this bombing mission: the VKF Ball Bearing Works at Erkner, an eastern suburb of 
Berlin, about seven miles from the city center. 

Shack Rabbits failed to hit the primary target in Berlin (VKF Ball Bearing) and dropped bombs 
on the secondary target. On the way back, close to the Dutch border, Shack Rabbits fell slightly 
back from the formation and was attacked by a German Focke-Wulf Fw 190A-6 Wnr at around 
14:50. 470083, flown by Hauptmann Hugo Frey. This attack damaged the aircraft to such an 
extent that the crew of Shack Rabbits' was forced to leave the aircraft. Five of the ten crew 
members manage to bring themselves in safety with their parachute. The other five either failed 
to leave the plane or their parachute malfunctioned. The aircraft crashed and its remains were 
later found in a swamp at Neu-Ringer, 14 miles north of Nordhorn, Ger. 
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